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Chairman’s Statement

ERRE

THE YEAR IN REVIEW

The year of 2013/14 is a fruitless year for Mascotte Holdings
Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
collectively the “Group”). The Company has encountered a
big challenge, the Yi-Lan plant of Sun Materials Technology
Co., Ltd. ("Sun Materials”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, has completely lost its capacity to produce
any commercially feasible polysilicon, accordingly, a full
provision has been made against the entire investment in
solar grade polycrystalline silicon business during the year.
The management discussion and analysis section has further
information in respect of the impairment loss recognized
in respect of the Group’s solar grade polycrystalline silicon
business. The entire investment in solar grade polycrystalline
silicon business has been disposed to an independent third
party in June 2014, the Company believed that the disposal
has eradicated further funding requirement as Sun Materials
has lost its entire economic benefit to the Company.

One of the core businesses of the Group, manufacturing and
sales of accessories, has recorded a segment loss compared to
the prior year. The disappointing performance is mainly due
to the market competition and the change of the clientele.
The operations of other segments of the Group remained the
same as last year.

The liquidity of the Company has been closely monitored
during the year. Debts structuring of the Company, such as
changes of terms and conditions of convertible bonds and
consideration bonds of the Company, has been completed.

During the year, the capital base of the Company is enhanced
by placing of new shares of the Company, as a result the
Company posted a net asset of approximately HK$857 million
as of 31 March 2014.

PROSPECTS

The year ahead will continue to be a challenging one for
the Group. In particular, the Group’s prospects would
depend primarily on its businesses. Furthermore, the Group
will continuously monitor its indebtedness and funding
requirement.

APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to thank our
shareholders, investor and business partners for their
continuing support to the Group, and to my fellow directors
and all staff members for their valuable contribution during
the year.

For and on behalf of the Board
Suen Yick Lun Philip
Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer and

Company Secretary

27 June 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERRR AT

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND BUSINESS REVIEW

As anticipated in the Company’s announcement issued
on 30 May 2014, the Group recorded a loss for the year
ended 31 March 2014 (the “Year”). The loss attributable
to shareholders for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$545.7 million, which was decreased by approximately
HK$630.9 million as compared to a loss of approximately
HK$1,176.6 million last year. The loss was mainly attributable
to:

(i) finance costs of approximately HK$153.3 million
recognised during the Year, which was decreased by
approximately HK$236.2 million, from approximately
HK$389.5 million in last year, in which approximately
HK$11.1 million arising from interest expenses paid
for bank and other borrowings, approximately HK$9.0
million arising from the amortisation of interest expenses
for convertible bonds, approximately HK$128.4 million
and approximately HK$4.8 million arising from the
amortisation of interest expenses for consideration bonds
and Convertible Bonds (Il) respectively during the Year;

(ii) recognition of a loss of approximately HK$344.4 million
on alteration of terms of the Company’s consideration
bonds during the Year;

(iii) an impairment loss of approximately HK$12.7 million
recognised for the remaining investment in the solar
grade polycrystalline silicon business (As at 31 March
2013: approximately HK$106.9 million).

The basic and diluted loss per share was HK$0.04 for the
Year, as compared to the basic and diluted loss per share of
HK$1.0 in last year.

Solar grade polycrystalline silicon business
Results

No turnover was generated from solar grade polycrystalline
silicon segment as no commercial production was commenced
during the Year and last year. The recorded segment loss
was approximately HK$36.3 million, which was decreased
by approximate 3.8 times, from approximately HK$137.1
million in last year. The decrease in losses were mainly due
to all assets related to the solar grade polycrystalline silicon
business were impaired in last year. Details of the impairment
losses are set out in note 8.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERRR AT

Impairment loss recognised in respect of the Group’s
solar grade polycrystalline silicon business

As disclosed in the announcement dated 1 August 2013,
since the acquisition of the interest in Sun Materials
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Sun Materials”), the Company had
been relying on the continuous representation and assurance
of Dr. Wu Yi-Shuen (“Dr. Wu"), both as the preliminary seller
and Chief Executive Officer and Chief Technical Officer of
Sun Materials that the modular production lines in the Yilan
plant was in proper and workmanlike condition and that the
delay in production of the desired quantity of the product
was bona fide due to unforeseen circumstances. In early July
2013, Sun Materials received two anonymous parcels in mail
containing materials that suggested the test runs aforesaid
were faked by Dr. Wu. The Company then consulted lawyers
both in Taipei and Hong Kong. A confrontation meeting was
held on 26 July 2013 at Taipei whereat Dr. Wu was present
before two directors of the Company and representatives
of two law offices. Dr. Wu admitted that during the various
test runs both before the first acquisition of 50.1% interest
and after the acquisition of 49.9% interest in Sun Materials,
he had deliberately poured some foreign materials in the
reactor in order to conceal the operational process from
the engineers of the plant. Dr. Wu refused to disclose what
foreign materials were engaged. The two directors present
suspected that the foreign materials were polycrystalline
silicon Dr. Wu brought in from an outside source in order to
fake the outcome of the tests. Before the Company was able
to discuss and consider the termination of Dr. Wu's service,
Dr. Wu tendered his verbal resignation at the conclusion of
the confrontation meeting with effect from 29 July 2013.

Furthermore, as disclosed in the announcement dated 24
October 2013, members of the special committee comprises
all the current independent non-executive directors of the
Company, Mr. Lam Ping Cheung, Andrew, a former ICAC
investigator and a practicing solicitor and Ms. Lam Yan
Fong, Flora, a solicitor to study the events leading up to the
termination of Dr. Wu's service. Dr. Lin Tiang-Tsair (“Dr. Lin")
has been appointed as the technical adviser to the special
committee. Dr. Lin is a renowned Taiwanese expert in the
field of photovoltaics and he will be assisted by PHOTON
Consulting, the leading international photovoltaics consulting
company. Dr. Lin is commissioned to study, among other
things, the commercial feasibility of the existing set-up and
organisation of the Yi-Lan plant, whether to continue the
existing operation with the departure of Dr. Wu will be able
to produce the polysilicon. Members of the special committee
met Dr. Lin in Taipei on 20 and 21 October 2013 following
a visit to the Yi-Lan plant and were verbally advised that
the existing set-up and organisation of the Yi-Lan plant
was not commercially feasible to develop the polysilicon
production business in his preliminary view. Following the
visit of an investigative team by PHOTON Consulting on 22
October 2013 to the Yi-Lan plant and the team’s meeting
with Dr. Lin, the team opined on 23 October 2013 that the
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERRR AT

current staff and physical assets of the Yi-Lan set-up and
organisation did not form a basis from which a commercially
feasible polysilicon production business could be developed.
The Company received the verbal view of Dr. Lin, echoed by
the investigation team of PHOTON Consulting, and is of the
opinion that the Yi-Lan plant has completely lost its capacity
to produce any commercially feasible polysilicon.

Based on the foregoing and taking into consideration all
relevant facts and information known to date, the Company
and the special committee considered that a full provision
shall have to be made against the total investment in the
existing solar grade polycrystalline silicon business, accordingly
an impairment has been made against the entire investment
in solar grade polycrystalline silicon business.

Reference was also made to the Company’s announcement
dated 6 June 2014, 16 June 2014 and 25 June 2014 (the
“Announcements”). Capitalised terms used herein shall have
the same meanings as those defined in the Announcements
unless otherwise specific. The entire investment in solar
grade polyscrystalline silicon business was disposed to an
individual third party, and the said disposal was completed
on 25 June 2014. Upon the completion of the SPSA, the
Disposed Group will no longer be a subsidiary of the Group.
Accordingly, the assets, liabilities and the financial results of
the Disposed Group will no longer be consolidated into the
financial statements of the Group, and the Group’s principal
businesses are investment and trading of securities, provision
of finance, property investment and manufacturing and sale
of accessories for photographic products.

Investments

During the 2nd half of the Year, the Group invested its
surplus cash in the Hong Kong securities market with an aim
to capture future appreciation in share price. The realised
gain from investment in listed shares was approximately
HK$11.0 million and unrealised loss from unlisted convertible
bonds was approximately HK$9.9 million, resulting in a net
gain from change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss in the sum of approximately HK$1.1
million during the Year (2013: net loss from change in fair
value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in
the sum of approximately HK$19.8 million).

Loan financing

There were no significant changes for segment operation of
loan financing that interest income from provision of finance
was slightly decreased by approximately HK$0.2 million to
approximately HK$0.4 million as compared to approximately
HK$0.6 million last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Property investment

During the Year, rental income from property investment was
decreased from approximately HK$2.6 million in last year
to approximately HK$1.1 million, representing a decrease
of approximate 2.4 times as compared to last year. Such
decrease was mainly due to decrease in lettable area as
a result of (i) disposal of property located in Hong Kong
through disposal of subsidiaries in January 2013; and (ii)
disposal of property located in Shenzhen in November 2013.

On the other hand, the Group had disposed a land located
in Huizhou in the 2nd half of the Year resulting in a net gain
of approximately HK$10.5 million, the segment result from a
loss of approximately HK$1.3 million in last year to a profit of
approximately HK$11.2 million this Year.

Manufacture and sale of accessories

With decrease in oversea sales, the segment’s turnover had
decreased from approximately HK$163.3 million in last year
to approximately HK$107.9 million for the Year, representing
a decrease of approximately 33.9%. It was mainly due to
decrease in market demand for photographic products.

With higher utilisation of production capacity and
implementation of direct cost control, the Group is able to
improve the gross profit margin from 30.1% in last year to
approximately 31.4% on average for the Year. However, the
segment result turned from a net profit of approximately
HK$4.8 million in last year to a net loss of approximately
HK$4.9 million for the Year which was mainly due to the
fact that certain administrative costs did not decrease
correspondingly with the decrease in turnover.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group primarily financed its operations with internally
generated cash flows, other borrowings and by its internal
resources and shareholder’s equity. During the Year, the
liquidity of the Group was tight and the Company explored
various initiatives to seek new funding and improve the debt
to equity ratio by (i) restructuring the terms and conditions of
consideration bonds; and (ii) seeking for external funding for
the repayment of debts; and (iii) raising funding in the equity
market by placing of shares and rights issue and enhancing
the capital base of the Company.

Mascotte Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014
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(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Restructuring the terms and conditions of
consideration bonds

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 11 November 2013, the Company and all holders
of the consideration bonds entered into the deed of
amendment in relation to, among other things, the
alteration of terms and conditions of the consideration
bonds (the “Alternation”). The Alternation mainly
provide greater flexibility to the Company in managing
its working capital, as the Alteration removes mandatory
conditions imposed on the Company to redeem the
consideration bonds by cash settlement. In the event
that the consideration bonds to be redeemed by issuing
shares, the Group’'s liabilities will be reduced and the
Group’s equity base will be enlarged which in turn shall
improve the financial position and gearing ratio of the
Group. The resolution was approved by the shareholders
of the Company at the special general meeting on 13
December 2013.

Seeking for external funding for the repayments of
debts

During the Year, the Company had placed HK$25.0
million, HK$20.0 million and HK$10.0 million, 5%
unsecured notes, with a maturity of 7-year from the date
of issuance of each note, pursuant to the placing notes
agreement dated 28 December 2012, 8 July 2013 and
25 September 2013 respectively. As at 31 March 2014,
an aggregate principal amount of HK$60.0 million was
placed (As at 31 March 2013: HK$5.0 million).

Enhancing the capital base of the Company

On 20 November 2013, the Company completed a
placing of 1,250,000,000 new ordinary shares with net
proceeds of approximately HK$99.7 million which was
used for general working capital as intended.

In order to improve the financial position and capital base
of the Group, the Company completed a rights issue on
20 May 2013 on the basis of four rights shares for every
existing share held on the record date at the subscription
price of HK$0.07 per rights share. 7,365,840,496 new
ordinary shares were issued and allotted to raise a net
proceeds of approximately HK$496.2 million. The fund
was utilised as intended.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERRR AT

As at 31 March 2014, net current liabilities of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$34.8 million (2013:
approximately HK$228.1 million) with bank balances and
cash of approximately HK$59.1 million (As at 31 March 2013:
approximately HK$52.7 million).

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had secured bank
borrowings of approximately HK$36.3 million, which is a
ten-year term loan denominated in new Taiwan Dollars of
(approximately NT$142.7 million. (As at 31 March 2013:
approximately HK$42.4 million and denominated in new
Taiwan dollars (NT$158.8 million)). The bank borrowings carry
variable interest at local bank’s deposit rate in Taiwan plus a
spread ranging from 1.8% per annum. (2013: carry variable
interest at prime rate in Hong Kong or local bank’s deposit
rate in Taiwan plus a spread ranging from 1.6% to 1.8% per
annum).

No secured margin facilities were utilised as at 31 March
2014 (As at 31 March 2013: Nil).

The Company issued convertible bonds with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$1,450 million in connection with the
acquisition of 50.1% interest in solar grade polycrystalline
silicon business in July 2011. The convertible bonds due
in July 2014, with 5% per annum coupon interest rate
payable semi-annually, are convertible into ordinary shares
of the Company at a conversion price of HK$0.09 per share
(adjusted upon rights issued effected on 20 May 2013).
Principal amount of HK$370.0 million was converted into
4,111,111,111 new ordinary shares of the Company during
the Year. The aggregate outstanding principal amount as at
31 March 2014 was HK$830.0 million (As at 31 March 2013:
HK$1,200.0 million). During the Year, an aggregated interest
paid was approximately HK$52.7 million (2013: approximately
HK$71.0 million).

The Company issued consideration bonds with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$1,750.0 million as part of the
consideration for the acquisition of the remaining 49.9%
interest in solar grade polycrystalline silicon business in
January 2012. The consideration bonds due in January
2014 carried 2.5% per annum coupon interest rate payable
quarterly. Upon the Alteration effected on 13 December 2013
as mentioned above, the consideration bonds are convertible
into ordinary shares of the Company at a conversion price
of HK$0.09 per share and the derivative financial instrument
was derecognised upon the Alteration becoming effective.
Principal amount of HK$70.0 million was converted into
777,777,777 new ordinary shares of the Company during the
Year. The aggregate outstanding principal amount as at 31
March 2014 was HK$815.0 million (As at 31 March 2013:
HK$885 million). During the Year, an aggregated interest
paid was approximately HK$24.9 million (2013: approximately
HK$28.7 million).

Mascotte Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERRR AT

The total deficit of the Group as at 31 March 2014 was
approximately HK$99.9 million (2013: approximately
HK$1,086.1 million). Gearing ratio calculated on the basis
of the Group’s total debts (interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings plus convertible bonds and consideration bonds
and obligations under finance lease) over shareholders’ funds
was (154.24%) (2013: (127.97 %) restated).

CHARGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2014, margin facility of approximately
HK$0.001 million (As at 31 March 2013: Nil) from one
regulated securities broker was granted to the Group under
which financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$0.003 million (As at 31 March 2013: Nil)
were treated as collateral for the facilities granted. No margin
facility has been utilised by the Group as at 31 March 2014
(As at 31 March 2013: Nil).

As at 31 March 2014, land and buildings in Taiwan
with carrying amount of nil were pledged to secure
bank borrowings of approximately HK$36.3 million
(NT$142.7million) (As at 31 March 2013: land and buildings
in Taiwan with carrying amount of approximately nil were
pledged to secure bank borrowings of approximately HK$42.4
million (NT$158.8 million)).

Furthermore, the Group had a restricted bank deposit in the
sum of approximately HK$5.4 million (NT$21.1 million) as at
31 March 2014 (As at 31 March 2013: approximately HK$5.6
million (NT$21.0 million)) which was placed to secure the
lease agreement in relation to the land and buildings located
in Taiwan.

In addition, the charge of shares of Sun Mass Energy Limited,
which was pledged to secure borrowing from an independent
financial institute was released during the Year (As at 31
March 2013: secure borrowing of HK$489.0 million).

CURRENCY RISK MANAGEMENT

The majority of the Group's assets are denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars with no material foreign exchange exposure.
The Group’s manufacturing business has its overseas market,
which alone accounts for around HK$79.3 million of the
Group’s turnover. In safeguarding the volatile Euro Dollars
currency risk, the management has chosen to adopt a more
prudent sales policy by mainly accepting sale orders quoted
in US dollars, which in turn could enable the management
to maintain a stable currency exchange condition for normal
trading business development. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. During the Year,
the directors are of the view that the Group’s exposure
to exchange rate risk is not material, and will continue to
monitor it.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEERRR AT

COMMITMENT

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had capital commitment of
approximately HK$7.4 million (2013: approximately HK$10.8
million), mainly for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company and the Group had not provided corporate
guarantee to its subsidiaries or other parties and did not have
other contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2014 (2013: Nil).

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2014, the Group employed approximately
394 employees. About 94.4% and 0.5% of them were
employed in PRC for the manufacturing business and in
Taiwan for general operation of solar grade polycrystalline
silicon business respectively. The remuneration policy of the
Group is to reward its employees with reference to their
qualifications, experience and work performance as well as
to market benchmarks. Employee benefits include medical
insurance coverage, mandatory provident fund and share
option scheme. Total staff costs for the Year, including
director’'s emoluments, amount to approximately HK$52.5
million.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Year (2013: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 11 April
2013, the Company sold 531,575 shares of Sun Mass
Funding Corporation (“Sun Mass Funding”), representing
approximately 5.82% of the issued share capital, to an
independent third party for a cash consideration of HK$50.0
million. On 8 November 2013, the aforesaid 531,575 shares
of Sun Mass Funding were repurchased by the Company for a
cash consideration of HK$20.0 million. Saved as disclosed, no
material acquisition and disposal was noted during the year
ended 31 March 2014.

Mascotte Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERSEEBAEEN

The biographical details of Directors and senior management
as at 27 June 2014, the date of this annual report, are set out
below:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun, aged 53, was appointed as the
executive Director and Vice Chairman of the Company in
May 2014. He was re-designated from Vice Chairman to
Acting Chairman of the Company in June 2014. He is a
fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, an associate member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an Associate
Chartered Accountant (England and Wales). He has over 20
years' experience in finance and project investment. Currently,
he is an independent non-executive director of Dragonite
International Limited (Stock Code: 329), Forefront Group
Limited (Stock Code: 885), Freeman Financial Corporation
Limited (Stock Code: 279) and Heritage International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 412), all are companies listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange. He was the managing
director and chief executive officer of Tack Fiori International
Group Limited (Stock Code: 928) for the period from 4
November 2013 to 31 March 2014, the chairman and
executive director of Radford Capital Investment Limited
(currently known as Eagle Ride Investment Holdings Limited)
(Stock Code: 901) for the period from 25 April 2002 to 1
November 2013 and the executive director of Ming Fung
Jewellery Group Limited (Stock Code: 860) for the period
from 28 February 2002 to 28 September 2013, all are
companies listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Suen Yick Lun Philip, age 45, was re-designated from
executive Director to Managing Director and Chief Executive
Officer in March 2014. He was appointed as an executive
Director and the Company Secretary in April 2011. He is a
fellow member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the CPA Australia. He is also a
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy from Queensland University
of Technology and a Master’'s degree in Corporate Finance
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has over 15
years of experience in finance and accounting. Prior to joining
the Company, he was responsible for accounting and finance
matters for several listed companies in Hong Kong. During the
period from 2 September 2010 to 14 March 2011, he was an
executive director of Freeman Financial Corporation Limited
(Stock Code: 279), a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Eddie Woo, aged 42, was appointed as an executive
Director in March 2010 and served as President of our Sun
Materials Technology Co., Ltd. subsidiary. He was previously
an executive director in the Asia investment banking group
of Oppenheimer & Co. Inc., a North American investment
bank with extensive operations and experience in the Greater
China region, and its predecessor, CIBC World Markets. His
responsibilities included significant financing activities for
Chinese companies including initial public offerings, mergers
and acquisitions, private placements and other related
advisory work. He joined CIBC World Markets in 2000 as a
research analyst. In 2003, he helped start Mekong Airlines
in Cambodia, serving as a board director and chief financial
officer before returning to CIBC World Markets during early
2004 as a director within the equity research group. He
received his Master’s degree in Business Administration from
the University of San Francisco and his Bachelor’s degree from
the University of California, Santa Cruz.

Miss Wong Yuen Mui, aged 36, was appointed as an
executive Director in December 2013. She received a Master
degree in Business Administration from The University
of Louisiana in 2006 and a Honours Diploma in Business
Administration from Hong Kong Shue Yan University in 2002.
Previously, she served as a chief executive officer of a mineral
trading company for about 6 years. She has over 10 years
of experience in the mineral trading business and corporate
business administration.

Ms. Shum Ching Yee Jennifer, aged 46, was appointed as
an executive Director in March 2014. She is the member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the CPA Australia. She holds a Bachelor degree in Commerce
(Accounting) from the University of Western Australia. She
has over 10 years of experiences in financial management.
She was the executive director of Forefront Group Limited
(Stock Code: 885) for the period from 1 August 2013 to
28 February 2014; and the company secretary of National
Investments Fund Limited (Stock Code: 1227) for the period
from 6 September 2010 to 29 May 2013, both of which are
companies listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
During the period from May 2008 to December 2011, Ms.
Shum was an executive director of CEFC International Limited
(formerly known as Sun East Group Limited) (Stock Code:
Y35), a company listed on the main board of Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

Mascotte Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Frank H. Miu, aged 65, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in December 2009. He
is also the chairman of the audit committee of the Board, a
member of the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Board. Mr. Miu holds a Juris Doctor degree
from Harvard Law School and a Bachelor of Arts degree
in Economics and Accounting from St. John's University of
Minnesota in the United States of America. He is a member
of the American Bar Association and the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a fellow of The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Aside from about 15
years of professional experience in accounting and law, he
had extensive management experience in financial services,
publishing and printing, food and chain restaurants, cold
storage as well as property-related businesses.

Mr. Miu was an independent non-executive director of
Tack Fiori International Group Limited (Stock Code: 928)
for the period from 15 August 2011 to 19 May 2014, an
independent non-executive director of Freeman Financial
Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 279) for the period from
15 December 2011 to 7 August 2013, the managing director
of Radford Capital Investment Limited (currently known as
Eagle Ride Investment Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 901)
for the period from 30 June 2011 to 1 August 2011 and
its executive director for the period from 3 March 2009 to
28 December 2009, a non-executive director of Dragonite
International Limited (Stock Code: 329) for the period from
7 May 2010 to 7 July 2011 and its executive director for the
period from 12 April 2010 to 7 May 2010. He is currently also
an independent non-executive director of Willie International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 273). All of the foregoing are
companies listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
He is also an independent non-executive director of Duoyuan
Global Water Inc., a company listed on New York Stock
Exchange.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Dr. Agustin V. Que, aged 67, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in January 2010. Dr. Que
is also a member of the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee of the Board.
Dr. Que holds Doctor of Philosophy and Master degree in
Business Administration, both majoring in Finance, from
the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania in
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, United States of America. He has
been involved in the field of finance for more than 35 years
as a private equity investor, merchant banking, corporate
and development finance professional in Jakarta, Hong Kong,
Singapore, Boston and Washington, District of Columbia. He
recently returned to Manila after 15 years in Jakarta where
he was corporate finance adviser to an Indonesian holding
company with diversified interests in agribusiness, property
and financial services. In this position, he was responsible
for mergers and acquisitions, new investments, business
development and investment banking activities. Prior to
Jakarta, he worked in the financial sector in Hong Kong for
12 years. Dr. Que started his career in finance in Washington,
District of Columbia, United States of America with The
World Bank, over a period of 10 years. His last posting was
senior investment officer in the capital markets department
of the International Finance Corporation, The World Bank’s
private investment arm. He is currently an independent non-
executive director of Freeman Financial Corporation Limited
(Stock Code: 279), a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Robert James laia Il, aged 45, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in June 2010. Mr. laia
is the chairman of the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of the Board and a member of the
audit committee of the Board. He holds a Bachelor of Arts
from Central Connecticut State University in the United States
of America and a Master degree in Real Estate from the
University of Hong Kong. He has over 12 years’ experience
in the real estate and equities market and lived and worked
in Asia for over 20 years, primarily in Seoul and Hong Kong.
In addition to extensive experience in private equity real
estate, he also traded Asian equities at Samsung Securities in
Seoul and Societe Generale in New York. He is currently an
independent non-executive director of Tack Fiori International
Group Limited (Stock Code: 928), a company listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mascotte Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Hung Cho Sing, aged 73, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in January 2013. Mr.
Hung is also a member of the audit committee and the
remuneration committee of the Board. He has over 30 years
of experience in the film distribution industry and founded
Delon International Film Corporation in 1970. Mr. Hung
has been the chairman of Hong Kong, Kowloon and New
Territories Motion Picture Industry Association Limited since
1991 and was the chairman of Hong Kong Film Awards
Association Limited from 1993 to 1995. Mr. Hung was
appointed by the HKSAR Government as a member of the
Hong Kong Film Development Council from 2007 to 31
March 2013. Mr. Hung was also appointed as a consultant
of the China Film Association. Mr. Hung is also a member
of HKSAR Election Committee and a vice-chairman of the
Cultural Profession Committee of the Guangdong, Hong
Kong and Macau Cooperation Promotion Council. Mr. Hung
was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the HKSAR
Government in 2005 in recognition of his contribution to the
Hong Kong Film industry. Recently, he has been appointed
by the HKSAR as a member of the Working Group on
Manufacturing Industries, Innovative Technology, and Cultural
and Creative Industries under the Economic Development
Commission on an ad personam basis for a term of two years
with effect from 17 January 2013. Mr. Hung was a non-
executive director of Capital VC Limited (Stock Code: 2324)
for the period from 15 September 2011 to 30 January 2014.
Currently, Mr. Hung is an independent non-executive director
of China Star Entertainment Limited (Stock Code: 326), an
independent non-executive director of Freeman Financial
Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 279), and executive director
of Universe International Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code: 1046),
which are companies listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Chan Oi Ling, Maria Olimpia, aged 70, is the founder
of the Group. Ms. Chan was the chairman of the Company
up to 7 April 2008. After resignation from the Board,
Ms. Chan remains a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company so as to facilitate her to give advice and pass on
her valuable experience in the manufacturing and sales of
goods operations. Ms. Chan has over 40 years’ experience
in the industry of manufacturing and sale of accessories for
photographic products.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board considers that good corporate governance
practices of the Company are crucial to the smooth and
effective operation of the Group and safeguarding the
interests of the shareholders and other stakeholders. The
Company has applied the principles compiling with the
code provisions which set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during
the year ended 31 March 2014, except for certain deviations

as explained below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Up to the date of this annual report, the Board of the
Company currently comprises nine directors, including five
Executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive
Directors (“INED(s)”). The brief biographical details of the
directors are set out in the Profile of Directors and Senior
Management on pages 11 to 15 of this annual report. The
Board has established three Board Committees, namely
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. The Board meets regularly to discuss overall
strategy and review the financial and operating performance
of the Group. Attendance of operational Board Meetings
and/or full Board Meetings and the meetings of the three
Committees for the year ended 31 March 2014 is set out

below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun (Acting Chairman)”
(appointed as Vice Chairman on 7 May 2014 and
re-designated as Acting Chairman on 3 June 2014)
Mr. Suen Yick Lun Philip (re-designated as Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer on 27 March 2014)
Mr. Eddie Woo
Miss Wong Yuen Mui (appointed on 18 December 2013)
Ms. Shum Ching Yee Jennifer (appointed on 3 March 2014)
Mr. Wong Danny F. (ex-Chairman)
(appointed on 14 February 2014 and resigned on
3 June 2014)
Mr. Peter Temple Whitelam (ex-Chairman)
(retired on 14 February 2014)
Mr. Lau King Hang (resigned on 7 March 2014)
Mr. Lo Yuen Wa Peter (ex-Managing Director)
(resigned on 27 March 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Frank H. Miu™’

Dr. Agustin V. Que™

Mr. Robert James laia II*"®

Mr. Hung Cho Sing*

Members of Audit Committee
Members of Remuneration Committee
Members of Nomination Committee

Chairman of Audit Committee
@

Mascotte Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014

HirEe }

BERTL(EELE) \
(R=Z-RERA+AREZIAGTR
BH-2-MERAZABEAERLR)

Bafrt(N-5-ME-A-++AATA
FECAERTRER)

HEREL

MR- T-=F1-A1)\HEZA)

TEEME(R-2-NE=A=ARZf)

TRERE(HZE) \
(R-E2-ME_ATMARREIN_F
-RE~A=REf)

Peter Temple Whitelam % £(4/2 %)
(R-Z-ME-ATBARK)

ASERE (N _E-ME=ALARHE)

ENERL(HEELLE)
(RZF-ME=A=TLABE)

BUKHTES
Brrs™

Aqustin V. Que &£ ™
Robert James laia Il 4
EEERLT

Chairman of Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee

TEERER
EEGRARATZ RITOEENR
FREAEE 2 RG LKA XL ER
AEZE - WARER R & E iR
BEAZHz@m REE_T—OF
SA=T—AILFE ARADE
RAEATAEBASSMARARE
F EmARAN =R A ) Ky gk 41
EtEEREATA(SRI)Z
SRR 2 IR A - T FI At 2 &
TIRBEIB BRI ©
=
EEASHEE AADNEFER
NENWRESEAK  BRAORNTT
EER LB EATES(BY
JEMMITESF AKX - EFHEHN
AREFFENEISAEZEENSEE
BAEMN EEFSER V=M=
EZEg DHABEREZEES
WEEERIRAZES - BF T
HIRTEZ  SwEBERBRRE - IR
SASE B REERR - BHE
—E-NFE=A=+—HILFE -
i(pEEeeak  ArBESTY
FEA-HZEEERILFEERSE
HIGAR -
No. of meetings attended/held
b/ BREERY
Board Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Meetin Committee Committee Committee
Eze Enzag inzae R4%Zag
29129 - - -
9/14 - - _
5/5 - - -
33 - - -
213 - - -
8/10 - - -
1212 - - -
21127 - - -
113 2 n "N
9/13 iy n n
113 0 n 1
1213 2 n -
ERRZEEKE
' FHEZEEKE

’ BREEEIR
° FHLZEERRERRERER



Corporate Governance Report

>
e
;3
BiK
=
T

The Board determines the overall strategies, monitors and
controls operating and financial performance, analyses
and formulates strategies to manage risks in pursuit of the
Group’'s strategic objectives. The Board also decides on
matters such as annual and interim results, dividend policy,
director appointments, and significant changes in accounting
policy, material contracts and major investments. The Board
has delegated the authority and responsibility of overseeing
the Group’s day-to-day operations to management executives.

The Company confirmed that it has received from each of the
INED an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and the Company considers
them to be independent.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. During the year, Mr.
Peter Temple Whitelam acted as the Company’s Chairman
during the period from 1 April 2013 to 14 February 2014, and
Mr. Wong Danny F. acted as the Company’s Chairman during
the period from 14 February 2014 to 31 March 2014, while
the role of Chief Executive Officer was performed by Mr. Lo
Yuen Wa Peter, the Managing Director, during the period
from 1 April 2013 to 27 March 2014 and Mr. Suen Yick Lun
Philip, the Managing Director of the Company, during the
period from 27 March 2014 to 31 March 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board has delegated the following duties and
responsibilities in respect of the corporate governance
functions of the Company to the executive committee:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management of the Company;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Company; and
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5. to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 March 2014 and up to the date
of this report, the executive committee has performed the
corporate governance duties in accordance with its terms of
reference.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently has four INEDs, all holding appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.

Code Provision A.4.1 provides that non-executive directors
should be appointed for specific term, subject to re-election.
The INEDs of the Company are not appointed for specific term
but they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meetings of the Company. Pursuant
to Clause 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-Laws, each director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years at the annual general meeting. This means that
the term of appointment of the directors, including INEDs,
cannot exceed three years. As such, the Company considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance is no less exacting than
those in the Code.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is principally responsible for reviewing
and supervising the Group’s financial reporting process
and internal control system and providing advice and
recommendations to the Board of the Company. The Audit
Committee comprises four INEDs of the Company. The revised
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are consistent
with the terms set out in the relevant section of the Code. No
changes were made to the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee during the year ended 31 March 2014.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, two meetings have
been held by the Audit Committee to approve the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 and
to review interim financial statements (including accounting
policies and practices adopted) of the Group for the six
months ended 30 September 2013, and recommended such
financial statements to the Board for approval. On 27 June
2014 (the date of this annual report), the Audit Committee
met to review the annual financial statements and other
reports for the year ended 31 March 2014 and discuss any
significant audit matters with the Company’s external auditor
and the senior management before recommending them to
the Board for consideration and approval.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is principally responsible
for formulating the Group’s policy and structure for all
remunerations of the directors and senior management and
providing advice and recommendations to the Board. In
addition, the Company has adopted a share option scheme
to provide incentives and rewards to eligible participants. The
Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director
and four INEDs of the Company. The terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are consistent with the terms
set out in the relevant section of the Code. During the year
ended 31 March 2014, one meeting has been held by the
Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee has
discussed and reviewed the remuneration packages for all
executive Directors and senior management, the Company’s
share option scheme and the revised terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee. No changes were made to the
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee during
the year.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Board composition and identifying and nominating candidates
for appointment to the Board such that they have the
relevant skills, qualification, knowledge and experience. The
Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director and
three INEDs of the Company. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are consistent with the terms set out
in the relevant section of the Code. During the year ended
31 March 2014, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board and the terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee. No changes were
made to the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
during the year.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors. Having made
specific enquiries of all directors, all directors confirm that
they have complied with the required standard as set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2014.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the remuneration
paid and payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for audit
services and non-audit services, (including acted as reporting
accountant for rights issue) rendered to the Group amounted
to HK$2,300,000 and HK$654,000 respectively.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges that they are responsible for the
preparation of the Company’s financial statements which give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
as of 31 March 2014 and of the results of its operations
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and for ensuring
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently.

The directors are responsible for ensuring the maintenance
of proper accounting records of the Company and taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities. The reporting responsibilities of the
external auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 30 and 31.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibilities for the Group's
internal control system and has adopted a set of internal
control procedures to facilitate effective and efficient
operations, minimize the exposure to risks, to safeguard
assets and to ensure the quality of internal and external
reporting and compliance with relevant laws and regulations.
The Board also considered that the resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function were adequate.

The Company retained a financial adviser to advise the Board
on most of the aspects of statutory report and compliance
on a regular basis. Moreover, the Company has reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system
over the major business segments on payment procedures
and the level of segregation of duties of the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2014. Furthermore, the Company
together with an appointed financial adviser has reviewed
the Group’s investment portfolio on a monthly basis. There
is no significant area of concern which may suggest material
deficiencies in the effectiveness of Group’s internal control
system.

The Board also reviews the Company’s interim and annual
report and resolves any discrepancies encountered during
the audit including the need to introduce additional internal
controls.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors have complied with the code provision in relation
to continuous professional development. This has involved
various forms of activities including attending a presentation
given by an external professional party in respect of the new
regime on disclosure, reading materials relevant to corporate
governance and other regulatory requirements.

Mascotte Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014
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During the year, the Company modernized an induction
policy for the new member of the board of the Company.
On appointment, the new member received an induction
which included meetings with the members of the board of
the Company, introducing the Group’s business segments in
which the Group operates, the roles and responsibilities as
a director of the Company and the requirements under the
Listing Rules in respect of the code provision in relation to
continuous professional development.

The Company regularly updates Directors on the
developments in respect of the Listing Rules and applicable
regulatory requirements, to enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.

SHAREHOLDER'S RIGHTS

The right and procedures to convene a general meeting
and to demand a poll on resolutions at general meetings by
shareholders of the Company are set out in the Company’s
amended and restated Bye-Laws headed “General Meetings”,
“Notice Of General Meetings”, “Proceedings At General
Meetings” and “Voting”. Shareholders may at any time
send their enquiries to the Board by addressing them to the
Company Secretary by post to the principal office of the
Company.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has a shareholders communication policy to set
out the Company’s procedures in providing shareholders and
investors in respect of the information about the Company.

The Company uses various communication methods to
ensure its shareholders are kept well informed. These include
publication of annual report, various notices, announcements
and circulars. The shareholders’ meeting also provides a useful
channel for shareholders to communicate directly with the
Board at which the directors are available to answer questions
relating to the Company’s affairs. The right to demand
voting by poll is communicated to the shareholders by way
of circulars. Resolutions are proposed at each shareholder’s
meeting on each substantially separate issue, including the
election of individual directors.

The latest information in respect of the Company’'s
information, including the terms of reference of all
committees, the constitutional documents, the list of directors
and their role and function, are set out in the Company’'s
website.
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The directors are pleased to present the annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
principally engages in trading of investments. Its subsidiaries
principally engage in the business of investment and trading
of securities, provision of finance, property investment and
manufacturing and sale of accessories for photographic
products.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on pages 32 and 33.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2014.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and
movements in share options during the year are set out in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

Details of changes in the Group’s investment properties and
property, plant and equipment during the year are set out
in notes 18 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are
set out in the section headed "Particulars of Investment
Properties” on page 143.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

RNR B2 A 7k

The Company’s reserve was as follows: KATIZ BT
2014 2013
—E-NEF —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAE7T
Contributed surplus B A% 72,201 72,201
Accumulated losses s (3,756,833) (3,283,022)

(3,684,632) (3,210,821)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay
a dividend, or make a distribution out of the contributed
surplus if:

(a) the company is, or would after the payment be, unable
to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of the Company would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium accounts.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun (Acting Chairman) (appointed as
Vice Chairman on 7 May 2014
and re-designated as Acting
Chairman on 3 June 2014)

Mr. Suen Yick Lun Philip (re-designated as Managing
Director and Chief Executive
Officer on 27 March 2014)
Mr. Eddie Woo

Miss Wong Yuen Mui (appointed on 18 December 2013)
Ms. Shum Ching Yee Jennifer  (appointed on 3 March 2014)
Mr. Wong Danny F. (ex-Chairman) (appointed on

14 February 2014 and resigned
on 3 June 2014)

Mr. Peter Temple Whitelam (ex-Chairman) (retired on
14 February 2014)

Mr. Lau King Hang (resigned on 7 March 2014)

Mr. Lo Yuen Wa Peter (ex-Managing Director)

(resigned on 27 March 2014)
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Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Frank H. Miu

Dr. Agustin V. Que

Mr. Robert James laia Il
Mr. Hung Cho Sing

Pursuant to the Clause 86(2) and 87 of the Company’s Bye-
Laws, Mr. Chung Yuk Lun, Ms. Shum Ching Yee Jennifer, Mr.
Frank H. Miu, and Dr. Agustin V. Que shall retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election in the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

The term of office of each independent non-executive director
is the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly and
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Mascotte Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

= ,E’Q‘Hﬁfﬁ - HERORESZ
ERERAE

As at 31 March 2014, the interests and short positions of the WR—-F—J&EF=/A=+—H ' &AQ
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, FEENTFETHABRANAA
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of HEMBE EZE(TERBAENLEE
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of EHI([FEAEREBIEED ) EXVE)
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")) as recorded Z0m - MR REEREAES
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to 4$EE AN RIRIEZASNEEEME
Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company 35218178 2 Z 02 MR 2 x5 K%
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock & : skiE¥E AN B PTEL 4% - T 38 Al
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix Misg +RrEl 2 i ESFH| RIS AN T
10 to the Listing Rules as adopted by the Company, were as K E BB AT SAAER A ([H
follows: FTl) 2 Em AR IT ¢
Interests in the Company FAIR A B 2 FEES
Approximate
percentage
Deemed of issued
interests in share capital
number of of the
shares Company
Number of BIEER Fri& A A F]
Name of director Capacity Shares Bz Total 2RITRA
EEnR 3 RGOHE ROEE et i SEE Rl
Mr. Wong Danny F. Beneficial Owner 66,240,000 - 66,240,000 0.43%
a3 ExEAEA
Mr. Eddie Woo Beneficial Owner - 7,187,500 7,187,500 0.05%
HARR R S A ExEAEA
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of M F Y EEIN R-ZE—OE
the directors, chief executives nor their associates had any =A=+—H #\EEgx . T£717
interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares A Bsi{F% 2B E A TR AR T
or debentures of the Company and any of its associated KEFABEEEEZ &, - BEK
corporations that were required to be kept under Section 352 P EEPEAETMEIES A5 N E
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the E{E|E352EBEFEXRE LT
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules. HABHNE RN MBS RS
FORE °
DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR HEEESRHOFABELEZHEF
DEBENTURES
Save as disclosed above and in note 35 to the consolidated M P REGEE B EHRERMEISE
financial statements headed “Share-Based Payments”, at no B R | — BRI EEE SN - R TF] Sk
time during the year was the Company or any its subsidiaries HAE 0] BB A 7] 7Y E N £ 1] 55 & 1
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the I EMZH B{EARAFIES
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition AEE AANAD A SEAEMMEAER
of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of, B EREA(BRIEES) ME
the Company or any other body corporate, and none of o B EAEMESSEEEIE
the directors, or their spouses or children under the age of T I\ FREE TR RELRAN
eighteen, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the TIBEEF  KERERNITFEE
Company, or had exercised any such rights during the year. AIEZ S HRER o
EHMEEEERAA

£352014
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERK
As at 31 March 2014, other than the interests of the directors A—E—NE=A=+—H" KBt
and chief executives of the Company as disclosed above, YR AN EENLNTFTETR
shareholders who had interests or short positions in the ANB ZREZRIN » IR B IS5 sk 4B
shares or underlying shares of the Company of 5% or more AN R HER 5% sk LA 2 BEZS Sk
which fell to be disclosed to the Company under Part XV of & MmiEE B A5 N EE(E0IE XV A
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register to be kept by AANNAIHE  si2 s8N AN TR
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, were as follows: EEAEANHEKRIEIBCETEZ
ERMAZKRENT :
Interest in the shares and underlying shares - long RO REERG RS - FE .
positions:
Approximate
percentage of
Deemed issued share
Number of interests in capital of the
ordinary number of Company
shares held shares LY N
Name of shareholder FetERE RERFER Total Capacity ERTRA
L = ZRBEE @i 5 Rl
SPARX Asia Capital 3,888,888,888 4,888,888,888 Investment manager 31.86%
Management Limited 1,000,000,000 REFE
SPARX Emerging Opportunities 3,888,888,888 4,888,888,838 Beneficial owner 31.86%
Fund SPC 1,000,000,000 EnBA
Ms. Mak Siu Hang Viola - 3,888,888,888 3,888,888,888 Interest of a controlled corporation 25.34%
VMt R R
VMS Investment Group Limited - 3,888,888,838 3,888,838,888 Beneﬂcial owner 25.34%
ERBEA
Mr. Andrew Liu 1,900,000,000 1,444,444 444 3,344,444 444 Beneﬂcial owner 21.79%
BHfmit EREEA
Ms. Long Wei 260,064,000 1,866,666,666 2,126,730,666 Beneficial owner 13.85%
ERNT ERBEA
HEC Capital Limited 28,728,002° 1,611,111,111 1,639,839,113 Interest of a controlled corporation 10.69%
R AR
Murtsa Capital Management Limited* 28,728,000 1,611,111,111 1,639,839,113 Beneficial owner 10.69%
EREBA
Mr;Hu Liang Ming Raymond T111,111,110% - 1,111,111,110% Beneficial owner 7.24%*
HrmEE ERBEA
Hao Tian Development Group Limited - 1,000,000,000 Interest of a controlled corporation 6.52%
\ 1,000,000,000 B
RREREEERAF R EE R
Win Team Investments Limited - 1,000,000,000 Interest of a controlled corporation 6.52%

Mascotte Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014
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ESERE

Deemed
Number of interests in

Approximate
percentage of

issued share
capital of the

ordinary number of Company

shares held shares FHERDT

Name of shareholder FREERE RERFER Total Capacity BRITRA

EEE B ZRBEE & s BOE

Hao Tian Management 1,000,000,000 - 1,000,000,000 Benefmal owner 6.52%
(Hong Kong) Limited EafAA

RRER(EH)BRATA

Quinella International Incorporated - 777,771,777 711,777,771 Beneﬂcial owner 5.07%

EREEA

The shares are directly held by the spouse of Ms. Long Wei.

2 shares are directly held by HEC Securities Limited which is an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of HEC Capital Limited.

Murtsa Capital Management Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of HEC Capital
Limited.

* 555,555,555 shares are directly held by Mr. Hu Liang Ming Raymond and the remaining
555,555,555 shares are held by a private trust of which Mr. Hu Liang Ming Raymond is
the beneficiary.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, the Company
had not been notified by any person (other than the directors
and chief executives of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which fell to be disclosed to the Company under
Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SHARES

The Company completed a rights issue on 20 May 2013 on
the basis of four rights shares for every existing share held
on the record date at the subscription price of HK$0.07 per
rights share. 7,365,840,496 new ordinary shares were issued
and allotted.

On 20 November 2013, 1,250,000,000 ordinary shares were
issued at a price of HK$0.085 per placing share pursuant to
the placing agreement entered into on 8 November 2013.

Save as disclosed herein and note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s shares during the year ended 31 March 2014.

’ B hER L 2 IBEERS °

@ 2RI B EIASFERARERESE %A
A] A HEC Capital Limited 2 2 EWE A
al e

Murtsa Capital Management Limited & HEC
Capital Limited 2 [ 2 &M B AR °

* 555,555,555 kiR FHEASE BB e A E IR HF A -
H #:555,555, 555 RIS RARERE R
AZFLANEFESEE -
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the percentages of the
Group’s turnover attributable to its largest customer and five
largest customers were 10.7% and 36.0% respectively. The
aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group's
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 64.4% of
the Group’s total purchases and the amount of purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier was approximately
22.7% of the Group's total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in any
of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications, experience and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Saved as disclosed in note 40(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company was not aware of any other related
party transactions as set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statement constitute a connected transaction of the
Group, nor are there any connected transactions that need to
be disclosed in this annual report under the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of
the Directors and their respective associates are considered
to have interests in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

Mascotte Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014
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Directors’ Report

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 March 2014.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group has not made any charitable donations during the
year (2013: HK$61,150).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring subsequent to the
year ended 31 March 2014 are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for
each of the three years ended 31 March 2014 were audited
by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Mascotte Holdings Limited

Suen Yick Lun Philip
Executive Director, Chief Exective Officer and
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 27 June 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report

R

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MASCOTTE HOLDINGS LIMITED

SHEEEARLTF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Mascotte Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 32 to 139, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

Mascotte Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014

March 2014,

HEHEREAERLARAZERR

(REFRESME L2 HRA])

RIZHBEMITEBZE3I2EE139
BEfESHEEEERARTER
ANREHRBAR(AEIEEE])
ZEEVBRE EPBEER_Z
—NE=ZRA=1+—H 248 W&k
AREBEZRAIEFE 2 Bm Rk
HEEBARRK  GEEEHE
LFaBRenER URTEG:
BERBMEREMEREZEELR -

EENGREMBRRARKEZE

(52
BERARMERARERBEEB A
REBRM BB GHRELANE
RGP BBERE  REEE
RFZEEYBHRE WERBES
ERRLRZANREE  UMEHES
MBHRRZZHAFEANRFE
PR M BB 2 EAFERRAL

Xy
®
o
=H
N
ot
H_|

o

g3
SN
AN
il

© T
2 - B

>
]|
N
%
T S ) e ol i 28 2 R sy

-
m €& B+ © EE A
=0

o

it > 5885 % et o35

st 23 98 i 8- 39 S of M e

—~ =

SHF ° D PR Tk 3 S 3
NI o Y o Df O 8
IH B Bt

NEE®S
>
H2

7=\
<l

S 3
il
S 3 P B (1

o B i
- ik ) D8 Y DfF it G Sy

Bt -
TS BT P RN

R
=
™
i
SGpE
op
8

1Y

=)

5. e
S0

PR D> fiik SSF 5 0 D3} T0 2484 T <1 B+
v



Independent Auditor’s Report

B RS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at
31 March 2014, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 June 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE—_Z—NF=-ZA=+—HULFE
2014 2013
—ZT—OF —F—=%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FEx F#&T
(Restated)
(&%)
Turnover LR
Sales of goods HEEm 107,874 163,270
Cost of sales FizR= DN (74,019) (114,194)
33,855 49,076
Investment income "EWA 350 596
Rental income HaeUA 1,122 2,590
Change in fair value of BAFER ABRE
financial assets at fair LB EE L NTE
value through profit or loss b4 1,115 (19,843)
36,442 32,419
Other income H AUz A 7 719 5,871
Loss recognised in respect of MEER G R Z RAER
manufacture of solar grade FERR BB
polycrystalline silicon business 8 (12,730) (106,874)
Other gains and losses H bz N E5 18 9 (307,512) (592,121)
Selling and distribution costs SHE R IHKAR (6,859) (9,148)
Administrative expenses THF (85,147) (117,425)
Other expenses HAS (12,853) (15,218)
Finance costs A& B 10 (153,266) (389,462)
Loss before tax BRTE AU 18 (541,206) (1,191,958)
Income tax (expense) credit PSH (A )ER 11 (5,605) 15,654
Loss for the year FEEB 12 (546,811) (1,176,304)
Other comprehensive income FEHME2EWA (BIX)
(expense) for the year
Items that may be reclassified — A{ZRJfEEF 7 Z Em
subsequently to profit or loss:  ZIEH -
Exchange differences on MEIGINETRS 2 BN
translating foreign operations =% 3,819 (722)
Change in fair value of AfEEREZ ATE
available-for-sale investments poy - (3,877)
Impairment loss on available- AHEHERE 2 RE
for-sale investments BEENNESE
reclassified to loss for the year FE &8 - 3,877
3,819 (722)
Total comprehensive expense FEZHEH A%
for the year (542,992) (1,177,026)

Mascotte Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2014

SEER

Lith 2 E AR

HE-_ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIFE

2014 2013
—E—MEF —E—=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B FERT T
(Restated)
(& &:5)
Loss for the year attributable to: fE{HFEE518
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIE N (545,696) (1,176,604)
Non-controlling interests SEVE R = (1,115) 300
(546,811) (1,176,304)
Total comprehensive expense for [E{5F € 2 H X 258 ¢
the year attributable to: \
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIE N (541,974) (1,177,395)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR = (1,018) 369
(542,992) (1,177,026)
(Restated)
(&|T)
Basic and diluted loss per share AR EZA K # & 518 16  HKS$0.043&7x HK$1.00/87T
EHEKEERAT
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R-E—NFE=ZA=+—H

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
At 31 March 2014

31.3.2014 31.3.2013 1.4.2012
—E-pmFE —T-—=-F —T——-F
=R=+-B =ZA=+—H MmA—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
& FTET FET TET
(Restated) (Restated)
(&E5) (/=&75)
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment  ¥1% « BB L& 17 5,790 6,213 92,478
Investment properties REMHE 18 21,924 23,158 26,175
Intangible asset EBVAE 19 - - -
Prepaid lease payments BAMEERE 20 1,059 2,856 3,514
Available-for-sale investments At ﬁ‘%&,\ - - 69,868
Restricted bank deposits %Iﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%{ 21 5,379 5,611 5,492
Derivative financial instrument ~ {T4BBTE 22 - - 392,792
Rental deposits Mesl& 429 738 633
34,581 38,576 590,952
Current assets RBEE
Financial assets at fair value BEATEFABREZ
through profit or loss MBEE 23 15,103 - 154,795
Derivative financial instrument T4 8B TE 22 - 266,790 -
Inventories rE 24 4,413 4,762 8,446
Trade receivables [EWE 55018 25 14,620 30,016 25,750
Other receivables, deposits and ﬁﬁﬂﬂé”ﬁﬁﬁ CElE R
prepayments AN 25 8,265 9,154 9,576
Loan and interest receivables ﬁH&%?ﬂ&TH&%UE 26 10,215 - 33,359
Prepaid lease payments BENEERIE 20 344 701 692
Tax recoverable TH&Z@THIE - - 21
Bank balances and cash RITERLRS 27 59,102 52,710 208,181
112,062 364,133 440,820
Current liabilities REBAaE
Trade payables B F0A 28 5,647 6,434 12,804
Other payables and accrued Jﬁ}“&“ﬁmlﬁ&}%ﬁﬁ
charges 28 52,520 67,062 36,731
Borrowings {ﬁg 29 4,075 503,272 28,724
Tax payable FERIHIE 18,333 15,460 17,174
Obligations under finance lease BEMEE(E
— due within one year - R—F R 30 214 - -
Convertible bonds (II) AR ES () 31 54,509 - -
Convertible bonds R ES 32 11,570 - -
146,868 592,228 95,433
Net current (liabilities) assets & (& &) EE FE (34,806) (228,095) 345,387
Total assets less current EEABRREBEE
liabilities (225) (189,519) 936,339

34 Mascotte Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
At 31 March 2014

e BRI R

R-ZE—NF=A=+—H

31.3.2014 31.3.2013 1.4.2012
—B-mE —T-=F C—T——-F
=R=+-B =ZA=+—H MmA—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i 5 TAERT FET TET
(Restated) (Restated)
(&E5) (/=&75)
Non-current liabilities 58 h=Ni]
Convertible bonds AR E % 32 - 77,075 1,123,127
Consideration bonds REEH
— debt component - BEBEHS 31 - 773,174 1,182,297
Deferred tax liabilities EILFHIBAE 33 7,159 3,245 46,388
Borrowings Faiff 29 92,262 43,092 41,331
Obligations under finance lease BEMEE(E
— due after one year - R—FE 3 30 281 - -
99,702 896,586 2,393,643
Net liabilities SEFE (99,927) (1,086,105) (1,457,304)
Capital and reserves BARGEE
Share capital LN 34 153,461 18,414 456,678
Reserves e (259,086)  (1,109,813)  (1,918,907)
Equity attributable to owners of ZARQEIHEA A B
the Company (105,625) (1,091,399) (1,462,229)
Non-controlling interests iR 5,698 5,294 4,925
Total deficit HEu (99,927)  (1,086,105)  (1,457,304)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 32 to 139
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 27 June 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun
EBFBLE
DIRECTOR

FF

FEIZ19BE 25 HFRERLH
EFEgR _T—NFEAA=-+LH

Ttt/&&?:ﬁé T %’“‘ :
%i% = EA

Mr. Suen Yick Lun Philip

BaBiiE
DIRECTOR
EF

Wi FINEFER

EHEREARRAA

F5{2014
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2014

mEEmEER

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

Notes:

(f)

The special reserve represented the difference between the nominal amount of the share
capital issued by the Company and the aggregate nominal value of the share capital of
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation on 5 September 1997.

Reserve fund and enterprise expansion reserve are reserves required by the relevant laws
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") applicable to a subsidiary of the Company in
the PRC for enterprise development purposes.

Pursuant to a special general meeting held on 25 April 2012, the directors of the
Company authorised to credit the contributed surplus of HK$453,824,000 arising from
the capital reorganisation to set off the accumulated losses of the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2013.

On 11 April 2013, the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement with Hao
Tian Resources Group Limited (“Hao Tian”), an independent third party whereby the
Company agreed to sell, and Hao Tian agreed to purchase 531,575 shares of Sun Mass
Funding Corporation, representing approximately 5.82% of the issued share capital,
for a cash consideration of HK$50,000,000. The difference between the consideration
and the proportionate share of net liabilities attributable to the non-controlling interests
of HK$2,792,000 has been transferred to other reserve. Subsequently, on 8 November
2013, the Company entered into another sale and purchase agreement with Hao Tian
to buy back the aforesaid 531,575 shares of Sun Mass Funding Corporation for a cash
consideration of HK$20,000,000 of which HK$10,000,000 was paid during the year
ended 31 March 2014 and the remaining HK$10,000,000 will be due on 8 May 2014
and 8 August 2014 in two installments of HK$5,000,000 each. The difference between
the consideration paid and the carrying amount of the additional interest acquired by the
Group was debited to other reserve.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with the non-controlling interest shareholder of a subsidiary in the PRC in
respect of the acquisition of remaining 23.1% equity of Dongguan Tak Yak Leather Goods
Manufacturing Limited with nil consideration. The carrying amount of the additional
interest acquired by the Group of HK$484,000 has been transferred to other reserve.

The directors of the Company authorised to credit the other reserve of HK$28,578,000
arising from the disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary without losing control and the
acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary to set off the accumulated losses of the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2014.

Mascotte Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows o

For the year ended 31 March 2014

BERERER

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
“E-mE “E-=%
Note HK$"000 HK$'000
liE: T THL
(Restated)
(& E5)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES Bexn (541,206) (1,191,958)
Loss before tax BRRAEE
Adjustments for: BELUTHE
Depreciation of property, n% BERREINE
plant and equipment 1,629 2,188
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BRMSEEH 715 701
Allowance for inventory obsolescence RETSRE 326 617
Allowance for doubtful debts on trade BUESTERERE 38
receivables, net 835 3,711
Share-based payment expense R HEX 3,036 29,315
Loss on early redemptions of consideration ~ RFEEREEHEE
bonds \ - 161,237
Finance costs BSECR 153,266 389,462
Bank interest income FATFEHA (97) (78)
Net loss on disposal of property, plantand  H&EWX - BER#EL
equipment BEE 22 285
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease payments  HEBMNREHE 2 Wz (10,542) -
Net fair value (gain) loss on investment REMFLTEMR)BE
properties i (1,957) 2,848
Interest income from loans receivable ERETZHSMA (350) (555)
Dividend income L N - (41)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBLRZ & 37 - (1,025)
Loss on property, plant and equipment RRERGERS B EBCDRER
recognised in respect of manufacture of L% BEREECER
solar grade polycrystalline silicon business 12,730 102,532
Loss on other receivables and deposits pRELGERS REEBERER
recognised in respect of manufacture of ZEMERTERG 2 B8
solar grade polycrystalline silicon business - 4,342
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AtHEREZRERE
investments = 3,871
Fair value (gain) loss on derivative financial B AR E & (EHAT
instrument before alternation of terms of TERBIEZATE
convertible bonds (M=) BB (25,032) 126,002
Loss on alteration of terms of convertible BB ERET EE
bonds - 299,448
Loss on alternation of terms of FRREEFEHCER
consideration bonds 344,376 -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale MEARHERE W
investments 5 (2,009)
Operating cash flows before movementsin ~ ZEZ2EDRIZHEELTE
working capital (62,249) (68,501)
(Increase) decrease in loans and interest FMEF R R 8. (M) m D
receivables (10,000) 30,000
(Increase) decrease in financial assets at fair ~ EATEFABRE 7 HBEE
value through profit or loss (EMRS (15,103) 154,795
Decrease in inventories R 66 3,110
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables EIE ZER D (SEm) 14,561 (7,977)
Decrease (increase) in other receivables, HitEWEIE - e RBATERD
deposits and prepayments (% 1m) 1,232 (4,226)
Decrease in trade payables Eﬁﬁ“@”%%ﬂﬁﬁé\ (787) (6,370)
Decrease in other payables and accrued H e SOE KBS E AR
charges (23,559) (1,490)
Net cash (used in) from operations a2 (FRIMG AL FHE (95,839) 99,341
Interest received from loans receivable fel ‘%KZEWNJQ 135 3914
Dividend received from listed investments FiRE B E - 41
Tax paid EfHIE (118) (751)
EHMEEEERAA
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2014

me

BERER

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-|mF —T—=fF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i TAR TEL
(Restated)
(E5)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING ~ R& (K () fiSzB&FE
ACTIVITIES (95,822) 102,545
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEK
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HE% - BEREEZ
equipment i3I8 - 95
Proceeds from disposal of investment HER §%¥2Pﬁ§?ﬂlﬁ
properties 3,540 -
Proceeds from disposal of prepaid lease HERNHEENE MENE
payments 12,053 -
Net cash outflows from disposal of subsidiaries HEHRBARZESHLFE 37 - (1,249)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale  HERRLERE ZFTEHE
investments - 68,000
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ~ BENE - BERRE (13,167) (73,409)
Interest received B 47 & 97 78
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING REXBHE (MR RERE
ACTIVITIES 2,523 (6,485)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Proceeds from disposal of MEMBRAE BoEEN
partial interest in a subsidiary without losing I 2 K £ 7 Fr5 208
control 50,000 -
Acquisition of non-controlling interest of a WM B R Al 2 FEiRMER
subsidiary (10,000) -
Interest paid on borrowings, convertible B8 HRES
bonds, convertible bonds (Il) and AaRES () RREES
consideration bonds Z 78 (88,632) (122,091)
Repayment of obligations under finance lease ENEEHESTE (164) -
Interest paid on obligations under finance ~ BAMEELZEHFE
lease (10) -
Proceeds on exercise of share options TEBRE L FIERE = 5,822
Proceeds from issue of shares BRI 2 FiE; AIE 106,250 56,037
Proceeds from issue of shares under rights  RIEERETRG 2 FIEHE
issue 515,609 -
Shares issue expense BROBTHRY (25,978) (2,233)
Repayment of borrowings {amﬁ“ (503,075) (51,368)
New borrowings raised MEGZNEEE 55,000 615,000
Repayment of consideration bonds ENREES - (753,000)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ~ BEZEBFE(FE)zB&FE
ACTIVITIES 99,000 (251,833)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND B&RERBEEEEM(HD)FE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 5,701 (155,773)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ENzReRERRELER
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 52,710 208,181
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE PMEEXLHYE
CHANGES 691 302
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND  FA¢BERZEFEEER
OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTED BY BANK EROGEHRRAS
BALANCES AND CASH 59,102 52,710

Mascotte Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e B R

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

1. GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the section headed “Corporate Information” in the annual
report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the business of manufacture and sale of solar
grade polycrystalline silicon in Taiwan, which has not yet
commenced business as at 31 March 2014 and disposed after
the reporting period, investment and trading of securities,
provision of finance, property investment and manufacturing
and sale of accessories for photographic products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company have given due and careful
consideration to the future liquidity of the Group in light
of the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by approximately HK$34,806,000, recorded net liabilities
of HK$99,927,000 and it incurred loss of approximately
HK$546,811,000 for the year then ended. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as
the Group received a credit facility of HK$150,000,000 after
the end of the reporting period, which is repayable after 12
months from the end of the reporting period. Up to the date
of this report, HK$15,000,000 was drawn by the Company
under this facility. The directors of the Company believe that
the Group has sufficient funds to finance its current working
capital requirements and financial obligations in the next
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HEZZ—NF=A=1+—HILFE
3. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS BEFEARE

E-—_F=A=+—BItF

3.
The Group acquired the entire equity interest in Sun Mass &&=
§ - ANEB B UHE Sun Mass Energy

Energy Limited (“Sun Mass”) during the year ended 31 March

2012 which did not constitute a business combination and  Limited ([Sun Mass|) > & ZFp54E
accordingly was treated as asset acquisition at the time of HBEWEIWT THEKERESH  Bm
acquisition. In the consolidated financial statements for the RUERHE AEEWE - REZ
year ended 31 March 2012, the Group had recognised an —ZE——F=A=+—RHIFE>
intangible asset, representing the core technology relating #Z&8B&FHEx+ NEEBDRAUYE
to the manufacturing of solar grade polycrystalline silicon HEBZEFEERAEBEREL
("Core Technology”), and property, plant and equipment of  [5 g¢ % & fif 2 & O B o ([ #% 0
HK$2,494,113,000 and HK$229,145,000, respectively as at FMD)EME - MENREZED R
the date of acquisition. During the years ended 31 March 2,494,113,0007% JT 5 229,145,000
2012, 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2014, the Group has B -HE-_Z——F=HF=+4+—
incurred and capitalised HK$10,706,000, HK$102,532,000 H: - —Z—=F#=H=+—BAKk—
and HK$12,730,000, respectively for property, plant and Z=—mWE=A=+—H |t FEF
equipment. Since the acquisition, the directors of the AREEBEDFIFEDE BELZRHED
Company had been relying on the continuous representation & 4 & & 78 {£ 10,706,000 7T -
and assurance of Dr. Wu Yi-Shuen (“Dr. Wu"), the Chief 102,532,000 st X% 12,730,000 7%
Executive Officer and Chief Technical Officer of Sun Materials 7T - E#E{TREEIAR » A G E =X
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Sun Materials”), a subsidiary of Sun —EBHEFBRUZE+T([REL+T])(AE
Mass, that the modular production lines for manufacturing  Sun Mass 2 i85 LB R AR HD
solar grade polycrystalline silicon was in proper and HBRAG(([ILUERIE ) BITHEE
workmanlike condition and that the delay in production of  FHE 1742 B ) NETE L 2 bRt & &
the desired quantity of the polycrystalline silicon was due to 2% - B®E APRSEL R 2 St 2 1848
unforeseen circumstances. (FEEGRARFREMTAAL - M
TEZRECMTHEXLEREH
AR FER 2 IBSPTEL o
In early July 2013, Sun Materials received two anonymous WZ-Z—=%F+ 8%  [LEEFE
parcels in mail containing materials that suggested the test EMONBFELERE BT AR
runs carried out by Dr. Wu were faked. The directors of HREBE+THITHAEESBENSE
the Company then formed a special committee to study B o RKANRESSHEBANRERZ
the validity of such claims, and if so what the potential E&: LAl BEBEEEZZEEFZER
legal actions could be against those responsible. Dr. Wu  {f&&% " BIAlétHZEBEAEB
has resigned as Chief Executive Officer and Chief Technical EE 2B EEEZTTH A _E—=
Officer of Sun Materials since 26 July 2013. FHtAZt+BHB#E ZREITDET
LIRS R 2 FTIER 4B 3% e FR g 48 BS o
On 25 June 2014, the Company received an investigation RZZE—WF A=+ HH =«
report (“Investigation Report”) regarding the subject issue NAEE—HAETHRE(THAER
from the special committee comprising all the current L) AIREBERZES(KE
independent non-executive directors of the Company, Mr. BB RABIREE IIEHITE
Lam Ping Cheung, Andrew, a former ICAC investigator S FERAZEFAETENRTE L4
and a practicing solicitor and Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora, a R —ZHERMALEAMTE L)
solicitor. Pursuant to the Investigation Report, the committee W =ET - RBEFAETHE £ 8
concluded that the previous test run results were all faked @ TFEhAFIZAEERE 2T AR
and that Sun Materials was never in a position to be able to 5 - M B Ui B H4E - L5 R
carry out the manufacturing of solar grade polycrystalline AENALUETARGRE R Z i
silicon and hence would not generate the future economic #E AR - itk " BT €E4+ 213
benefits as asserted by Dr. Wu to the directors of the TLTRIAATESZETZ K KL EF
Company since the date of acquisition. I
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e B R

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

3. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (Cont’d) 3. BAEERARE)
As a result, the Company made prior year adjustments to it KRAFIgZOEMZ AR
retrospectively reflect the fact that all the assets that relate to E(REEEEE #@% MR N %
the Core Technology including the intangible asset, property, o= L,u;zﬁﬁgrqy TIBNE S )EL
plant and equipment and other receivables and deposits has BAEFEERAE  ZEZEEENKRER
had no value at all as of and since the date of acquisition. AN BB EEEEE gt
Prior year adjustments have also been made regarding costs E%E:Z'T—EE A=+—HIH
incurred to property, plant and equipment during the year E¥% - MENKEBEESE ZKANE
ended 31 March 2013 to retrospectively reflect the fact that .'jj;@&irgéﬁ DB MR E A
the additional expenditures incurred have had no value at all ZEBINE L 0 E&{‘Hﬂf{ﬁz%*g
and accordingly should have been expensed when the costs Ema /\\\?Eﬁzﬁﬁj’aifﬁ
were incurred.
The effects of prior year adjustments on the results for the BRFEEHAREHEE T —=F4=
year ended 31 March 2013 are as follows: A=+—HILFEXEZ2FEWT
Year ended
31 March 2013
HE-_T—=
:ﬂ E+_E
I
HK$'000
FET
Loss recognised in respect of manufacture of  FEELE KBS REAR Z SME £

solar grade polycrystalline silicon business R ZEE(HMEa)

(Note a) 1,828,517
Other expenses (Note b) HM RS2 (fEEDb) 26,187
Administrative expenses (Note ¢) 1T > (i aE ) 2,178
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the AR R#EA AELFEEIE

Company (Note d) (PfffzEd) 1,856,882

Notes:

(a) Amount represents the decrease in loss recognised in respect of intangible asset, property,
plant and equipment and other receivables and deposits relating to the manufacture of
solar grade polycrystalline silicon business.

(b) Amount represents the decrease in depreciation of property, plant and equipment
included in other expenses.

(c) Amount represents the decrease in depreciation of property, plant and equipment
included in administrative expenses.

(d) Amount represents the decrease in loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company.

GEE

(a) SEERBHRELGRERSREEBIETY
BE - ME - BE N R E M EYGRIE K]
SERRZEERD

a‘*apﬂkﬁﬁﬁ%%iz#@% BB KR E

\;; m}

?a FEATTRAX 2% - BE R&

T
A
BF SEIE
B

\;; n)a}

(d) SRELARFAEBARGFEEBERRD -

EHMEEEERAA
£352014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BHE_Z-—NF=A=+—RHILFE
3. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS (Cont’d) 3. BEIFFEFEE)

The cumulative effects of prior year adjustments on the EBAEEFABRUN _ZT——F0A

consolidated statement of financial position as at 1 April —HBE-_E—=%=H= —|— H 4z
2012 and 31 March 2013 are summarised as below: SBBART Z Bt E8 T

As at As at

1 April As at 31 March As at

2012 1 April 2013 31 March

(as originally 2012 (as originally 2013

stated) Prior  (as restated) stated) (as restated)

W-E--% year RZF-ZF  RI%F-= Prior year  RZF-=%

MA—-B  adjustments mA-B ZA=t-B  adjustments ZA=t-H
(RREMI) BAFEHE (B55) (RREMG) BAFEER (B E5])
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Th Th ThI Th Th Thn

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ~ 91% + BERRE 334,819 (242,341) 92,478 136,298 (130,085) 6,213
Intangible asset BARE 243479 (2,434,79) - 707,168 (707,168) -
Deposits paid for acquision ~ WEWE - BER
of property, plant and B PAMMHE
equipment 7,671 (7.671) - 4803 (4.803) -
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables, deposits and ~ E-fEUFTE -
prepayments HEY S 13,280 (3,704) 9,576 17316 (8,162) 9,154
Total effect on net assets EEFE/TE0E 2,790,566 (2,688,512) 102,054 865,585 (850,218) 15,367
Capital and reserves BALiE
Translation reserve [E it (60,248) (27,631) (87,879) (42,451) (46,219) (88,670)
Accumulated losses ZitER (1,007.414) (2,660,881) (3,668,295) (3,281,894) (803,999) (4,085,893)
Total effect on equity BR/PEEE (1,067,662) (2,688,512) (3,756,174) (3,324,345) (850,218) (4,174,563)
The effects of the prior year adjustments on the Group's basic LEEJ*é EHRAEEREFES
and diluted loss per share for the prior year are as below. b E VIV i3 J?E BoBWMT -
Year ended
31 March 2013
@I— = Ef'f
=RA=+—H
IEFE
HK$
BT
Figure before adjustments ERk-IE87 2.59
Prior year adjustments WEF R (1.59)
Figure after adjustments a8 B2 B 1.00

Mascotte Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2014

e B R

4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

The Group has applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12
HKFRS 13

HKAS 19

(as revised in 2011)
HKAS 27

(as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28

(as revised in 2011)
Amendments to HKAS 1

HK(IFRIC) - INT 20

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 cycle

Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities

Consolidated financial statements,
joint arrangements and disclosure of
interests in other entities: Transition
guidance

Consolidated financial statements

Joint arrangements

Disclosure of interests in other entities

Fair value measurement

Employee benefits

Separate financial statements

Investments in associates and joint
ventures

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

Stripping costs in the production phase
of a surface mine

Excepted as disclosed below, the application of the other new
and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

BE-T-—WE=A=+—BILtFE

4, BRI REETEBIBE
REZEAN(EH B EREE
Ay ])

RAFE  REEEHXERIATH

EAGHMAB(EAEAAMA

2 |)BH 2T MBI B BME

R ZER

BN BRELEL “TTNEFZR
CHEN) —E——FEH

BB ®RE
BRI FEME

BRM BRG] R - EIHH TG
FTHR(EFTR) BENIKEE

ﬁ%%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ ﬁé%%ﬁ%\
ﬁ%ﬁ% MER mﬂ1§%
ARG EA Bem RN
F12HREFTAR) h\

%%%%i%ﬁJ REUBRE
F105

BB EmE £ R HE

F115

BEH SRS AR BEREMER L
F125 gy

BBMEmEER| NEERE

F 135

BB ERNFE195% EEREA
(:%--i@@ﬂ

EBQHERNE 27 BUMKEE
(ZT——FEEF]

BB ENE Bf REE RN T R
(ZZ——FLBE]) AELEZERE

BRI ERS 157

2HEMEEBA

(1BETA) =S
BR(BRMGRE BABRSLERR
REZEY) 2RI

- ZEE205%
BRI XTI EEEN  RAFEER
E@ﬁT&”V TE BV BHE %
Eﬁﬁﬁ%.ﬁ”ﬁiﬁ@ﬂ@&ﬁﬁgz
MBEERBE LR AR S EE
BRI EETRIES
N4

EFESEEARAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e MR

BE_Z-—NF=—A=t—HILFE

4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of financial
statements (as a part of the Annual Improvement to
HKFRSs 2009-2011 cycle)

HKAS 1 requires an entity that changes accounting policies
retrospectively, or makes a retrospective restatement or
reclassification to present a statement of financial position as
at the beginning of the preceding period (third statement of
financial position). The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that
an entity is required to present a third statement of financial
position only when the retrospective application, restatement
or reclassification has a material effect on the information
in the third statement of financial position and that related
notes are not required to accompany the third statement of
financial position.

In current year, the Group has made prior year adjustments,
as disclosed in note 3, which has resulted in material
adjustments to the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 1 April
2012. The Group has therefore presented a third statement
of financial position as at 1 April 2012 without the related
notes.

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to
entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12 are more
extensive than those in the current standards. Details of the
disclosure of the Group’s non-wholly owned subsidiaries are
disclosed in note 46.

Mascotte Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2014

e B R

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(Cont’d)

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in
the current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of
guidance for, and disclosures about, fair value measurements.
The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad: the fair value measurement
requirements of HKFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which other
HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, subject to a few
exceptions. HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or
most advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions. A fair value measurement of a
non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is an exit price regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13 includes

extensive disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application.
with the transitional provisions of HKFRS 13, the Group has
not made any new disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for the
2013 comparative period (Please see note 36 and 18 for the
2014 disclosures). Other than the additional disclosures, the
application of HKFRS 13 has not had any material impact
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e MR

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1
“Presentation of items of other comprehensive income”.
Upon the adoption of the amendments to HKAS 1, the
Group’s “statement of comprehensive income” is renamed
as the “statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income”. Furthermore, the amendments to HKAS 1 require
additional disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive
income section such that items of other comprehensive
income are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will
not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis — the amendments do not change the option to present
items of other comprehensive income either before tax or net
of tax. The amendments have been applied retrospectively,
and hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive
income has been modified to reflect the changes. Other than
the above mentioned presentation changes, the application
of the amendments to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact
on profit or loss, other comprehensive income and total
comprehensive income.

The Group has not early applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and ~ Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9

HKFRS 7 and transition disclosures’
Amendments to Investment entities'
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisition of interests
in joint operations
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of acceptable methods of
and HKAS 38 depreciation and amortisation’
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions’
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Tinancial assets and financial
liabilities
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets'
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of derivatives and

continuation of hedge accounting'

Mascotte Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e B R

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(Cont’d)
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-
2012 cycle®
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-
2013 cycle’
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments’
HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies'

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

3 Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be determined when the
outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited exceptions

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
above new and revised HKFRSs will have a material effect on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments and investment property, which are measured
at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below. Historical cost is generally based on fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BHE_Z-—NF=A=+—RHILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) BAREFHHEE)

19,1

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset AFETIRAEHEMELXEER

or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between MFERZ SR EEE W o

market participants at the measurement date, regardless of (EEBEFEBLNZEBR @ Mm% E

whether that price is directly observable or estimated using BRELEENERKNFEFRARS—H

another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value (B ii{h:t c EHHELXEENE S

of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the HEAEESXBBETEREEESL

characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants EsB&2Z21% @ B ANEEFEKN 4

would take those characteristics into account when pricing BESBGEZ AV EHSZEZE

the asset or liability at the measurement date. A fair value 42t IEBIEEE 2 AN FEE 28]

measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a QXEMSE2EENRERZEES

market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits Z| S5 kSRERE - L EE
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by sellingit EF X2 -0 FHAZEESINHES

to another market participant that would use the asset in its FEREREZTMELEEMELS Y

highest and best use. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is an exit A& EW 35 - BB AL RS 13

price regardless of whether that price is directly observable or  S§fBE N 2 AFEAREE @ Tmix

estimated using another valuation technique. ERELEENERKuFRS—
HERM GG -

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in R EGEEHEREXAGTTE R

these consolidated financial statements is determined on such KWEBEHNZAFE IR EERE

a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are & » 1 EH BB KR ELER|FE 2 SR & [F

within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are AN NRRS - BELHLELE

within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have 178 &BE RN AES 5 AR E QT

some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as B EEUBIIEAFEZEE -

net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36. BN E A SRS 2 58 7 Al 4 I0 %
BEXEBEGTERIEI6HR 2 ERE
BBERAN ©

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value |4 B EREmMS © A FE

measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based =EREANFEEE 7 AZIE 2

on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value REENEAFEE L ASIEE

measurements are observable and the significance of the H&E&ZZFEM B AEE—4 - F

inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are = RFE =45 @ sFFWOT -

described as follows:

e level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active o F—LEAHBIELEEENRT=
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity HHE LA SR EEN A
can access at the measurement date; ERERME ZREB(REH

)

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices o F-_NGAKEIHREEXE
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset EEENFEEHAEE 28 A
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and HIE(F—FABENRER

5h) 5 R

e level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or o F=LHAHELREENBE

liability. Z AR B AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e B R

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
The principal accounting policies are set out below:
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e MR

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the proportionate share of net assets attributable
to the non-controlling interests and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of or dissolves a subsidiary, a
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or a joint venture.

Mascotte Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e B R

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’'s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group's rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably).

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting policy for
leasing below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e MR

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Intangible assets
Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on
the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2014

e B R

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Intangible assets (Cont’d)
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
when the intangible assets are ready for their intended
use of production (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) and buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under
construction as described below) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than properties under
construction less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that
ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term,
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item at the date
of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in properties revaluation reserve. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment property are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item
is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or,
if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs (see the
accounting policy above).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Leasing (Cont’d)
Leasehold land and building (Cont’d)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis,
except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, the entire lease is generally classified
as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income, in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

Mascotte Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of translation reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme/the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as expenses
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e MR

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Mascotte Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the directors have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group’s investment properties are not
held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on
investment properties, the directors have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group
has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair
value of investment properties as the Group is not subject
to any income taxes in relation to the fair value changes on
disposal of its investment properties.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs to completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"”) and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Mascotte Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e B R

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near future; or

e it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend earned on the financial assets.

5. BERESTHERE)

BT E(Z)

BIBEE (&)

R FEFGIA Bz R DFEE
HHEEERNBIEEEXETAER
¥ﬁ#AE@$M'W?$%f@
FEFFABRERE -

WA BEEB TYIEN BIFEAS
HIEEE -

X

N K & B

> Hr
- )qﬁ:|
e

i
B
30

e 1B

okr
=

fm

Bn
S5 ) 1)
| &
I

D i
N

RS
A%

2

&

o

=

e

¢

gg»

i
BT

/i
<l
St

g

=

o

pu|

aw
e EBRAWHEEZD
A] BRI R R T
MBAERIFEENBAERSI)

AR T35 /RTEA%)J *ﬁﬁﬁ R 18 TE
Z%TE’A$TE.:H\TE\

/|

T
b =
N HO|
X1
NZ

wiks

| 19

gLl
>
B\

ibit
(R
mE
frit
i
o 55

[ ]
=13
Ny

)
o=
o)
)ﬂ]};]l
i

SWHE | @
&

B 55 3t ) S

35],

(un)

[ANN

W

piily

T
O AN\ N/ S ST\
S 1 A I S S

CmyEs
5+ 58

FN
M35 I 2 5
33 S k2

%

s

N

5

¢$ﬂ

2

Sy

my D
g

o

WS S |

‘m
&
e

1} =D
puully

ik o
e

fEW*BT (

<

N\

[
N
|
5

m

w

g\e}
jﬁﬁn

k"\
Al e & T
- >

2 B8 K

=30
~// =
o HT
\|

/l
Znp
s I |
230

iﬁ%mﬁ}l—i%
E'I\_
i

W H = 2

cd
Pa
ol
—+ sm
B 35

5
E=11T!

~—

o

mE

D> I im I
m}

itk —~ g
Nty
T
Bl S
s~

o i

\—\-4—

SR EETY
FETEM3I A
ELHMEZENE
azw S E R

7 Bk BN 2 A {A] I%

\

o 3 B D R T
o BRI
e
@ o B
B ey
55 53 >
St Bl
mﬁwmm

EHMEEEERAA
£352014

63



64

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade receivables, other receivables,
loans and interest receivables, restricted bank deposits and
bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e disappearance of an active market for that financial
assets because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

Mascotte Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)
Financial instruments (Cont’'d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables and loans and interest
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When a debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Convertible bonds contains liability and equity components
and early redemption option

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain
both the liability (together with the early redemption option
which is closely related to the host liability component) and
conversion option components are classified separately into
respective items on initial recognition in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount
of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is classified as an equity
instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component
is determined using the prevailing market interest of similar
non-convertible debts. The difference between the gross
proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds and the fair
value assigned to the liability component is allocated to the
conversion option that meets the definition of an equity
instrument, and is included in equity (convertible bonds equity
reserve).

Mascotte Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)

Convertible bonds contains liability and equity components
and early redemption option (Cont’d)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible bonds equity reserve until the embedded option
is exercised (in which case the balance stated in convertible
bonds equity reserve will be transferred to share premium).
Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry date,
the balance stated in convertible bonds equity reserve will
be released to the accumulated losses. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of
the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.

Extinguishing the liability component with equity instrument

When the contractual terms of an instrument (that contain
a substantial liability component) are modified such that
the revised terms would result in the Group issuing equity
instruments to the counterparty to extinguish the liability,
the Group derecognises the financial liability (or part of
the financial liability) from the consolidated statement of
financial position. The Group measures the fair value of
equity instruments issued, unless the fair value cannot be
reliably measured, in which case the equity instruments would
be measured to reflect the fair value of the financial liability
extinguished.

The difference between the carrying amount of the liability
extinguished and the fair value of the new instruments issued
is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables and accrued charges, Consideration Bonds and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives, including embedded derivatives which are
separated from non-derivative host contract, are initially
recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair
value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the
derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument,
in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss
depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Embedded derivative

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
tested as separate derivatives when they meet the definition
of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Mascotte Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees and others
providing similar services as employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimated, with a corresponding
adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Mascotte Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e B R

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision makers, for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focusing on types of goods or services delivered
or provided.

6. HEER

MDA FHITE B (A 2R
%) 2 WMEEE &R B R 7 1
ZHo SR ETRD N BN R
2 S RIS AR ¢

Specifically, the Group's reportable and operating segments ~ EL881M 5 - RIE & 8 B # i 5 2 A
under HKFRS 8 are as follows: %%’?}ﬁ REBZAZERNREEDE
(i) Solar grade polycrystalline silicon: Manufacture and sale () AX[G8EHR % @i HERBEE
of solar grade polycrystalline silicon, which has not yet KGR ZdE RN
commenced business as at 31 March 2014. FZHA=4+—H ' ZoE®HX
PR N
(ii) Investments: Investment and trading of securities (i) ®E : WEKEEFES
(i) Loan financing: Provision of loan financing services (i) EF@ME  EHERBE RS
(iv) Property investment: Holding investment properties for  (iv) ¥ E&RE&E : RRIMHEE KER
rental and capital appreciation REMBERENE ‘
(v) Manufacture and sale of accessories: Manufacture and  (v) ZENIHEERHF  RENLHEHE
sale of accessories for photographic products RAEEmEH
Segment revenue and results DERENEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover and MU FNARZAIEHLEEHEEH 2
results by reportable and operating segments. REESEBRFED -
For the year ended 31 March 2014 Bz _—_F-WF=HA=+—HI
FE
Solar grade Manufacture
polycrystalline and sale of
silicon Loan Property  accessories
KB#HR  Investments financin investment HER Total
SRk k% e NERE HERK gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR THR THER TER THR THR
Segment revenue PEhE
Sales of goods HESm - - - - 107,874 107,874
Investment income RE)
Interest income on loan B EF 278
receivable WA - - 350 - - 350
Rental income HalA - - - 1122 - 1,122
Change in fair value of ~ RAFEFAEEER
financial assets at FVTPL ~ BIBEEZATEES
(Note) (B3 - 1,115 - - - 1,115
- 1,115 350 1122 107,874 110,461
Seqment (loss) profit HR(BR)EN (36,278) 1,070 350 11,224 (4,858) (28,492)
Unallocated corporate AARRFFRL
expenses (41,636)
Unallocated other income ~ RAEEMKA o7
Unallocated finance costs & B BERA (151,831)
Change in fairvalue of ~ FT4BBETAL
derivative financial LYERE
instrument 25,032
Loss on alteration of terms B X R EE% R
of consideration bonds LER (344,376)
Loss before tax BHEEE (541,206)
EHMEEEERAA

F32014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e MR

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
Segment revenue and results (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Restated)

6. PDEENE)
SEURE R 4B ()

BEr—_F—=F=H=+—HIF
E(AZEZ)

Solar grade Manufacture

polycrystalline and sale of

silicon Loan Property accessories
AB&ER  Investments financing ~ investment HER Total
HEH RE ERE NERE HERH o5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000
TETL TETL T TATL TETL TETL

Segment revenue PRYE
Sales of goods HEER - - - - 163,270 163,270
Investment income RERA
Dividend income on held-  #{EEEREL
for-trading investments ~ BREMA - 41 - - - 41
Interest income on loans ~ EMEZZF&
receivable WA - - 555 - - 555
Rental income ?ﬁiW\ - - - 2,590 - 2,590
Change in fair value of  BRAFEFABRE 281K
financial assets at FVIPL ~ EEZATEE
(Note) (B3t - (19,843) - . - (19,843)
Intra-group rental income  EERAS WA - - - 1815 - 1815
- (19,802) 555 4,405 163,270 148,428
Elimination i (1,815)
146,613
Segment (loss) profit HR(ER) &N (137,058) (24,105) 543 (1322) 4,750 (157,192)
Unallocated corporate AARLHE
expenses 5T (64,020)
Unallocated other income KA EEAMKA 3,605
Unallocated finance costs KA EBERA (387,664)
Change in fairvalue of T4 BBIAY
derivative financial NEEY
instrument (126,002)
Loss on early redemption of EEEEREEHS
consideration bonds JER (161,237)
Loss on alteration of terms ~ E Al ARER
of convertible bonds JER (299,448)
Loss before tax BHAER (1,191,958)

Note: The change in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL included realised gain of
HK$11,015,000 (2013: loss of HK$19,843,000) for the year ended 31 March 2014. The
remaining portion of approximately HK$9,900,000 for the year ended 31 March 2014 was
unrealised loss on unlisted convertible bonds designated at FVTPL.

Mascotte Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014

M 2= —WNF=A=+— amirzm
ATFEFAEZEZ2VBEEZAFEE
@ﬁ%éa“‘*iﬁuﬁzmﬂ015000,%71(7?
— =4 : [51819,843,00087L) - HE_-Z
—ME=ZA=1+-—HLEEZHTHIAN
9,900,000 7t BiZ A FEFAEBFEEZIE
EWABRRESZBREEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e B R

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)
Segment revenue and results (Cont’d)

Segment revenue includes proceeds from sales of goods,
dividend income on held-for-trading investments, interest
income on loans receivable and rental income. In addition,
the chief operating decision makers also consider change in
fair value of financial assets at FVTPL (excluding derivative
financial instrument) as segment revenue.

Intra-group rental income is charged with reference to market
rate.

6. DRER(E)

DEWRERFEEE)

N

DR B HE S a2 FT 5K
H BFEEEREZRBIA - E
WERZHMBWAREE KA - it
S BREEERRENALRATE
SAABmERCMBEE 2 N FEE
HIARETEVEIAR) AR
EBRNESWATIZEMGL XM
UG ER o

Segment (loss) profit represents the loss from/profit earned D fE(EE)GEFIES D HEMES 2
by each segment without allocation of certain other income, E#E BEZ&F W ADEET
change in fair value of derivative financial instrument, EfWKA - 5TEF BT EZ AFE
unallocated corporate expenses, loss on early redemption of & & - KO AFHY - IEEE D
consideration bonds, loss on alteration of terms of convertible R{EESZEE FXIHEES
bonds and consideration bonds and certain finance FRREBEHFKAZEEBEAETHE
costs. This is the measure reported to the chief operating  FRZN o i Jh A& & LB REE 2R
decision makers for the purposes of resource allocation and MNU{EHE RS A RRBFHoEE
performance assessment. A o
Segment assets and liabilities THEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and AR ARAISHLNLENEED 2
liabilities by reportable and operating segments: REBEENBED
As at 31 March 2014 RZZF-AF=ZHA=+—H
Solar grade Manufacture
polycrystalline and sale of
silicon Loan Property  accessories
KBER  Investments financin investment BEL  Consolidated
bRk R& e NERE HERH )

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
TER TERL TERL TER TER TET

ASSETS 8E
Segment assets NEEE 1,233 15,151 10,215 21,924 28,637 83,160
Unallocated property, plant  £2&E%% - BER

and equipment 1 163
Unallocated other ROREMENHE

receivables, deposits e RENE

and prepayments 4,218
Bank balances and cash ~ HiT&S# RS 59,102
Consolidated total assets ~ HALEAE 146,643
LIABILITIES &8
Seqment liabilities PRAR 46,455 - - - 33,441 79,896
Unallocated other payables RAEEHERER

and accrued charges BT ER 15,103
Unallocated borrowings ~ RAREE 60,000
Tax payable ERHE 18,333
Convertible bonds R ES 11,570
Convertible bonds (Il AHRER() 54,509
Deferred tax liabilities ERLHEsR 1%
Consolidated total liabilities %A BELE 246,570

EHEKEERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2014

e MR

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d)

As at 31 March 2013 (Restated)

6. DHEER(E)
DEWERKE(E)

R-FE—=F=ZF=+—H(EEZ)

Solar grade Manufacture
polycrystalline and sale of
silicon Loan Property accessories
KBS Investments financing investment B8R Consolidated
Sl e gHRE mERE HERH 4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T i T Thn Thn T
ASSETS 8E
Segment assets NEEE 6,348 - - 23,158 46,239 75,745
Unallocated property, E0ENE  BE
plant and equipment R 203
Unallocated other AOREMENGE
receivables, deposits e RENTE
and prepayments 7,261
Derivative financial FTAMKIA
instrument 266,790
Bank balances and cash ~ H1TEBRES 52,710
Consolidated total assets kA BELE 402,709
LIABILITIES &
Seqment liabilities PEAR 74,939 - - - 35,164 110,103
Unallocated other payables RAEEMERZER
and accrued charges Eif 2R 5151
Unallocated borrowings ~ AAEEE 504,000
Tax payable ERHE 15,460
Convertible bonds R ES 77,075
Consideration bonds - XEE% - BEHA
debt component 173,174
Deferred tax liabilities ELHERE 3,045
Consolidated total liabilities %A & B % 1,488,814

For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and

allocating resources between segments:

e all assets are allocated to reportable and operating
segments, other than certain property, plant and
equipment, certain other receivables, deposits and
prepayments, derivative financial instrument and bank

balances and cash; and

e all liabilities are allocated to reportable and operating
segments, other than certain other payables and accrued
charges, tax payable, convertible bonds (llI), convertible
bonds, consideration bonds — debt component, certain

borrowings and deferred tax liabilities.

Mascotte Holdings Limited
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E-NE=—A=1+—HIFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014 HEZ

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. DHEER(E)
Other segment information Hithn BE R
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BEr —E—mMF=A=1—HIFE
Solar grade
poly- Manufacture
arystalline and sale of
silicon loan  Property accessories  Segment
KBER  Investments  finanding  investment HER total  Unallocated  Consolidated
58k RE  ERRE  MERE  MERE AR R ke
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
Thn Thn THL TH Tén Thn Thn Thn
Amounts included in measure AR ERFAEED
of segment profitor lossor ~ HREEREEEEERY

segment assets and liabilities:

Addition to property, plant and

1.k
05 BERRBLRE

equipment 12,730 - - - 1,101 13,831 18 13,849
Loss on property, plant and SRR BEASAERE

equipment recognised in respect  BERZ 1% - BRR

of manufacture of solar qrade ~ HEZ B

polycrystalline siicon business 12,730 - - - - 12,730 = 12730
Allowance for nventory REFERRE

obsolescence - - - - 326 326 - 326
Allowance for doubtful debts on BB EE REREFE

trade receivables, net - - - - 835 835 - 835
Depreciation of property, plant ~ 11%  BERAE277E

and equipment - - - - 1,585 1,585 4 1,629
Net loss on disposal of property, HENE - BERREL 3R

plant and equipment 2 - - - 1 2 - 2
Net fair value gain on investment  #&#% ¢ ATEFNE

properties - - - (1,957) - (1,957) - (1,957)
Amortsation of prepaid lease ~ BREEEEEH

payments - - - - 15 115 - 115
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease £ ERREEFTE Wi

Dayments - - - - (10,542) (10,542) - (10,542)
Finance costs BERK 1332 9 - - 10 1,435 151,831 153,266
Amounts reqularly provided ~ RE B EEEERRX M

to the chief operating BRFADERADEES

decision makers but not AREERAEEEERY

included in the measure of £ :

segment profit or loss or

segment assets and

liabilities:
Loss on alteration of terms of ~ BHREEAATZEE

consideration bonds - - - - - - 344376 344376
Fair value gain on dervative  FTEBBTEZATENG

financial instrument - - - - - - (503)  (2503)

EHMEEEERAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BHE_Z-—NF=A=+—RHILFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 6. DHEERE)
Other segment information (Cont’d) B pEER(Z)
For the year ended 31 March 2013 (Restated) BE—FT-—=—F=-HA=+—HILFE
(ZEZ)
Solar grade
poly- Manufacture
aystalline and sale of
silicon Loan Property  accessories Seqment
REER  estments  fnand g investment qEh fotal  Unallocated Consohda e
hEH & ‘gj’ NERE  BERR \iﬁ,ﬁ%.ﬁ FOR F8
RO HKSOO0  HCSODD KGO0 HKSOOD  HKSOOD KD HKSOO
TR TR %7& A1 T T TETL TR

Amounts included in measure AR ERAAEET,
of segment profit or loss or ~ AEEERAKEREEY
segment assets and liabilities: &% :
Addition to property, plantand %+ BERFEFE
equipment 102,532 - -
Loss on other receivablesand  SEEABHASA i%ﬁ*ﬁ
deposits recognised in respect s EHENGE
of manufacture of solar grade uTiZEﬁﬁ
polycrystaline siicon business 4342 - - - - 4,302 - 430
Loss on property, plantand ~ HREAREASEEFHE
equipment recognised n respect R/ 11Z  BE
of manufacture of solar qrade Rk EE

1,895 104427 80 104,507

=

3‘»5"5

polycrystalline siicon business 102,532 - - - - 102,532 - 102,532
Allowance for inventory REGFEER

obsolescence - - - - 617 617 - 617
Allowance for doubtful debts on - ERE 558 REAE TS

trade receivables, net - - - - 3 3711 - 3711
Depreciation of property, plant 9% - BERAE 2178

and equipment - - - 1286 1460 2,746 4 2,788
Net loss on disposal of property, HiEM% - BERRELSEE

plant and equipment - - - - 25 25 30 285
Fair value loss on investment k&2 7 A TEEE

properties - - - 2848 - 2848 - 2848
Amortsation of prepaid lease BN EFEZEH

payments - - - - 101 101 - 101
Impairment loss on available-for- T HERE 2 HEEE

sale investments - 3877 - - - 3877 - 3877
Gain on disposal of available-for- HETELERE 2

sale investments - (2,009) - - - (2,009) - (2,009)
Finance costs BARL 759 39 - 1,000 - 1798 387 664 389,462

Amounts reqularly provided to E I EEEERRHRL
the chief operating decision ~ BFi A2BRRIAEED
makers but not included FEEERERHEERY
in the measure of segment %
profit or loss or segment
assets and liabilities:

Loss on early redemption of  REBEREEEEE

consideration honds - - - - - - 161,237 161,237
Loss on alteration of terms of ~~ BHAAREHER/ER

convertible honds - - - - - - 299,448 299,448
Fair value loss on derivative  fTEBBIAZATEER

financial instrument - - - - - - 126,002 126,002

Mascotte Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e B R

BE_Z-—NF=—A=t—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

6. DHEER(E)
=

Geographical information = &R
The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong, the PRC ~ ARBZZEMNEE - PEMA
and Taiwan. & o
Information about the Group's revenue from external ABRASKENRAYIES 2 W Ty
customers is presented based on the location at which the I&fTiEBSRHEEMARBF IS
goods or services are delivered or provided. Information about %l - BEANEEIFRHEE 2 B
the Group’s non-current assets is presented based on the  JMREEZMAEMZT] o
geographical location of the assets.
The Group’s total revenue from sales of goods by $’§lhziﬂzlu:niﬂ’ ZEmiEE B
geographical location are detailed below: =S U
2014 2013
—E-mF —ET—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET
Europe &M 45,989 56,112
United States of America EFEREREH 15,013 26,825
Hong Kong B8 8,154 16,048
PRC s 20,466 39,113
Japan SN 13,031 17,784
Others HAb 5,221 7,388
107,874 163,270
The Group’s non-current assets"* by geographical location ~ A% EZ% Fﬁﬁﬁziﬂl%ﬂ ZIEME
of the assets are detailed below: BE"HRmT
2014 2013
—E—F —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'OO_O
FHET FHET
(restated)
(& &E5)
PRC GE 27,313 31,023
Hong Kong B 1,460 1,204
Taiwan B 429 738
29,202 32,965
Note: Non-current assets exclude financial instruments. M ERBEETBREYBIA -
EHEKEERAT

£352014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2014

e MR

BE_Z-—NF=—A=t—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years RIEERFE SKREBEDHEKZER

contributing over 10% of the segment revenue of the Group  10% WA FBEIZ BRSO
are as follows:

2014 2013

—E-F —F—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THT THETT

Customer A ZEER! -2 22,466

Customer B’ BEEZ' 11,576 =2

1 Revenue is generated from manufacture and sale of accessories

1 Yoz ok B BLE S B RC AT -

2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of total segment revenue of the 2 ARG S ARNER 2 BOBEKETHR10%
Group. LA ESB -
7. OTHER INCOME 7. HAWA
2014 2013
—E—EF —T—=
HK$(00_0 HK$'\OO_O
FTHET T
Bank interest income 17 A A 97 78
One off compensation from lessor  Ft#2 F 4 EFH &R HAE A
for early termination of lease ER—RIERRE - 3,000
Sundry income FETBUWA 622 2,793
719 5,871
8. LOSS RECOGNISED IN RESPECT OF MANUFACTURE OF 8. Hi&E ké%g‘éﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%fr%
SOLAR GRADE POLYCRYSTALLINE SILICON BUSINESS R ZER
2014 2013
—E—F —E—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
(Restated)
(f8&5)
Loss on property, plant and N ERN A A
equipment E518 12,730 102,532
Loss on other receivables and Hip M RIERET 22
deposits 518 - 4,342
12,730 106,874
The amounts represent costs incurred for property, plant and @%ﬁ?‘é@?ﬁig—iﬁﬁg = —
equipment and other receivables and deposits attributable to  F=HA=1+—H JJ:@E”TZ/L\%ZTTTZ
the Core Technology during the years ended 31 March 2013 3 - JB/E Mk g B H At JiE U 3%
and 2014. As explained in note 3, these expenditures are [ &] & FTE £ 2 B AR © 3 40 IZH;:EB
expensed when they are incurred. PRERE - WEMSNEERD X -

Mascotte Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e B R

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HttRaKEBE
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET F#ET
Loss on alteration of terms of B MBRESGERZ
convertible bonds (Note 32) BB (FIFE32) - (299,448)
Loss on alteration of terms of FRREEHKERZ
consideration bonds (Note 31) BB (FIEE31) (344,376) -
Loss on early redemptions of REBRRKERSFZ
consideration bonds (Note 31) BB (F5E31) - (161,237)
Fair value gain (loss) on derivative {/TEEM‘KI/EZ
financial instrument (before N EWE(EE)
alternation of terms of consideration (EE&REE%T%%\ET)
bonds) (Note 22) (PfiaE22) 25,032 (126,002)
Allowance for doubtful debts on JEWE S RIB RAREEE
trade receivables, net ik (835) (3,711)
Net fair value gain (loss) on WEMF 2 AT ERE
investment properties (Note 18) (E518 ) F=E (f15E18) 1,957 (2,848)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At H&E&E 7 A
investments E 18 - (3,877)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale &_'l’ﬁ_ﬁ HERE 2
investments - 2,009
Net loss on disposal of property, ﬁ’E%% B K2
plant and equipment E 1B F R (22) (285)
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease HERNEERE Y
payments e 10,542 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B ARz WiE
(Note 37) (PH5E37) = 1,025
Net foreign exchange gain HNE W SRR 190 2,253
(307,512) (592,121)
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BE KA
2014 2013
— —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FHET
Interests on: ATEBEZAE
— Bank and other borrowings wholly - /ABAﬁﬁW;‘z%ﬂE%Z
repayable within five years RITRHEAMEE 10,205 21,712
— Bank borrowings not wholly BANE L RBEEY
repayable after five years RITIEE 890 758
Interest on finance lease wholly ARAFANEREEZ
repayable within five years BEMHERE 10 -
Effective interest expense on: UNTEBEZMNERAX :
— Convertible bonds (Note 32) - A ]mRES (HE32) 8,965 155,688
— Consideration bonds-debt - REEH
component (Note 31) —E%E D (HsE31) 128,429 211,304
— Convertible bonds (Il) (Note 31) — Al IR %%(II)(WE 31) 4,767 -
153,266 389,462
EHMEEEERAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2014

e MR

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

11. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) CREDIT

1. FrE%i (FA)ER

2014 2013
—E-mF —ET—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Current tax: BIHATR IR :
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBMNFH - (232)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax RERXATER (2,786) (1,226)
Overprovision in prior years: W FEHBRERE
Hong Kong B8 - 2,522
(2,786) 1,064
Deferred tax (expense) credit for the FEELERIE(Fx)ER
year (Note 33) (MI7E33) (2,819) 14,590
(5,605) 15,654

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in
the consolidated financial statements as the Group has no
assessable profit in Hong Kong for the current year.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Pursuant to relevant Taiwan Income Tax Law, the corporate
income tax rate of the Taiwan subsidiaries is 17%. No
provision for Taiwan Income Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the subsidiaries
incorporated in Taiwan had no assessable profit for both
years.

Mascotte Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014

BB G WBWWIEF“Z%EM*
%‘%%R/MIJ& 16.5% st &

HRAEBERNEERERNETEE
ERESREG A - B AR S B RS

HRPELBBHNEHRER -

1595 70 B 10 2 BT 15 Bk ([ 2 P 18
BiE ) B % T 2 5 s
B B m R B 2 B R 3
525% o

BIEARR S B ERUE - A BB
DA ZLEMERBER17% o i
WIE A B A 8 A =) Y
B 4F 9 fm e SR B B - a3
ORI (Fl B ATE B



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2014

e B R

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

11. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) CREDIT (Cont’d)

The income tax (expense) credit for the year can be reconciled
to the loss before tax per the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

1. % (B ER(#E)

FEASH(F )& % A SR iRz
SR &ﬁﬁﬂiﬁl&k#&%z ?R

RIESEEIARIAT ¢

2014 2013
—E-NF —T-=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
(Restated)
(&2&7%))
Loss before tax Fx 75 5T BT 18 (541,206) (1,1791,958)
Tax at income tax rate of 16.5% LTSI 16.5%
(2013: 16.5%) (ZE—=%:16.5%)
e 89,299 196,673
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A~ A 154 5 & 2 B 75 2 28
for tax purpose (86,688) (137,102)
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBMBA 2R IFHE
for tax purpose 4,156 596
Overprovision in prior years M FE 2 B - 2,522
Tax effect of deductible temporary — RIERA FHIRE R IE =58
differences not recognised 22 (2,100) (17,634)
Tax effect of tax losses not AERBMIEBERETE
recognised (9,783) (29,038)
Utilisation of tax losses previously Z BIARMER Z RKEH
not recognised Tt I8 E 18 455 -
Effect of different tax rates for EHM A AR EE 2
subsidiaries operating in other LN MNEIRN RS
jurisdictions ZRE (944) (363)
Income tax (expense) credit FEGH(A)ER
for the year (5,605) 15,654
EHMEEEERAA

F5{2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e MR

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

12. FEEE

2014 2013
—E-mF —ET—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(f8&%)
Loss for the year has been arrived  FEEEZING (GTA)
at after charging (crediting): ARNIEE -
Staff costs 8 T A
Directors’ emoluments EEME
— fees and other emoluments - e NEMME 7.383 24,122
Other staff costs HAh 8 TR
— salaries, allowances and bonus - ¥ EBL NI4T 42,939 48,481
— retirement benefits scheme — RIREFIF I K
contributions 2,278 2,288
Equity-settled share-based AR E 2 DR
payments (included in (GTATTHAX)
administrative expenses) (Note 35)  (Bff5F35) (135) 7,876
52,465 82,767
Equity settled share-based payments ?*%EEF?Z%‘ mAEE
granted to consultants (included in  Z &M 5K
other expenses) (Note 35) (.:Jrj\ﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁii)( 13 35) 961 3,823
Amortisation of prepaid lease TET R B FRIE 2 B iE
payments 715 701
Cost of inventories recognised as an R &R X 2 FEK A
expense (included allowance for (BEHZE—_Z—NE
inventory obsolescence amounted “A=1+—BIEFE
to HK$326,000 (2013: HK$617,000) ZPREFEEEAE
for the year ended 31 March 2014) ?26, OO%%;E
617,000 7T)) 74,019 114,194
Auditor’s remuneration ZEET B & 2,330 2,242
Depreciation of property, plant W% - B kEE 2
and equipment (included in WEGIATBAX)
administrative expenses) 1,629 2,788
Gross rental income from WEMHE 2B WALBER
investment property (1,122) (2,590)
Less: Direct operating expenses from B RFREEHESWAZ
investment property that generate WEMHE T BEEE
rental income during the year X 1,070 1,431
(52) (1,159)
Research and development cost RAF T 2 HEEK AR
recognised as an expense (included (5t AEABFI)
in other expenses) (Note) (P aE) 8,980 11,395
Investment income S E WA
— dividend income on held-for- - FHEEBREZ
trading investments ngﬂﬁl - (41)
— interest income on loans - BIRERZFEWA
receivable (350) (555)

Note: Included in other expenses are expenses incurred for the solar grade polycrystalline silicon
business of HK$8,980,000 (2013: HK$11,395,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HEZZ—NF=A=1+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS 13. EENTHEARMS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and Bk B & FE E 1T 4E & & B

the chief executive were as follows: 20 :
Executive directors
4783
Peter Lo Suen Shum
Temple Wong ~ YuenWa  Yick Lun Eddie Lau Wong  Ching Yee
2014 Whitelam ~ Danny F. Peter Philip Woo  KingHang ~ YuenMui  Jennifer
t3-1f il Eng kiR HER ¥t Efife HHE

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TiEn Tin Tin TEL TET TR TR TiEn

(Note a) (Note i) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note ¢) (Note j) (Note k)

(Wia) (WD) (Wih) (Hritc) (ite) (hi)) (k)

Fees s - - - - - - - -

Other emoluments Eide

Salaries i 47 307 840 900 936 399 207 84

Retirement benefit scheme RIVEH3 - 3 15 15 15 14 5 -

Share-based payments (Note 35) Rt 35) - - - - 220 - - -

473 310 855 915 3,161 413 2 84

Independent non-executive directors
BUkafES

Robert Total

Frank H. Agustin V. James Hung it

2014 Miu Que [aia Il Cho Sing 2014

“E-|g 8% BEE “5-ME

HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000

Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin

(Note h)
(Rrith)

Fees s 20 0 0 20 960
Other emoluments Eftde

Salaries i - - - - 4,146

Retirement henefit scheme RiEHHE = - - - i

Share-based payments (Note 35) Rt (3 35) - - - - 2210

20 20 20 20 1,383

FHEXEMERAT g3
F5{2014



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e MR

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS 13. EE=ERTHARME (&)
(Cont’d)
Executive directors
SIS
Peter Lo Suen
Temple Yuen Wa Yick Lun Eddie Wu Lau
2013 Whitelam Peter Philip Woo Yi-Shuen King Hang
“3-=f EnE Rl HER RIAR 85t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThT ThEx Tin TiEn ThT ThT
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note d) (Note e)
(ffia) (&) (Bt c) (W& d) (Fiite)
Fees e - - - - - -
Other emoluments Hiiie
Salaries e 538 840 936 900 1,755 420
Retirement benefit scheme RIVBHE - 15 15 15 K 15
Share-based payments L OIEN
(Note 35) GRER) - 381 4,380 - 12,855 -
538 1,236 5,331 915 14,621 435
Non-
executive
director Independent non-executive directors
FHTES BUKHTES
Chuang, Robert Chien, Total
Henry  Frank H. Agustin V. James Yung Hung szt
2013 Yueheng Miu Que laia Nelly  Cho Sing 2013
“E-=F iRl B4 2N HHE -3-=%
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tin ThL T Thn T T
(Note f) (Note g) (Note h)
(BEf) (Mitg)  (Mih)
Fees e 120 240 240 240 160 46 1,046
Other emoluments HibMe
Salaries g% - - - - - - 5,389
Retirement benefit scheme Ry 2 - - - - - - 71
Share-based payments ROIES
(Note 35) (B3t 35) - - - - - - 17,616
120 240 240 240 160 46 24122
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2014

e B R

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

13.

Notes:

(a)

(k)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS
(Cont’d)

Mr. Peter Temple Whitelam retired as an executive director of the Company on 14
February 2014.

Mr. Lo Yuen Wa Peter resigned as an executive director and chief executive officer on 27
March 2014, his remunerations disclosed above include those for services rendered by him
as chief executive officer.

Mr. Suen Yick Lun Philip is an executive director of the Company, and he was appointed

as the chief executive officer of the Company on 27 March 2014 and his remunerations
disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as chief executive officer.

Mr. Wu Yi-Shuen resigned as an executive director on 31 December 2012.

Mr. Lau King Hang resigned as an executive director on 7 March 2014.

Mr. Chuang, Henry Yueheng resigned as a non-executive director on 14 November 2012.
Ms. Chien, Yung Nelly resigned as an independent non-executive director on 14 November

2012.

Mr. Hung Cho Sing was appointed as an independent non-executive director on 22
January 2013.

Mr. Wong Danny F. was appointed as an executive director on 14 February 2014.

Miss. Wong Yuen Mui was appointed as an executive director on 18 December 2013.

Ms. Shum Ching Yee Jennifer was appointed as an executive director on 3 March 2014.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
any of the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors has waived any emoluments for both years.

13. EERTHAIZME (&)

MisE -

(@)  Peter Temple Whitelam 4R - — M4 —
AtTMBEREARBNITES -

(b) EREEAEN-_FT—NFZA-_F+LABIH
TEERTHEE  EXBEEBERZHNE
FBEEBTTBBHIRE RS 2 5o -

(© HFHEBEEAAQBWITES  THR=-FT—N
FZA-+tHEZTAERBRTRAS - &
NEBEBBE 2 HNeEEEAITHARIZMH
BR TS 2 S o

(d) RUBEER-_ZT——F+_A=1+—HFT
WITES -

() BIYEEER-_T—NF=ALHETHRITE
=.

(f)y HREGEER-_E——F+—A+HABREHE
WITES -

(90 BELIWN - ZT——F+—F+HAEEET
HEHITES -

(hy HEEEENR-_ZT—=F—-A_+_HEZ(E
BB IEMITES ©

() AEEEER-_ZT—NF_A+NAEZTA
WITES -

G = NMAR—_E—=F+ A+ /\BEZE
BHITES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e MR

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

14. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2013: two) were directors of the Company
during the year whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures in note 13 above. The emoluments of the three
(2013: three) individual employees were as follows:

2014 2013
—ZF—NF —=—=

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FET FA& T

Salaries and other benefits e hEMAMET 7,990 8,329
Contributions to retirement benefits B /RigF 524 =%

schemes 30 18

Share-based payments (Note 35) B - R (B 5 35) = 4,666

8,020 13,013

The emoluments were within the following bands:

Mo orREENT

No. of employees

EEAHY
2014 2013
—E—F —E—=

HK$nil to HK$1,000,000 T3 TR 1,000,000 47T 1 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 # 72 1,500,000 % 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 # 72 3,000,000 % 7T - 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 # T2 5,000,000 % 7T - 1
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 # 7T Z 6,000,000 % 7T 1 1
3 3

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the five highest paid individuals, or directors of the
Company, as inducement to join or upon joining the Group
as compensation for loss of office.

15. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for both years, nor has
any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2014

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

16. LOSS PER SHARE

16. IREE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share KNATIHE ANELERERNLE#E
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the  [EEJIEEIATEIETE -

following data:

2014 2013
—E-NEF —FE-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFETT
(Restated)

(=)

Loss for the purposes of basic and

REst E SR ER L EEE R

diluted loss per share (loss for the — ZEIB(ARRQTHEE A
year attributable to owners of the  fE/RFEEIE)
Company) (545,696) (1,176,604)
2014 2013
—E-NE —T-=F
Number of shares g =]

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purposes of basic and
diluted loss per share

FAEsT B SRER R IEEE
ZE mm&*%gy
13,277,599,563  1,172,110,699

T

The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume & B EE &5 18 2 5 B W M FR 5 O Al
the conversion of the Company's share options and the  fE% & 5 BA A R] 2 B8 HE K ARTT

outstanding convertible bonds in both years since their  {EAI#ERIES - P
assumed conversion would result in a decrease in loss per KEHEFAREERD

share.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted in
the calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share for the
year ended 31 March 2014 and 2013 have been adjusted to
reflect the impact of the rights issue effected during the year
ended 31 March 2014 and the impact of share consolidation
effected during the year ended 31 March 2013 as disclosed in
note 34(f) and note 34(b) respectively.

55 ARZEREKLH
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AEEE-F-NFR-_F—=F
“ACH - HUEFEZERERR
HE B 180 R AR 2 B AR 04 T 3T
YO ERE - N5 Bl I B T 34(f)
EMieE34b) IR BEE _—T — N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BHE_Z-—NF=A=+—RHILFE
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% BERSEE
Leasehold Furniture,
land and Plantand fixtures and
buildings ~ Leasehold ~ machinery  equipment Motor ~ Construction
BELH improvements BE  BHCEE  vehices inprogress Total
Rz BEXE RE Rk nE ERIR it
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T T
C0sT A
At 1 April 2012 R-F-—EWA-A 170,274 11,023 164,579 11,99 6,949 18,619 383,413
Exchange adjustments Ei#E 1,603 67 3,149 129 3 304 5281
Additions ME 881 1,050 19,741 1710 - 81,125 104,507
Transfer to investment properties (Note 18) EEZHENME (3 18) (32,240) (2629) - (1303) . . (36,172)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 37) HERBAR(H3E37) (45,975) (3.495) - (1,803) - - (51.273)
Disposals te (136) iy 5189 3 (185) - (6,81)
31 March 2013, as restated NE-ZEZR=T-R-
gy 94,407 5281 182,280 10,666 6,799 100,048 399,481
Exchange adjustments EiAR (5,947) (75) (7,830) (290) 8 (2,79) (16,932)
Additions ME 1,691 5 1,890 408 659 2,976 13,849
Transfer &x 69,762 - - - - (69,762) -
Disposals He - ) - (525) (252 - (3,093)
31 March 2014 NZE-MEZR=T-H 165,913 542 176,340 10,259 4,945 30,464 393,345
DEPRECIATION fi&
At 1 Apri 2012, as originaly stated N-F-—FmA-B-
BRI 8,868 1922 29,310 2308 6,166 - 48,594
Effct in prior year adjustment BrEEEEIYE 81,429 1967 134805 5,161 30 18619 22341
At 1 April 2012, as restated R-F--EmA-R
gy 90,297 3,889 164,115 7,489 6,526 18,619 290,935
Fxchange adjustments EEES 1577 5 3,133 120 29 304 5213
Provided for the year ERRE 1,057 745 147 680 159 - 2,788
Transfer to investment properties (Note 18) ERZREME (Hii18) (215) (125) - (80) - - (420)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 37) HENBAR(HE37) (9%) (568) - 315) - - (1879)
Fliminated on disposals RUERHE 29) (614) (5,116) (6) (136) - (5,901)
Loss recognised in respect of manufacture of EMGFEEABERSRE
solar grade polycrystalline silicon business ~ ¥%E B 2B E (M8
for the year (Note 8) 881 - 19,652 874 - 81,125 102,532
31 March 2013, as restated WZE-ZE=f=1-F"
sy 92,572 3377 181,931 8,762 6,578 100,048 393,268
Exchange adjustments e (5,986) (119) (7.833) (313) § (2,7%) (17,001)
Provided for the year FERE 315 453 65 520 26 - 1629
Transfer &5 69,762 - - - - (69,762) -
Eiminated on disposals RIERHH - - - (510) (252) - (3,031)
Loss recognised in respect of manufacture 0 EW?@UK% L
solar grade polycrystalline silicon business ~ $HE T2 EE(F3E8)
for the year (Note 8) 1,691 - 1,854 209 - 2,976 12,730
31 March 2014 NE-RE-R=T-H 164,414 3 176,017 8,668 4,281 30,464 387,555
CARRYING AMOUNTS EiE
31 March 2014 RZE-ME=f=1-H 1499 1783 n 1,591 664 - 5,790
31 March 2013, as restated RZE-=E=f=1-f
5| 1835 1904 349 1904 2 - 6,213
At 1 April 2012, as restated R-Z-ZEMA-B
gy 19971 1134 dod 4,480 423 - 92,478
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2014

e B R

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rates per annum:

17. 1% - BMERRE(E)

PR TSN - EliE - BB &
;%EIEELXE%%EZETWE%E Cl

Leasehold land and  Over the estimated useful lives of ME+TH N REFTREAFH
buildings 50 years or the terms of the leases BT 50 4 2k 2 5
whichever is the shorter (A E RLE)
Leasehold 15% or the unexpired terms of the MEEE 15% 3 1%
improvements leases, whichever is the shorter N JeE v AH B
(ABFEERLE)
Plant and machinery 20% WE R 20%
Furniture, fixtures  15% Eih - KEBER 15%
and equipment B
Motor vehicles 20% E 20%
2014 2013
—E-mE —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
(Restated)
(&e&E5)
The carrying values of the leasehold &L NIEF 2
land and buildings comprise: BREERE
Situated in the PRC under medium- {7/ E - LAhEIFAE
term lease 8 1,499 1,835
As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group has pledged RZ-ZET—HEFER-_ZT—=9F=H
leasehold land and buildings which were fully impaired as at =+ —H ' AEBE 2R HwEHRIK
31 March 2014 and 2013 at the end of the reporting period &+ REF(R T —NF
to secure the bank borrowings granted to the Group. NZE-—=F=HA=1T—HEZ2#¥
BIE)  LWBERETARERZRITE
The carrying value of motor vehicles includes an amount 3B Z BREIERIE S MR E & H
of HK$593,000 (2013: nil) in respect of assets held under & 3545 2 & E593,000/8 t(=Z
finance leases. —=F |
EHMEEEERAA

£352014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE-_Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE
18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. BEYE
HK$'000
FAT
FAIR VALUE DN¥E
At 1 April 2012 R-_E——_FW™A—H 26,175
Transfer from property, plant and equipment ERAME - BENLRE
(Note 17) (M5E17) 35,752
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 58 & 249
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 37) H:':’%Bﬁ%’&ﬂ(ﬁ FE37) (36,170)
Net fair value loss recognised in profit or loss RERER AT EEBEFE (2,848)
At 31 March 2013 Eé:i;—_i A=+—H 23,158
Exchange adjustments BE 5, 38 B 349
Disposals & (3,540)
Net fair value gain recognised in profit or loss REEBER AT EREFRE 1,957
At 31 March 2014 R_T—NF=A=+—H 21,924
Unrealised gain on property revaluation included in  FF AEZ —Z— M4
profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2014 AT -BIEFEBRHZ
(included in other gains and losses) AEI YR B (W
(FFAE AU a5 K E18) 4,347
The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at the $§%&§¢%¥B’\$ﬁ% HE = Z
date of transfer, 31 March 2014 and 2013 have been arrived —PUFEE_-_FT—=F = E‘f'— H
at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by ZQ"TEEEEQ%%EE BRI
Asset Appraisal Limited (2013: Chung, Chan & Associates, ®(ZZT—=F: FFHAE/mME=E
Chartered Surveyors), independent qualified professional  77) (2 $%E<TE%4HF§5$Z§%TME\;§
valuers not connected with the Group. Asset Appraisal Limited REEHEN)IZE BB HENE
(2013: Chung, Chan & Associates, Chartered Surveyors) are  Efh{E - BE HEEEF' BRAR(=
members of the Institute of Valuers. T—= ¢ Rt R BB ETT) R
TEEWTDD = El H -
The fair value were determined based on market comparison ~ AFETERTIGFHLEE - KRE&
approach assuming sales of the property interest in its existing ~ HEIR A T HEYHE s - WS R
state and making references to comparable market observable ¥ EREL B s MHAIEBER 5
transactions of similar properties and adjusts to reflect the TEE @ BEHFABEURBE BB
conditions and locations of the subject property as available SRt E 2 EH W) % 2 AR R A7
in the relevant market. There has been no change from the & ° &8 F—FEMAMGE AL
valuation technique used in the prior year. mEE o
In estimating the fair value of the investment property, fEEIHREVFE L ATFER  ME
the highest and best use of the properties is their current <Z&EmMEREREABAASZ - X
use. At the end of the reporting period, the chief financial ¥R&GHIR W H/F I 52 BB E
officer works closely with the independent qualified external & Bi&INE(HEMEZ A 1E - g
valuer to establish and determine the appropriate valuation 3 KREFE#EEGE G EMER A
techniques and inputs into the model. Where there is a &UE - WEEZ A FELHRERE
material change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of &) @BRASEEREERLH 2
the fluctuations will be reported to the management of the  JRE °

Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2014

e B R

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d)

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable input

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in
the determination of fair values of the investment properties
and unobservable inputs used in the valuation models.

18. IREWMZE(E)

BEEERAERELIBEERAREZ
DNVERE

TRETHREEREMERAFE
2 2 (R 1B 5 A A RIS EE R BT
2 BRE R ABE

Range of Relationship of
Unobservable  significant inputs to fair
Fair value Valuation mputs inputs value
Date Fair value h|erarcgy techniques mraz ERBA BAYEHR
B AYE  DTERR GERE BARE FEEE AVFEZBE
HK$'000
FHET
As at 31 March 21,924 Level 2 Market Unit price per ~ HK$1,647 to The higher the
2014 £ comparison ,_Square meter HK$2,099 per  market price,
EA_? Jisga3 approach BERKREE square meter  the higher the
ZA=t—H 3% L BUA and adjusting _fair value
for conditions TEHR
and locations of AFEHE

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and

accounted for as investment properties.

The Group’s investment properties are held under medium-

term leases in the PRC.

the properties
BYHK1,6477%

TLE 2, 099/%5

S REE Y

HR R E T

#u
AR G AR S 58 A E
5 TR LT S A A 2 i
IR ATEERSE  TEEBAR

ARFIERE DS

AEE 2 WEMEIIVREFHEE
RPBFE -

—

19. INTANGIBLE ASSET 19. RIEAE
Core
Technolog
&MH%
HK$'000
THETT
CARRYING AMOUNT RHE
At 1 April 2012, as originally stated R_FT——_FMA—H
IR KRS 2,434,796
Prior year adjustment (see note 3) BEFEHAB(RMTEI) (2,434,796)
At 1 April 2012, as restated, 31 March 2013 and R—_ZE——_FM™H—H
31 March 2014 (&&E:5)) s —F—=
A=t BR=-T—mF
=—A=+—H -

The intangible asset represents Core Technology relating
to the manufacturing of solar grade polycrystalline silicon
business recognised at the date of acquisition, which is

B A ERNW %Elﬁﬂ?yt%li_ﬁﬁa—
f PR 2 oLl

B BUM - BAS

N

=

s
(U
e
e
l

patented in the United States, Europe, Japan, Taiwan and the & /& K BEBSHER) -

PRC.

EHMEEEERAA
£352014
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BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

20. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

20. AR EFRIE

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise: REFEZENHEERIBEBE
2014 2013
—E O —_F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET
Leasehold land in the PRC: R HE T
Medium-term lease BPHEEEAR 1,403 3,557
Analysed for reporting purposes as: FLERMIEZDHT ¢
Current asset mENE E 344 701
Non-current asset EMENEE 1,059 2,856
1,403 3,557

The leasehold land is amortised on a straight-line basis over
the remaining term of the lease.

21. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

HE L iner NHBABREEH -

21. ZRFIRITIFRX

The amount represents restricted bank deposits placed to MW\IEEEIWL#T%f REEERBZH
secure the lease agreement for land located at Yilan County, iﬁﬁ/ﬂ@»(ﬁ Wi sun MaSSHTE%JUE"U’TH
Taiwan, acquired upon the acquisition of Sun Mass. The St ﬁﬁrﬁm/iﬁﬁ%uﬁﬁﬁ/ﬂ\;
restricted bank deposits would be released at the end of the — XPR#I#RTT \T?/TAHﬁE’\THHHﬂE@Z?H%
lease term or upon termination or cancellation of the lease. 1548 LE B BUR B AR R
The restricted bank deposits carried interest at the fixed —mFE=A=1— ﬁﬁ_ﬁ
interest rate of 0.56% (2013: 0.56%) per annum at 31 March %‘Jfﬁf_ﬂ_r}\ﬁz.miﬂ}t 6% (=
2014, T—=% :0.56%)5T & °
22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT 2. STEMBIA
The derivative financial instrument represents derivative ﬁ? iﬁ‘%lﬁﬁ&t{%%%ﬁﬁZﬁ
component embedded in the Consideration Bonds, details of ~ £807 * BEFIE 5 M FE3T ° R
which is set out in note 31. The movement of the derivative W * T4EED 2 HEFHIIAT
component during the year is set out below:
HK$'000
TAETT
At 1 April 2012 R-—ZT——FmA—H 392,792
Changes in fair value N EE (126,002)
At 31 March 2013 RN-_E—=F=H=+—H 266,790
Changes in fair value N EE 25,032
Derecognition upon alternation of terms of RZZE—=F+ZA+=HF
consideration bonds on 13 December 2013 BREEFGEREBUSHER (291,822)
At 31 March 2014 R_ZE—NFE=A=+—H -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e B R

BE_Z-—NF=—A=t—HILFE

22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (Cont’d)

The fair value of the derivative component is calculated by
the difference between the fair value of the consideration
bonds with exercise of extension option and fair value of
consideration bonds without exercise of extension option.
The fair value of the early redemption option is considered
minimal. The fair value of the derivative component is
determined by Hull-White One-Factor Model and the
assumptions of fair value of the derivative component are as
follows:

ER BB o 57 55
J5 3% Hull-White & K F & £
moTER D A FEZ BRI T

With Without
exercise of exercise of
extension extension
option option
BITEEE WEITEER
BRERE BmIERE

At 31 March 2013 %:%ﬁ—E$EHE+—E
Risk-free rate 2 7 fp K 0.617% 0.112%
Credit spread ZEE\% 37.867% 37.867%
Short rate volatility 52 HA 1) 2R B 1 0.576% 0.576%
Maturity ZI|Hf 5.8 years 0.8 years

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT

23. EDFEFABBRZIE

OR LOSS &
2014 2013
—E—-F —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&IT
Held-for-trading investments RIEEERE
— equity securities listed in - BB LIRAE
Hong Kong 3 -
Unlisted convertible bonds ETE RIR A TER ABREER
designated at FVTPL ZIE LM AR E S 15,100 -
15,103 -
Held-for-trading investments comprise of equity securities Tﬂ”ﬁ%ﬂf@f&é BREEE L TRAE
listed in Hong Kong and their fair values are based on quoted % MERXAFEHIZTMHEE ARE
market bid prices. & o
Unlisted convertible bonds designated at FVTPL represents EE AR ATE ABREKCIEL
convertible bonds with principal amount of HK$25,000,000 T A/ #kEHEEHmEE(GER)E
issued on 21 November 2013 by Celebrate International RAR(—FERHESESEMA
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman HBRMREBZAMEIR T2 RA)
Islands and its shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock ([T A R T —=F+— A
Exchange (the “Issuer”). The Issuer and its subsidiaries are =+ — H# {7/ % %825,000,000/5
principally engaged in investment holding and trading of food  JTTZ AT#RES - 1T ANMEKE
and beverage. On 16 January 2014, the Issuer entered into AREZRERELZBARERE
deed of amendment on variation of the terms and conditions 5% ° AR-_F—WMF—H+/xH « &
of the convertible bonds. TTARIMAERT 4R - AE Al %
EH ZARTK MG -
EHEEMARAT

£352014
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BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 23, IR A LA A B X% E ~ B 7§
OR LOSS (Cont’d) BEE(E)
Before the variation of terms and conditions, the Group has B XIERX L IEHER]  AEBAHER
the right to convert the whole or part of the principal amount —ZE—XER A -++ HRERE X
of the convertible bond into shares of the Issuer at any time T I E &5 7 2 2o 3 o AN
and from time to time up to 27 May 2016. The convertible SBUBMBIET AN - oJ I E
bonds entitled the Issuer to redeem the whole or part of the EB P EIT AR BB A 3 2 Al
convertible bonds at par at its sole and absolute discretion PERF 2 TSR m (B IS [0 2 2 sk 2B
anytime before or on the date of maturity. The major S AR ESLE - EZLEHZTE
variation of terms and condition are, (i) the maturity date 5] & : () #RES 22/ H A H
of the convertible bond changed from 26 May 2016 to 31 —E-RERFA-FAHEH A
December 2016; (ii) conversion price changed from HK$0.25 Z—XFE+=-A=+—H: (i)iLk
per conversion share to HK$0.3 per conversion share; (iii) the BAREBERLBIEM025ETEN A
Issuer has changed the interest rate of the convertible bonds FIRHBIRM 0.3 T ¢ (i) 1T A
from zero coupon to 2.5% per annum, payable quarterly in EHBA MR EE RS ES R
arrear; (iv) before the change of terms and conditions, the MBERNEK2 5%  BEZSY{THIE
Issuer will redeem the convertible bond at par at anytime B (V)R RS A E R - 2
before or on the maturity date by cash. After the change of 7 AW R HE H 3k 2 B {a] B R #%
terms and conditions, the Issuer will redeem the convertible HEENANRSEBLOIBEES - B
bond at the outstanding principal amount at anytime before B L &R - T AEREER
or on maturity date either by cash or at the Issuer’'s own o 7 BRI BS R LAIR £ sk B i@ 3 1T
discretion, allot and issue new share of the Issuer to the ABITERB RERALNGISEREZ
Company or its nominee of a quantity equivalent to the AR GETHEHEEN BRI E
outstanding principal amount of the convertible bond divided A7 ARBROASZER AN BERE
by the conversion price for the repayment. HEZERTATEGOIEZT - BO
AMRES KBERSEE o
The fair value of the convertible bond as at 31 March 2014 @a#FEE5E R —_Z — M E = B
is estimated by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent =t+—HZAFEHENEFK
qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group WMEAFEBIYASEREEEHENE
using valuation techniques based on the discounted cash flow  EIEEM AR A AKX 8RB
analysis using discount rate from observable current market A[ERERTIERX H L EITARKE 2 8L
transaction and stock price of the Issuer as inputs. The inputs IR & Ai#g A &1 - F HEEEALIRE
into the model were disclosed in note 36. ERENPMZEEBERFEGEEEL -
AR g A BRI EE 36 R -

24. INVENTORIES 24. 78
2014 2013
—E-F —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FETT
Raw materials y= 491 1,585
Work in progress Pt 1,544 1,581
Finished goods BUAK oh 2,378 1,596
4,413 4,762
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, FELIQ,\%% 18 % H b FE Uk 2%
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS g~ 54K ﬁ“x |
Trade receivables FE B 5 =hiE
2014 2013
—E-NF e
HK$’000 HK$'000
. THERT FHET
Trade receivables JEUE 5 5078 20,109 36,904
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts  J& : REEE/E (5.489) (6,888)
14,620 30,016
The Group allows an average credit period ranging from 60 REFRHERELREEREGEEK 2
to 150 days to its trade customers from manufacture and sale BESRPIEENF60E2150H 2 F
of accessories business. The following is an ageing analysis OZEH - BIERESH R ZEEH
of trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts Hi (BRI zsWER B B4R ) 25| 2 &
presented based on the invoice date which approximate the WE SHIE(HB RERE) ZEK
revenue recognition date at the end of the reporting period: DT
2014 2013
—F—-NE —F—=
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TAET FA&T
0 to 60 days 02 60H 10,811 19,012
61 to 150 days 612 150 H 3,809 11,004
14,620 30,016
The Group’s policy on allowance for doubtful debts is based AEE 7 REEEGEREJIAEEY
on the evaluation of collectability, age of accounts and on AU E RS BRES AL EEE
management’s judgement including credit worthiness and S EIESELEPLP 2 EE2KIKAKTEHE
past collection history of each customer. 7 I A o
Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the NESEMHEZLR - NEBFF(G
potential customer’s credit quality and approves credit limits EBAEPZZEEZ= W AEAXRP
to it. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed regularly. JIEERRE - FBREFPZREE
E BT e
As at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013, there are no trade RZE—NFE="A=+—HBE=Z
receivables which are past due but not impaired. —=#=HA=4+—H8 #EEKZ
5 3R B HE M RRE ©
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts SERBMES
2014 2013
—2-IF ——
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Balance at beginning of the year F )45 R 6,888 3,200
Impairment losses recognised £ ERREE1E 960 3,736
Amounts written off as uncollectible ##i$5 & AT Yol 2 I8 (2,234) (23)
Amounts recovered during the year REFRUE Z FKIE (125) (25)
Balance at end of the year F AR 5,489 6,888
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HAiEUNRRIE ~ sT & RFBIRIE
All other receivables are expected to be recovered within one FrEEmEIIELIEHR —FER
year. Y o
EHEKEERAT

£352014
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26. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 26. EWWEF R EWRE
2014 2013
—E-mF —ET—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET
Unsecured, fixed-rate loan receivable i - Bl FE B ER 10,000 -
Interest receivables JE WLH B, 215 -
10,215 -
At 31 March 2014, the outstanding loan receivable to an  K-Z—ME=A=4—H ¥
independent third party has contractual maturity date within ~ — &8 58 = 75 Z K(EIE B S 5K
1 year, and carries fixed-rate at 6% per annum. ZEAAMAR—FA  LIREE
FHREE%TE o
The Group has policy for allowance of doubtful debts which — ASE 2 R A& BRI ARRIE 2
is based on the evaluation of collectivablity and ageing  FAJMEIMERF(E RERERDAT - AR E
analysis of accounts and on directors’ judgement, including %%ﬁ@%%%i‘%/\zfﬁﬁ%hﬁﬁ
the current creditworthiness and the past collection history of — WGRTEAR 2 #I T A EHE
each debtor.
In determining the recoverability of the loan receivable, the %Efﬁﬂﬁlfﬁﬂﬁ%?%@ﬁ AR H
Group considered any changes in the credit quality of the BZEREUENZEFEE=AEE
loan receivable from the date credit was initially granted # XM EEHEZHEHREE
up to the end of the reporting period. At 31 March 2014, Zf{EREE- R=_F— 4= A
there were no loan receivable which were past due but not =+ —H - B &L 8 A8 m KR E
impaired. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the 2 FEUE 3R o 7 ¥ &5 B 3@% 2B
entire loan and interest receivables have been settled. EWE SRR EWFISEIEE -
27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 27. SRITHERRR S

Bank balances carry interest at average market rates of 0.1% R 17 45 8 3% M 35 ¥ 15 & 7 X 0.1
(2013: 0.1%) per annum. As at 31 March 2014, the bank EB(=Z & — :0

balances amounting to approximately HK$20,742,000 (2013: R & — Ezﬁ_ A=+—-8'%
HK$9,160,000) are denominated in RMB which is not-freely ~ 20,742,000/ (= £ — = 4 :
convertible into other currencies. 9,160,000 % ) ZIRITEHEBRIAAR

EEHE - TEEE BB A R .
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28. TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUED CHARGES

Trade payables
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables

presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period.

ﬁﬁéﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ@@ﬁ%
BRETEA
FES & 5 7R

ATNBRERERARCEZHME
P2 RN E BRIAZ BRI DT ©

2014 2013

—E-F —FT—=%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FETT

0 to 60 days 0&60H 4,513 6,129
61 to 150 days 612 150 H 698 182
Over 150 days 150 B £ 436 123
5,647 6,434

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days.
The Group has financial risk management policies in place
to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit
timeframe.

Other payables and accrued charges

At 31 March 2014, included in other payables and accrued
charges are payable for construction cost of production plant
in relation to the solar grade polycrystalline silicon business of
nil (2013: HK$31,098,000) and consideration payable to Hao
Tian in relation to acquisition of Sun Mass of HK$10,000,000
(2013: nil) as detailed in note(d) of the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Zﬁﬁﬁ%%%%a N
WﬁﬂAMﬁﬁ © AR
RN RIEIREEHRERANS

O 40 A S
I [
ot 24y
ﬁﬁ%ﬂ

HibE(RIBEREFTE A

T—WNFE=-_A=+—H " Hfb
%E&E?%m@%%ﬁﬁ%
%wh%%ﬁﬁziFW%L
$Zﬁﬁ RIEZ BT ( = =
© 31,098,000 7T) LA&Z T%é
E%W&U%ﬁﬂ%%%wn
Massr&“ﬁ%;%zwﬁ 10,000,000

ﬂﬁ%%ﬁ%
%ﬁjﬂ

EHMEEEERAA
£352014

)/
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29. BORROWINGS

29. £ &

2014 2013
—E-MEF —E—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FE7T
Secured bank borrowing BEMRITEE (i) 36,337 42,364
Secured other borrowing BERMEMES (ii) - 489,000
Unsecured other borrowings R EMEE (iii) 60,000 15,000
96,337 546,364
Carrying amount repayable based on RiETEF BN~
scheduled repayment terms: JEEERRMEE -
Within one year —F K 4,075 4,272
Between one to two years —EWE 4,075 4,272
Between two to five years WZERF 12,226 12,816
Over five years AFELE 75,961 26,004
96,337 47,364
Carrying amount of borrowings BERERERIGK
(shown under current liabilities) ZEE (AR E)
contain a repayment on demand BEERNZ
clause: ARMEE
Repayable within one year BN —FNEER = 10,000
Not repayable within one year HAER—FANEE - 489,000
Total borrowings BERRE - 499,000
96,337 546,364
Less: Amount due within one year & : JIRABBEE
under shown current liabilities BN ZR—F
AE P (4,075) (503,272)
Amount shown under non-current  JRIERBEEE T
liabilities 2 FIA 92,262 43,092
Notes: MiEE
(i) Secured bank borrowing carries variable interest at local bank’s deposit rate in Taiwan (i) EEBRITEBEZABIRAERMRITHER

plus a spread of 1.8% per annum (2013: 1.6% to 1.8% per annum). The bank borrowing
is secured by the leasehold land and buildings of the Group which were fully impaired as

at 31 March 2014 and 2013.

(ii) The secured other borrowing granted from independent third parties carries variable
interest at prime rate in Hong Kong plus 5% per annum. It is secured by the shares of Sun
Mass, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The secured other borrowing was fully

repaid and the share charge was released during the year.

(iii) The unsecured other borrowings granted from independent third parties carry fixed
interest rate at 5% per annum (2013: ranging from 5% to 12% per annum) repayable

over five years.

Mascotte Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014

MEMEMEI18% (ZF— =4 : FH&XN
T16%E1.8%)ZBEZFEE - RITHE
BEUAREEAE T RIEFIEER - ZSHA
ErWREFR _E-NFN_T—=F=4
=t+—HAE2&RIE -

(i BHBYE=FRFzEEHEELMEERT S
B BEAFAREEMNENFMNESY - %
EHEELASun Mass Z D EHIE - Sun Mass
AARRNRZ2EWBAR - FR - GEFEM
BECE2HEE  BRHBLICHE -

(i) BHBUYF=FRFPZEEFHEGEERER
FHR5Y (ZE—=ZF: FAENT5%=
12%)5H8 - WATRAFL HEE -
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30. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE

W
o
30|
A2= o
\ N/
I
—)H
\|]]]H{
\|]]]H
—\

As at 31 March 2014, the Group leased a motor vehicle N-_E—NNE=A=+—H " &£
under finance lease with lease term of 3 years. Interest rates BEiREEmEHERRRE  HE=
underlying all obligations under finance lease are fixed at F - FiAMERESE 2B =X
respective contract dates of 1.8% per annum. These leases 3R K A4 BHEHEIT  AFEF=X
have no terms of renewal or purchase options and escalation  1.8% o :ZZZ= 4N BB (K2 B
clauses. BRI SORIE IR -
Present value
Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
REHEENE REHEREZRE
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-WE —T—=F ZIZB-OF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TBTT FHERT TAET
Amounts payable under 18%gt& 8 & & +f
finance leases: I
Within one year —FNR 232 - 214 -
In more than one year —&FR&ETHBBRE
but not more than
two years 289 - 281 -
In more than two years MERETBBRSF
but not more than
five years - - - -
521 - 495 -
Less: Future finance B RRBEEA
charges (26) - - -
Present value of lease MEEITZIRE
obligations 495 - 495 -
Less: Amount due for  J : EW 3 HREE
settlement within Z
one year (214) -
Amount due for R—F &I EEE 2K
settlement after one I8
year 281 -
The Group’'s obligations under finance leases are secured by AKNEB 7@ EHESTIAHTEA
the lessor’s charge over the leased assets. WSS R T MO EER -
EHEKEERAT

F5{2014
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31. CONSIDERATION BONDS - DEBT COMPONENT/
CONVERTIBLE BONDS (I1)

As part of the consideration for the additional acquisition
of 49.9% equity interest in Sun Mass, the Company
issued consideration bonds with the principal amount of
HK$1,750,000,000 on 4 January 2012 (“Consideration
Bonds”). According to the terms of the Consideration Bonds,
the maturity date is 3 January 2014, two years from the
issue date. At the maturity date, the Company may elect at
its discretion to extend the term for another 5 years. The
Consideration Bonds bear interest at 2.5% per annum for
the first 2 years and 12.5% per annum afterwards for the
extension period of five years. Interest is payable quarterly
in arrears. The Company may also redeem part or all of the
Consideration Bonds any time during the repayment term at
principal amount and interest accrued up to redemption date.
The extension option and early redemption option (collectively
the derivative components) are considered not closely related
to the host debt component. The effective interest rate
of the Consideration Bonds is 23.554% per annum. The
Consideration Bonds are freely transferrable by the holders at
any time from the date of issue of the Consideration Bonds.

The Company and the bondholders entered into a deed of
amendment which was approved by shareholders of the
Company on 13 December 2013, pursuant to which the terms
and conditions of the Consideration Bonds were amended
and hereinafter referred to Convertible Bonds (II).

The Convertible Bonds (ll) are denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars. The Convertible Bonds (ll) entitle the holders to
convert them into ordinary shares of the Company at any
time from 13 December 2013 to seventh business days
prior to the maturity date on 31 December 2014 at a fixed
conversion price of HK$0.09. If the Convertible Bonds (Il) have
not been converted, redeemed or purchased and cancelled,
they will be redeemed on 31 December 2014 at face value of
HK$885,000,000 by cash or by shares of the Company at a
fixed conversion price of HK$0.09 at the Company’s sole and
absolute discretion. Interest of 7.5% per annum is payable on
a quarterly basis. The Company may redeem the Convertible
Bonds (Il) at the sole discretion of the Company in whole or
in part, at principal and interest accrued up to redemption
date anytime before maturity.

100 Mascotte Holdings Limited
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31. CONSIDERATION BONDS - DEBT COMPONENT/
CONVERTIBLE BONDS (ll) (Cont’d)

The Convertible Bonds (ll) contain equity component and
liability component. The liability component represents the
future coupon interest payments of 7.5% per annum carried
at amortised cost and its effective interest is 33% per annum.
The equity component of Convertible Bonds (Il) contains (a)
the Company’s option to exchange the obligation to pay
the outstanding debt for a fixed number of shares of the
Company any time before maturity at a fixed conversion price
of HK$0.09; and (b) the bondholder’s option to convert the
instruments into ordinary share of the Company any time
before seventh business days prior to the maturity at a fixed

conversion price of HK$0.09.

The fair value of the Convertible Bonds (II) was determined
based on the sum of the fair value of the liability and equity
components. The fair value of the liability component as
at 13 December 2013 was determined based on present
value of all future coupon payments until the maturity date
discounted by the prevailing market rate of interest for similar
instruments. And the fair value of the equity component as
at 13 December 2013 was determined based on the quoted
market price of the shares of the Company on 13 December
2013 multiplied by the number of shares to be delivered.
The Convertible Bonds (Il) were measured at fair value on
13 December 2013 of approximately HK$933,366,000 with
an amount of HK$875,167,000 allocated to equity. The fair
value measurement was carried out by American Appraisal
China Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer
not connected with the Group. Upon the alteration of terms
on 13 December 2013, the Company extinguished the
carrying amount of the Consideration Bonds and its derivative
financial instrument as disclosed in note 22. As a result, a
loss of alternation of terms of HK$344,376,000 is arisen
from the difference between the fair value of the Convertible
Bonds (Il) and the aggregated carrying amounts of liability
of HK$880,812,000 as stated below and derecognised
derivative financial instrument of the Consideration Bonds
of HK$291,822,000 is recognised in profit or loss which is
included in other gains and losses for the year ended 31

March 2014.
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31. CONSIDERATION BONDS - DEBT COMPONENT/ 31. REE%S - &I i

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (ll) (Cont’d) REZ ) (&)
The movement of the debt component of the Consideration FA - 1&{?"1‘{%%‘25%55 > N a] #a %
Bonds and the Convertible Bonds (Il) for the year is set out as BEE) 2 2EBEHNOT -
below:
HK$'000
FExT
Consideration Bonds - debt component R{EE% - B2
As at 1 April 2012 R-ZE——4FImA—H 1,182,297
Effective interest expense BERA B 211,304
Interest paid 2ERFE (28,664)
Early redemptions during the year (Note 1) RERNIERERL (FHE1) (591,763)
As at 31 March 2013 N-_E—=F=H=+—H 773,174
Effective interest expense ERMNBHAX 128,429
Interest paid ETFLE (20,791)
Extinguishment of the liability HiERE (880,812)
Convertible Bonds (II) —Hﬁﬂfﬂs#(ll)
Recognition of the liability element upon RZE—=F+="H+=H
alternation of terms on 13 December 2013 B XK EWERBELLH 58,199
Effective interest expense ERMEMAXZ 4,767
Interest paid EN%'JE\ \ (4,073)
Decrease in the liability element due to A ANITE R BREZEE
exercise of conversion option BEIHD B (HIFE2)
by the holder (Note 2) (4,384)
As at 31 March 2014 R-ZE—NHFE=H=+—H 54,509
Notes: M -
(1) During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company early redeemed part of the (1 BEZZT-—=F=ZA=Z=+—BLFE"
Consideration Bonds with principal amount of HK$765,000,000 at HK$753,000,000 K A &) 4% 753,000,000 T 12 F BB B K &
and loss on early redemptions of HK$161,237,000 was recognised as other gains and ¥E765,000,0008 T 2 MO RERESH - I
losses. At 31 March 2013, the principal amount of the Consideration Bonds amounted to REMBEERBEERERIEFEER 2 FE
HK$885,000,000. 161,237,000 7L - RZE—=F=A=+—
A REESH 2 A£5/5885,000,0008 7T
(2)  In January 2014, the bondholder exercised the conversion options with the principal 2 RZE—NMF—A BFFBEATELASEHE
amount of HK$70,000,000 of the Convertible Bonds (Il). As at 31 March 2014, the 70, OOO 000/;§7EZ—H&'HX1 F)z i g
outstanding principal amount of Convertible Bonds (Il) is amounted to HK$815,000,000. EeRZTE-—OEFE=ZA=+—H JHRKESF

() Z RFTEAE 58 4 815,000,000 8 7T ©
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32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 14 July 2011, the Company issued 2,900,000,000
convertible bonds with a coupon rate of 5% per annum
with an initial conversion price of HK$0.5 each (subsequently
adjusted to HK$8.0 each following the capital reorganization
of the Company effective on 26 April 2012 (Note 34(b)))
for a total proceed of HK$1,450,000,000 (the “Convertible
Bonds”). The Convertible Bonds are denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars. The Convertible Bonds entitle the holders to
convert them into ordinary shares of the Company at any
time between the date of issue of the Convertible Bonds and
maturity date on 14 July 2014. If the Convertible Bonds have
not been converted, they will be redeemed on 14 July 2014
at the face value of the Convertible Bonds. Interest of 5% per
annum is payable on a semi-annually basis. The Company may
redeem the Convertible Bonds in whole or in part, at principal
and interest accrued up to redemption date, anytime before
maturity.

On 3 December 2012, the Company and all bondholders
entered into a deed of amendment pursuant to which the
terms of the Convertible Bonds were changed and subject to
approval by shareholders. The alteration of terms include: (i)
the conversion price changed to HK$0.20 per share; (ii) if the
Convertible Bonds have not been converted on the maturity
date on 14 July 2014, the Company, at its sole and absolute
discretion, will have a choice of either paying the outstanding
Convertible Bonds at its principal together with accrued
interest (“Outstanding Debt”) by cash or by issuing shares
of which the number is determined based on Outstanding
Debt divided by the conversion price of HK$0.2; (iii) the early
redemption at bondholders’ option under certain conditions
are deleted in entirety.

32. AIRRES

R-ZE——F+A+WTA -
B R BESR0.5EIT(
ATE——"FWMA -+
A (P 3 34(b) ) A RU1& 78 B
07 %172,900,000,000
Ry Z AR E S
| %8 /5 1,450,000,000 78
% | 18 AR 55
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE-_Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE
32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Cont’d) 32. ARG (&)

On 18 January 2013, the alteration of terms of the N—_ZE—=F—HF+)/\H ' XA
Convertible Bonds were approved by shareholders at the (R EESEBETBRERLARD G
Company’s special general meeting. At that time, the equity B4R A2 FHEE - HBEF - oJ# g
component of the Convertible Bonds were deeply out of EHEMEZLEPEE=RERNBING
money and the fair value was insignificant when the market AQAFEETEMIT~TE  EAHEK
price of the Company’s share at the time was HK$0.2 whereas QTR EITIEAE 0.2 T » ik
the conversion price amounted to HK$8.0 each. Upon BRI AEKRSOET R_FT—=
the alteration of terms on 18 January 2013, the Company F—A+ N \BENRERE - K7
extinguished the original liability component and transfer ISR AERBEHI S LEERBEZ
the related equity component to accumulated losses. The AT BAEE o  KETERTRNT
revised terms hereinafter referred to as “Convertible Bonds B A[A#EES()] > WIK-Z
()", were measured at fair value on 18 January 2013, which —=F—A+ N \BHHAXFEEE -
approximately equal to HK$1,504,000,000 of which the fair 492/ 1,504,000,0007& 7T @ A
value measurement was carried out by American Appraisal FTEREAEBREEENBISE
China Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer REZ/{(LEMERTFEER D T
not connected with the Group. 5 o

The Convertible Bonds (l) contain equity component and AMmEEE)BEERSS LEE
liability component. The liability component represents the Moo BEBEXIPREREES% B K
future coupon interest payments of 5% per annum until KEZFBENMNAERE E B %
maturity carried at amortised cost and its effective interest ERAGE) MEEERMNXAES
is 22% per annum. The equity component of Convertible 4 229% o &] #2 5 (& & (1) B 25 2F 5
Bonds (I) contains (a) the Company’s option to exchange the BFE () AN 7 A] FA Bl B BT 4 ] B
obligation to pay the Outstanding Debt for a fixed number BEYITAREEERHRZEE
of shares of the Company any time before maturity; and (b) AETHBADTIRMD ZIBZBRE
the bondholder’s option to convert the instruments into a  (b)f& %A A 7] 3 5| 51 B 4 {a] B
fixed number of ordinary share of the Company any time B BITANBABEEEHE ZAAN
before the maturity. The fair value of the Convertible Bonds BlEmAR ZIBERE - AT BRES()
(I) was determined based on the sum of the fair value of MAEENEEEELERILS 2
the liability and equity components. The fair value of the NEEEBET BEISZAFEETY
liability component was determined based on present value AR LUTAEZR{THEFN =L
of all future coupon payments discounted by the prevailing WAIREBEZRKBEN I - MEZR
market rate of interest for similar instruments. And the fair Y 7 N EETIRERGD 2B
value of the equity component was determined based on BT ZEYHEBEEET N _-F
the stock price of the shares multiplied by the number of —=F—A+N\B  "[#EES()
shares to be delivered. On 18 January 2013, the difference of 2R EHEIBEESAERNERE
HK$299,448,000 between the fair value of the Convertible 299 448 000%& ;LR B2 B -
Bonds (I) and the liability of Convertible Bonds is recognised Wt AHE - E—=F=/A=+—
in profit or loss and is included in other gains and losses for HIFEERNHEMIKZE REE -

the year ended 31 March 2013.

Following the rights issue passed in a special general R@ERERE-—_ZT—=F/A+ /) \HE
meeting held on 18 April 2013, the conversion price of the T Z7IREERIA® FE@:E® - 7]
Convertible Bonds (I) are adjusted from HK$0.20 per share to  #f§{E %4 () 2 H I ER ST 0.20%
HK$0.09 per share. TTHAEEZEFR0.098TT °
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BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

32. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Cont'd) RS ()
The movement of the liability component of the convertible FRZABMEEESEBREIL D S E) H
bonds during the year is set out below: FR
HK$'000
FHET
Convertible Bonds AR (& 5
At 1 April 2012 R-ZE——FMA—H 1,123,127
Effective interest expense BEREMERX 152,381
Interest paid 2 FE (70,957)
Extinguishment of the liability component of }fﬁﬁ—ﬁﬁﬂﬂ 557
Convertible Bonds BE#S (1,204,551)
At 31 March 2013 R_E—=F=HA=+—H -
Convertible Bonds (1) ARREZ ()
Recognition of the liability component of BRABRKRES ()2
the Convertible Bonds (1) BEIRD 87,327
Effective interest expense B SR 3,307
Converted into new ordinary shares HIRRih gk (13,559)
At 31 March 2013 WN-_ZE—=F=HA=+—H 77,075
Effective interest expense ERFEREZ 8,965
Interest paid 2 AE (52,673)
Converted into new ordinary shares HigaiEEk (21,797)
At 31 March 2014 R-ZE—NF=A=+—H 11,570
In January 2014, June 2013 and January 2013, the RZ-ZZT—HWHF—HF —F—=
bondholders exercised the conversion options with the SNARKZ-ZZT—=ZF— 7 E5HH
principal amount of HK$100,000,000, HK$270,000,000 and & A % 5! 17 & /& % # 100,000,000
HK$219,000,000 of the Convertible Bonds (I) respectively. & JT ° 270,000,\000/% T K
As at 31 March 2014, the outstanding principal amount 219,000,000 Jt 2 A] # % & % ()
of the Convertible Bonds (I) is HK$830,000,000 (2013: ZHiREEE N _T—NF=A
HK$1,200,000,000). =t—H - A#REF)ZAED
N & % /830,000,000% ;o(= &
—=% :1,200,000,000%&7T) °
EHEKEERAT
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33. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

33. EiERKIERE

NTARAEERBEFEEECH
REEHIDAELEEE)

Revaluation

of
investment  Convertible
properties bonds Total
REVMESH AR ES et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEIT FAET FAET
At 31 March 2012 RZTE——F
=A=+—8H 953 45,935 46,888
Release on conversion of FEATIRRGES (1) B
Convertible Bonds (1) s - (479) (479)
Release on extinguishment 75 &4 7] #2 i% (& 4 B
of Convertible Bonds R IR - (31,677) (31,677)
Recognition of equity ERAIRES (1) 2
component of HEmE D
Convertible Bonds (I) - 3,103 3,103
Charge (credit) to profit or 1fr B (5T A) 1Bz
loss (Note 11) (M3E11) 200 (14,790) (14,590)
At 31 March 2013 R-E—=
=A=+—H”H 1,153 2,092 3,245
Release on conversion of REIRATIANES () &
Convertible Bonds () and  A] ¥ J&f& 5 (1) B AR B5
Convertible Bonds (II) - (794) (794)
Recognition of equity RA R (1) 2
component of B (ME31)
Convertible Bonds (II)
(Note 31) - 1,889 1,889
Credit to profit or loss FFAE=R (M)
(Note 11) 3,538 (719) 2,819
At 31 March 2014 W _E—MF
=RA=+—8H 4,691 2,468 7,159
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated R ¥ & K - NEE B E K
unused tax losses of approximately HK$4,416,866,000 (2013: /8 % 18 /&5 8 £74,416,866,000 /& 7T
HK$4,360,333,000) available for offset against future profits, (= & — = % :4,360,333,000/8
and deductible temporary differences arising from losses 7T ) A 5 85 7K 2 s 7| & 5t 23 K
recognised in respect of property, plant and equipment and [BREARZ REXKCER 2 WE -
other receivables and deposits relating to the manufacture of B /5 [ &% & fo H ) Jig U 5K 18 % 5T
solar grade polycrystalline silicon business of approximately & Z & 2 547 115,262,000 T
HK$115,262,000 (2013: HK$102,532,000) and HK$4,342,000 (ZE—= fﬁ 5 1_02,532,0007% 7T )
(2013: HK$4,342,000) respectively. No deferred tax asset has )324,342,0(\)079@E T(ZE—=F
been recognised in respect of the tax losses and deductible ~ 4,342,0007% jr ) & & #) @ 1 & &
temporary differences due to unpredictability of future FZEF - HRNZFWE 2B 2K
profit streams of those subsidiaries. Included in tax loss of 2 Al £ DA {f 5t - 80 48 g 7% 18
approximately HK$18,261,000 (2013: HK$18,400,000) arising &5 18 N A] 150 B 5 = £ #E R R L
from the PRC subsidiaries will expire in various dates up to MIEEE ° KRB F E W E R 74
2019 (2013: 2018). Included in tax loss of approximately 18,261,000 T(— T — = % :
HK$144,247,000 (2013: HK$104,186,000) arising from the 18,400,000/ Jt ) 2 %t 38 & 98 % 70
Taiwan subsidiaries will expire by the year of 2024 (2013: Z—ZT-NF(ZFT—=F —T—)\
2023). Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely. FI)ZEBERE - kB &2 WE
N A4 144,247,0008 0 (—ZF—=
F :104,186,000/8 7T ) < Ht H & 18
Qg _MFE(ZT—=F =
T_—F)F|H - K BIEEBE R &
PR B A% EE o
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34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. RN
Number Nominal
of shares value
RO EE HfE
HK$'000
TET
Authorised: AT
At 1 April 2012 RZE——FA—H 20,000,000,000 2,000,000
Increased on 26 April 2012 (Note a) RZE——FMA=+NBEM
(Ftita) 180,000,000,000 -
At 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2014, RN—E—=F=A=1+—-HxK
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each “Z-NFE=A=+—H"
iR0.01 BT 7 LR 200,000,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EERTRAR
At 1 April 2012 R-ZE——%NA—H 4,566,778,952 456,678
Capital reorganisation (Note b) BAEH(HD) (4,281,355,268) (453,824)
Issue of shares under placement (Note ¢) BB E 18R (H5Ec) 432,496,440 4,325
Issue of shares upon conversion of REM A IRES (1) TR D
Convertible Bonds (1) (Note d) (f5Ed) 1,095,000,000 10,950
Issue of shares upon exercise of share RITEBRER TR
options (Note e) (FizEe) 28,540,000 285
At 31 March 2013 R-E—=F=ZA=+—H 1,841,460,124 18,414
Issue of shares under rights issue (Note f) BEERETAR M (FIFE) 7,365,840,496 73,658
Issue of shares under placement (Note g) BERSETRO (Hig) 1,250,000,000 12,500
Issue of shares upon conversion of R A AR E 5 (1) B TR
Convertible Bonds (1) (Note h) (fzEh) 4,111,111,110 41,111
Issue of shares upon conversion of R AT AR (B 5 (11) B TR 1
Convertible Bonds (1l) (Note i) (=t 771,171,177 7,778
At 31 March 2014 RZE-MNFE=A=1—H 15,346,189,507 153,461
EHMEEEERAA

£352014
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34.

Notes:

(a)

(d)

(e)

SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d)

Pursuant to a special general meeting of the Company passed on 25 April 2012, the
number of authorised share capital of the Company was increased from 20,000,000,000
shares to 200,000,000,000 shares, which was effective on 26 April 2012. The increased
authorised shares rank pari passu with the existing ordinary shares of the Company.

The capital reorganisation effective on 26 April 2012 involved (i) every sixteen issued
shares of par value of HK$0.10 each be consolidated into one consolidated share of
par value of HK$1.60 each; (ii) the nominal value of each issued consolidated share be
reduced from par value of HK$1.60 each to par value of HK$0.01 each by cancellation of
the paid-up capital of the Company to the extent of HK$1.59 on each issued consolidated
share; (iii) each of the authorised but unissued consolidated share of HK$1.60 each shall
be subdivided into 160 adjusted shares of par value of HK$0.01 each.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 19 June 2012, 8 November
2012 and 22 February 2013, 57,084,736, 68,501,684 and 306,910,020 ordinary shares
were issued at HK$0.24, HK$0.17 and HK$0.1 each, respectively through placement
to various placees, who and whose ultimate beneficial owners are independent and
not connected to the Group with gross proceeds of approximately HK$13,701,000,
HK$11,645,000 and HK$30,691,000 respectively.

In January 2013, 1,095,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each were
issued upon conversion of the Convertible Bonds (I). Convertible Bonds (I) with aggregate
principal amount of HK$219,000,000 were converted into ordinary shares of the Company
at a conversion price of HK$0.2 each.

On 8 October 2012, 28,540,000 share options were exercised at the exercise price of
HK$0.204 each with consideration of approximately HK$5,822,000.

On 18 April 2013, the shareholders of the Company passed an ordinary resolution in a
special general meeting to issue rights share on the basis of four rights shares for every
existing share held at subscription price of HK$0.07 per rights share (the “Rights Issue”)
and 7,365,840,496 rights shares would be issued by the Company upon the completion
of the Rights Issue. The Rights Issue was completed on 20 May 2013. The gross proceeds
from the Rights Issue of approximately HK$515,609,000 and transaction costs attributable
to the Rights Issue of approximately HK$20,656,000 were recognised in equity.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 8 November 2013,
1,250,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.085 each were issued through placement to
various placees, who and whose ultimate beneficial owners are independent and not
connected to the Group with gross proceeds of HK$106,250,000 and transaction costs of
approximately HK$5,322,000 are recognised in equity.

In June 2013 and January 2014, 3,000,000,000 and 1,111,111,110 ordinary shares of
the Company of HK$0.01 each were issued upon conversion of the Convertible Bonds
(I). Convertible Bonds (I) with aggregate principal amount of HK$270,000,000 and
HK$100,000,000 respectively were converted into ordinary shares of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$0.09 each.

In January 2014, 777,777,777 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each were
issued upon conversion of the Convertible Bonds (). Convertible Bonds (II) with aggregate
principal amount of HK$70,000,000 were converted into ordinary shares of the Company
at a conversion price of HK$0.09 each.

Mascotte Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
2003 Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “2003 Option
Scheme”), was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed
on 21 August 2003, for the primary purpose of providing
incentive to directors and eligible employees and suppliers
of goods or services of the Group which will expire 10 years
after the date of adoption. Under the 2003 Option Scheme,
the board of directors of the Company may, at its discretion,
grant options to consultants and eligible employees, including
executive directors, of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price of (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant of the option, which must be a trading day or (ii)
the average of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the options or (iii) the nominal value of the
shares, whichever is the higher.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which share
options may be granted (together with options exercised and
options then outstanding) under the 2003 Option Scheme
shall not, when aggregated with any shares subject to any
other schemes, exceed 30% of the total number of the
issued share of the Company from time to time. The shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to be
granted under the 2003 Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the
shares in issue on the day of approval by shareholders of the
Company.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to each participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period cannot
exceed 1% of the total number of the issued shares of the
Company. Upon acceptance of option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1 to the Company by way of consideration of the grant.
An option may be exercised at any time during the validity
period of the options.

35. R

B ERRAT

ARFABRBR-_ZE=FNJ
—t—BRBZRAERN AR
BT T = R
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S L IRV EE e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HEZZ—NF=A=1+—HILFE
35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d) 35. BRI (&)
Option Deed BRERE

The Company had entered into option deeds on 29 August N—_EFE——FNA -+ H"
2011 (the "Option Deed”) with each of the grantees pursuant B EZERAG L ERES
to which the Company conditionally agreed to grant share ([ B8 A% 1 22 1 |

options, which are convertible into the Company’s shares, to BI&HER =&

the grantees for up to 730,000,000 new shares in aggregate, 730,000,000 % ¥ I% 10 2 B& A% 4 (A]

for the purpose to incentivise and reward certain directors g A NNTIIRD) - LUSE K SR

and employees of Sun Mass and a consultant of the Group. Sun MassZETEENEE UK

The Option Deed was approved in a special general meeting ANEEEERE - BIREIZIED ER

held on 4 January 2012. EN —_E——F—ANNARTZER

REFRIRE EHEAE o

The exercise price is HK$0.40 per share option. The exercise TEEBAESHEBIRENLE T -

price was arrived at after arm’s length negotiations with each TEEIEE AT AR N EERG]

of the grantees. The exercise price was determined after E#H - RETITHFEEE A2 758

consideration of a number of factors, including consideration ZEZIERZ  BEANAD T 5ITH

of the price at which the most recent share placing was MERMDZEBR - IWHITEHZKX

conducted by the Company, the recent trading price of the (& « 44 F & A4 i 2B DUSE)

Company’s shares, the appropriate reward to incentivise EERELANEFBELERER  ULE

the grantees to maintain their performance with or for the HMER G 7 EENE N R NE

Group, and the potential enhancement in shareholders’ value EiE A NEEIZHREEIZARK

and benefits to shareholders of their continued employment HEBEZIGEM L EBIREER 247

or services provided to the Group given the expertise and & o Gt IEEE RS HE 245 15 HH BE AR 4

experience each of them have. The consideration payable by MmE @ & AENZAREAE1E

each of the grantees for the grant of share option under the 5t o

Option Deed is HK$1.

The options granted under the Option Deed shall vest upon MARANBREBRASEHEEIN

the following dates, unless otherwise agreed between the R ERER Y ZEREEEFN

Company and the grantee: T BEERS -

Timing of the vesting of the Amount of share options to BEEBZ
share options be vested BRERBSNE BRESE

On the date which is 12 months ~ 25% of the share options I T AR 1525 RE AERK
after the grant of the share granted to the grantee BHEI1I2EAER #2Z25%
options to a grantee

On the date which is 24 months A further 35% of the share R TFAEARABR &R TFERABRK
after the grant of the share options granted to the EE24EPAER #2329 35%
options to a grantee grantee

On the date which is 36 months  The remaining 40% of the P A AR = AR AERE
after the grant of the share share options granted to the BEI6EAEHR 28 T40%
options to a grantee grantee

The share options which have vested shall be exercisable until OB ERERNERERRREE
the expiry of the option period. WBIETTE ©
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d)
Option Deed (Cont’d)

Notwithstanding the above vesting schedule, the share
options held by each of the grantees shall automatically
vest in full and become exercisable immediately upon the
occurrence of any of the following events:

(i) an initial public offering with respect to Sun Mass or Sun
Materials, a wholly owned subsidiary of Sun Mass, on
any stock exchange or in any place;

(i) the Company ceasing to directly or indirectly control at
least 50% of Sun Mass or Sun Materials;

(i) the Company and the grantee agreeing that the
grantee’s share options shall vest in full; or

(iv) if at any time after the grant date a person or entity
acquires the legal and beneficial ownership of 30% or
more of the issued and outstanding ordinary shares of
the Company.

35.

AP TR (&)

BRERE(E)

.—ﬁ

BERA LA EB LY WE AT

ﬂTW?# %%A%E%%Z%
BRESEHEFEE - LA BT
PAATHE -

(iii)

(iv)

Sun Masszk LI 5 %} 1
MassZ’ﬁﬁW%@ﬂ
F x%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ {a] 1tb 2 3

/K@Eﬂ%ﬁ‘%

ZIN/N TTEE&YF’%%& il Sun
Ma_ss_JZ I B B &% 4> 50% ##E

fm

AR FEEEAREEEAL
BREEEESE o

WAL BEREERER - T
ALk ERWEARNRE 3%
T REBEITEINEBIR30% A
F2EENERBERKE -
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d)
2013 Option Scheme

The Company’s 2013 share option scheme (the “2013 Option
Scheme”), was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 31
October 2013, for the primary purpose of providing incentives
or rewards to participants thereunder for their contribution to
the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain
high-caliber employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group and any invested entity and which will
expire 10 years after the date of adoption. Under the 2013
Option Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may,
at its discretion, grant options to supplier, customer, person
or entity that provides research, development or technological
support or other services to the Group or any invested entity,
shareholder or any member of the Group or any invested
entity, holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or invested entity and employee, including executive
and non-executive directors of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or any invested entity to subscribe for shares in
the Company at a price of (i) the closing price of the shares of
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant of the option, which
must be a trading day or (ii) the average of the closing prices
of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the options or (iii)
the nominal value of the shares, whichever is the higher.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which share
options may be granted (together with options exercised and
options then outstanding) under the 2013 Option Scheme
shall not, when aggregated with any shares subject to any
other schemes, exceed 30% of the total number of the
issued share of the Company from time to time. The shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to be
granted under the 2013 Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the
shares in issue on the day of approval by shareholders of the
Company.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to each participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period cannot
exceed 1% of the total number of the issued share of the
Company. Upon acceptance of option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1 to the Company by way of consideration of the grant.
An option may be exercised at any time during the validity
period of the options.

No share option were granted under 2013 Option Scheme.
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s
share options held by directors, employees and consultants
during the year:

2003 Option Scheme

35. BRI (E)

TERBRBFNLES - EE RER
B 2 A R RE R 2 8 -

—EE-FERETE

Number of share options
EhEge
Adjusted
upon capital
Qutstanding  reorganisation Outstanding Outstanding Share
as at at as at Adjusted as at price at
Name of 1 April 26 April Granted Exercise 31 March upon 31 March Exercise the date
category of participant Date of grant 2012 2012 in 2013 in2013 2013 Rights Issue 2014 price of grant
R-g-z
R-8-2%  BAZTAR Ho%-2% R-%-mE
RE-8  EAE@4 HZ®-ZF  RZ®-ZF ZAZt-B MRE  ZA=t-R RRHAS
SRERNER RiRE AR {2 Rl fif WATE iEE BAE fikE ZRHER
(Note ) (Note ) (Note ii) (Note iv) HKS
i) (Hit) (st (Fstw) BT
(Note iv)
(Bi3E i)
Consultants (Note vi 3 March 2010
BRI Z3-BEZRCH 625,000 (585,938) - - 39,062 39,893 78,955 313 3134
Consultants (Note vii) 5 October 2012
B (ki) “3-ZEtARR - - 12540000 (12,540,000) - - - 0.204 0.204
Staff 5 Qctober 2012
= S kil - - 16,000,000 (16,000,000) - - - 0.204 0.204
625,000 (585.938) 28540000 (28,540,000) 39,062 39,893 78,955
Exercisable at the end of the year
TRERATE 625,000 39,062 78955
Weighted average exercise price
METARE 0.3% 0.204 0.3% 3134
EHESERRAF

£352014
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BHE_Z-—NF=A=+—RHILFE
35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d) 35. RO R(E)
Option Deed B R 15
Number of share options
LB HE
Adjusted
upon capital
Qutstanding  reorganisation Outstanding Outstanding Share
as at as at as at as at price at
Name of 1 April 26 April Transfer in Lapsed 31 March Lapsed 31 March Exercise the date
category of participant Date of grant 2012 2012 2013 in2013 2013 in 2014 2014 price of grant
Ho§-2%
HZ%-28  BAZTAR WoE-2% H-%-m%
mA-A BREGE  R-ET-ZF RCE-ZE ZREt-B 0 RIE-ME ZA1-R MRS
SRAEHAE REAg HRTE ] -] X% HAfE 5 WA kg LRAER
(Note ) (Note v) (Note il HKS
(Rsti) (Kik) (Hhvii) BT
(Note v)
(Histy)
Executive directors
#fges
Mr. Lo Yuen Wa Peter (Note ix) 11 January 2012
EnEni (Wit CE-CE-BE-R O 10,000000 (9,375,000) - - 625,000 (625,000) - 6.400 0.220
. Eddie Woo 11 January 2012
BRRsE CE-CE-BE-B 0 115000000 (107,812,500) - - 7,187,500 - 7,187,500 6.400 0.220
Dr. Wy Yi-Shuen 11 January 2012
SHFEL ZE-CE-RBT-B 450000000 (421,875,000) (28,125,000 - - - - 6.400 0.220
Non-executive director
HiES
Dr. Chuang Henry 11 January 2012
Yue Heng (Note ii
FREmL ) CE-CE-BE-B0 75000000 (70,312,500) - (4687500 - - - 6.400 0220
Consultant (Note vi) 11 January 2012
ElltRD CE-CE-BE-B 0 50000000 (46,875,000) - - 3,125,000 - 3,125,000 6,400 0220
Staff (Note x) 11 January 2012
EE (0 CE-CE-BE-B0 30000000 (281250000 28,125,000 - 30000000 (30,000,000) - 6,400 0220
730,000,000 (684,375,000) - (4,687,500 40,937,500 (30,625,000) 10,312,500
Exercisable at the end of the year
TRERAE - 10,234,375 6,187,500
Weighted average exercise price
METSRE 0,400 6.400 6.400

14 Mascotte Holdings Limited
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35.

Notes:

0]

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d)

The share options granted on 3 March 2010 are fully vested upon the date of grant and
may be exercised in whole or in part by the respective grantees at any time not later than
2 March 2020.

For the options granted on 11 January 2012, 25%, 35% and 40% shall vest upon 12
months and 24 months and 36 months after the date of grant respectively (the “Vesting
Period”) and may be exercised in whole or in part by the respective grantees from the
date the options are vested up to 10 January 2016. The directors estimate none of
the above events which may cause the share options become vest in full and excisable
immediately above will be occurred over the Vesting Period.

The share options granted on 5 October 2012 are fully vested upon the dated of grant
and may be exercised in whole or in part by the respective grantees at any time not later
than 4 October 2022.

Dr. Chuang Yue Heng, Henry resigned as non-executive director of the Company with
effect from 14 November 2012. The unvested share options are lapsed on the same date.

In respect of the share options exercised for the year ended 31 March 2013, the weighted
average share price at the dates of exercise is HK$0.204.

Following the capital reorganisation passed in a special general meeting held on 25 April
2012, the exercise price of the share option under the 2003 Option Scheme are adjusted
from HK$0.396 per share to HK$6.336 per share, while the number of shares of the
Company to be allotted and issued upon exercise of the outstanding share options are
adjusted from 625,000 to approximately 39,062.

Following the Rights Issue passed in a special general meeting held on 18 April 2013,
the exercise price of the share option under the 2003 Option Scheme are adjusted from
HK$6.336 per share to HK$3.134 per share, while the number of shares of the Company
to be allotted and issued upon exercise of the outstanding share options are adjusted
from 39,062 to approximately 78,955.

Following the capital reorganisation passed in a special general meeting held on 25 April
2012, the exercise price of the share option under the Option Deed would be adjusted
from HK$0.4 per share to HK$6.4 per share, while the total number of outstanding share
options would be adjusted from 730,000,000 to 45,625,000.

The consultant of the Company is responsible for development of the Group’s solar grade
polycrystalline silicon business with respect to structuring and legal matters, including
diligent maintenance of documentation, structuring, future fund raising and other related
matters.

The consultants of the Company are responsible for the Group’s financing and potential

corporate exercises. Total of 12,540,000 shares were granted to consultants under the
2003 Option Scheme on 5 October 2012.

Dr. Wu Yi-Shuen resigned as executive director of the Company with effect from 31
December 2012 and remains as staff of the Group.

Mr. Lo Yuen Wa Peter resigned as executive director of the Company with effect from 27
March 2014. The unvested share options are lapsed on the same date.

The options lapsed during the year upon resignation of certain eligible staff.

35.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(x)

IR SRR (48 )

RIE-TFE=A=ARHZBRENREA
HEHHRE  UHEARARTER T
ZEZA-RBZEMNEBAZEHREEIITRE -

BR-_E——F—A+—BREZEREM
S B 225% 35% MA0% R E A 2R
HERE%12EA - 24EA K36 EARBE(ER
BH TARSARARBRIEREZA
HME-_ZT—X"F—AT+ARZIRIEHTTE -
i IE ] L B R AR R BUR B & T BB 1T
- EEGHFLNEEETERN BB L -

REZZE-—F+ARARHNOBRENREAR
HEBEE YTHASARAETER-Z
ZZF+ AMBEREE IR IBHITHE o

EREM LR —F——F+— A+ 0 A EHIET
ARRFRTEE - RBB2ZBRERF A%
o

ARBE_ZT—=F=-A=+—HILFETE
ZHEIRENS  RITERABRZMEFERESR
0.204 77T °

R-TZE——FMA-+RBETZREERA
€ FBEBRAERE  —TT=FERESE
TZERETEERTR0IGETHARES
f%6.336 7T - MARARKRITEEREEST
RS G T A3 R 31T 2 R D& B F1 625,000 A%
FEEEH)39,062 % ©

R-ZE—=ZFNA+N\BRITZBREERIA
ErEBERE — ST =FEERESET
ZEBRETHEERER6336BTARETR
3.134% T - MARRRKRITEEREREITE
B T ACEE BT 2 R & B B39,062 1A
FEZE4)78,955 % -

RoE——FEMA-+RBARTZRERER
AertRARAEHE BREZEET
CEBETFEERTROABTAZREZER
6477 MARBIRITEEREAESG S
730,000,000 17 % = 45,625,000 17 °

ARBZBEHBRRRARELGERS i
EBRPheBHNEREE  BEERET
Xig - B RREERAEMBRER

AABEMAELAEENMBREELEE
H-RN_T——F+AHEA BE-_ZTT=F
BENRRERT B - BRI S 112,540,000 % iR

1/\ °

RBEELH T —F+-A=+—BiH
EARBRITES  BNETCAEEES -

ELEREN T -—HIF=A -+ LHBER
RAPITES - REBERERR B KM -

BEERETAERESBERRFARY -

EHMEEEERAA
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d)

The estimated fair values of the options granted on 5 October
2012 is approximately HK$4,366,000.

The fair values were calculated using the Binomial Model
of the options granted in both years. The variables and
assumptions used in computing the fair value of the share
options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The
value of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions. The inputs into the model were as
follows:

35. R (&)

R-ZE-——_F+ARRAREZER
2 5t A F{E# /34,366,00078
7‘EO

RAEE B BREATE
DRA-_BERENAEGE - AR
HREARE A T 2 B R R TR
BEF- BERMEH - BRIE
CEBERETIBRRIZTRER
MAAEE - HE 2 AR

5 October 2012
—EF——F
+A®RH

Grant date share price i HERRE HK$0.204 7T
Exercise price 1TIE(E HK$0.204 % 7T
Option life s <8 B 10 years 4
Expected volatility 8 HA R 8 83.251%
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B & Nil £
Risk-free interest rate I 3 B ) X 0.469%
Option life is contractual life of the share options. For EERREFHI I EERIE 2 &4 FHf -
assessing fair values of the three tranches of share options, FieFE=#EREZ AFEMS -

considerations of respective vesting period are taking into
account into the valuation.

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous ten
years and four years for share options granted on 5 October
2012.

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately
HK$3,036,000 for the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013:
HK$29,315,000) in relation to share options granted by the
Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, share options were
granted to individuals who rendered consultancy services in
respect of financing and potential corporate exercises for
the Group. The Group granted share options to them for
recognising their services similar to those rendered by other
employees. In the opinion of the directors, the consultancy
services rendered by the consultants are similar to those
rendered by the employees. Therefore, the fair value of the
share options granted to the consultants was measured by
the same accounting policies as that of the employees in
accordance with HKFRS 2.

Mascotte Holdings Limited
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HERCHERERBHINE -

R_E——_FT+ARAREZER
2 FRERIE D E R AR B RER
BETERNFZELFREME °
BE—_ZT-W¥=A=+—HIF
B KEBERAQRARKRLE ZER
MEMERR 493,036,000 (= E—=
£ :29,315,000/870) 2 S -
REE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HI1t
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ERFEFRBNERA T EBXER
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Capital risk management

36. I T A

¥
+
)
B
il
iz

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in REBEEBHEAR  HMERAEENRN
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern BNBREHEERE RSB
while maximising the return to shareholder through the BlbESEEZRZ FTEHmMAKRES
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’'s EifS[ElH o ANEEREERSE -
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year. — EEHFTE
The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which NEBZEAREREEHR(ERE
include obligations under finance lease disclosed in note 30, HaEBREE T (M E30H/HE)
borrowings disclosed in note 29, Convertible Bonds disclosed EE(RF298E) - i ES
in note 32 and Consideration Bonds — debt component and (T3 WE ) MREBES - EF
Convertible Bonds (Il) disclosed in note 31, equity attributable o Ral IR ES ) (RHTE31#
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital B)) - NAREA AFELEZR(ER
and reserves. BIERBITRARGER)
The directors of the Company review the capital structure on RNANBIEETHIWAT BN - (E
a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider Bltes—2n EEEEFERNK
the cost of capital and the risks associate with each class RNERBENZHBERK - RiIEE
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the EESZ AERBeFBELTNE
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the B~ BTEIRG BT HESSE
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of EIIREER @ AT EBREERNERE -
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
Categories of financial instruments M TE R
2014 2013
—E-mF —F—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
(Restated)
(&£&E5)
Financial assets HIFEE
At FVTPL WA ER AR
— Held-for-trading investments -BIEEEKRE 3 —
— Convertible bonds designated - BAVEFABREZ
at FVTPL AR (& 25 15,100 =
— Derivative financial instrument - PTEFBTA - 266,790
Loans and receivables (including ERRERZE(BIEES
cash and cash equivalents) NERRLIER) 96,220 92,424
Financial liabilities HFaE
Amortised costs b1 N 220,583 1,470,109

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include derivative
financial instrument, financial assets at FVTPL, trade
receivables, other receivables, loan and interest receivables,
restricted bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade
payables, other payables and accrued charges, Convertible
Bonds, Convertible Bonds (ll), Consideration Bonds -
debt component and borrowings. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

S AR R 0 B R ECE
AEEZ X EHBTABETEY

BT E . AT AR 6
BEE . IS ST . 5 el
FNIE - EWERKERFE - XR
HIRITER BITEB LR
N E HFRIA - HA A 78 K &
SEEC ARRES . ARG A
() CEES  BEn RER o
ZEMH TR ZFIEERNBRME
e TXHEHIEZEVKE TR
ElC AR EREEER LY
S URRLE AR RS
= Rt ENEEEARAT

£352014

117



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e MR

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Market risk

36. BIIF TR (&)
iR EENEERBER(E)

45 B

Currency risk B ] b
Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency KREEFZEFHRBATIUIIEETE
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign & HSAEBEEINERRE
currency risk. In addition, certain trade and other receivables, 4f KREBEFEKEZE SHREBENLH
bank balances, trade and other payables of the Group are  f#hEWRTE - $RITEBNIENE S
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), United States TIENEMENTEBEBUNERERET
dollars (“USD"), Euro (“EUR”) and Renminbi (“RMB"), E2Tf&c &8 LA 7 &5 %E T[4
currencies other than functional currency of respective group 7t |) ~ Ex([FE T |) ~ B o([E
entities. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency THEAERB(TAERRE |)EHE-
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign INBF - ANE B R H NEE P
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant 5 R BB E < B RN E F
foreign currency exposure should the need arise. b WRNERSEE S HhE KINE
[7\ Bz o
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency ASRAEHIR - ANEBE AINESEZ
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the EMEELREEBEZERELYH W
end of the reporting period are approximately as follows: T
2014 2013
ZE-RE -5
HKS

against

Taiwan HKS usb EUR  RMB HKS HKS USD EUR RMB

dollars against against ~against against against  against  against  against  against

(‘;gTD;%) RMB NTD HKS HKS  Total NTD RMB NTD HK§ HKS Total

AT

SRE BRE 2nA RRD ARER BTN BTY ETM BTY ARK

(#a%l) AR® Ha® #z  Bx & HeR ARR He® Bn RAn  En
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TAn TR TEn TEr TEn TAn T TEn TEr TEr TEr A

Assets {3
Trade and other  ENE 53R R
receivables Hft A - - -8 % 454 - - . - - -
Bank balances and  Hf7isRES
cash - 168 - 954 6 1128 6421 - 628 628 - 13330
Liabilities 8
Tradeand other  ENE5HER
payables iR - @) - - (56) (259 - (82) - - (49 331
- 165 - 138 (224) 1333 6,421 (82) 6,28 628 (249) 12,999
At 31 March 2014, there are assets and liabilities of R-_ZT—WE=F=+—H ' K&
HK$13,565,000 (2013: HK$28,137,000) and HK$5,146,000 BNETHEZEENREBED R
(2013: HK$78,000) denominated in USD, a foreign currency /413,565,000 (—Z & — = F :
other than functional currency of respective group entities 28,137,000 Jt ) &% 5,146,000 % JT
(HK$). The directors expect the currency risk exposure arising —ZT—=4:78,00087C) =T
from these assets and liabilities are insignificant and such 3 & &£ E EEEIH S GET) LA
exposure is excluded from the sensitivity analysis below as 2 &#¥ - EFETBH AR B cHE=E
HK$ is pegged against USD. TLEM  REEERBBEMMEEZ
B R R B - a1 AR
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)
Market risk (Cont’d)

Currency risk (Cont’d)

The Group’s intra-group balances do not form part of the net
investment in foreign operations. The carrying amounts of
the foreign currency denominated intra-group balances which
have been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements
of certain subsidiaries of which the functional currency is
HK$, RMB and NTD at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

36. BIIF TR (&)
BSEREENEERKE(E)

T ERE (&)
ErmE s (&)
AEB 2z EBARABZEHLT
BRREBNEBKEEFBEZ —
D ETHEBRARZEAMBIRE
NERRETL ARBEHAGER
Re Bt 2 INEETEEBE AN R R HE
HERRETTHE  BEEEHNREH
RZEEEBENT

Amounts due from Amounts due to Amounts due from
group companies group companies group companies
denominated in denominated in denominated in
HK$ against RMB HK$ against NTD HK$ against NTD
i3 N ENERATRIE i NG|

(LB THARYTE) (LB THIFTA¥EE) (LB THITEMEE)

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
—FE-MEF —EF-=F —E-mEF —E—= —E-NF —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAE7T FExT BT FET FAE7T
75,878 69,568 56,666 178,754 - 178,754

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity analysis
for increase and decrease in the functional currency of the
group entity against relevant foreign currencies and all other
variables were held constant. The sensitivity rates used for
both years, being 1% on HK$ against NTD, 4% on HK$
against RMB, 1% on USD against NTD, 5% on EUR against
HK$ and 4% on RMB against HK$, represent management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis only includes
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and intra-group foreign currency balances and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a change of
sensitivity rates in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates a decrease in loss for the year where the
foreign currency of the respective group entity is strengthened
against functional currency. For a weakening of the foreign
currency against functional currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the result for the year.

EEH% ' $’§l I 4 52 B SN 0 B
o AT BIREE B R INE R
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B 7T

T%ﬁWEEE
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‘‘‘‘‘‘ B2 REEHE
f%%%Zﬁ
E¥E1% )
ETLAFEEKE
5% M A KHEE S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2014

e MR

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

36. BIIF TR (&)
BSEREENEERKE(E)

Market risk (Cont'd) SRR ()
Currency risk (Cont’d) B (&)
Sensitivity analysis (Cont’d) HEE T ()
Impact of Impact of Impact of Impact of Impact of
HK$ HK$ usbD EUR RMB
against NTD  against RMB  against NTD  against HK$  against HK$
B BTR EnR B AE#E
e AR ek BT BT
A% A% A% 2 2
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER
2014 —Z-mF
Decrease (increase) EEEEF L
in loss for the (#2m)
year (567) 3,042 - 69 (9)
2013 —T-=F
Decrease (increase) EEERF L
in loss for the (3&10)
year 64 2,779 63 31 (10)
Interest rate risk Ve
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation AEBEEHEBTEXEFHETHTF
to fixed-rate restricted bank deposits (see note 21 for details), (R M :x21)  TEEIKE X
fixed-rate loan receivable (see note 26 for details), obligations  (F R izT26)  MEHE & T (FF
under finance lease (see note 30 for details), Convertible B fz¥30) - AJ iR & & (5 B Kt
Bonds (see note 32 for details), Consideration Bonds — debt  32) - (R{BE4A - EBREH Lok
component and Convertible Bonds (Il) (see note 31 for details) RESI)(GERMME3NEREEEE
and fixed rate borrowings (see note 29 for details). The Group (EFRMzE29) 2 N FENMKER -
currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy. N NEEWENREHRHE o
ok = K@y I

However, management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should

the need arise.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate borrowings (see note 29 for details) and bank
balances. It is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at
floating interest rate so as to minimise the fair value interest

rate risk.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of bank’s prime rate in Hong Kong and a
local bank’s interest rate in Taiwan arising from the Group’s

borrowings denominated in HK$ and NTD respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2014

e B R

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments.
The analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point (2013: 50
basis points) increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest

rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s loss for
the year ended 31 March 2014 would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$182,000 (2013: increase/decrease by

approximately HK$2,393,000).

Other price risk

The Group was exposed to other price risk through its
unlisted convertible bonds classified as FVTPL and derivative
component embedded in the Consideration Bonds as detailed
in notes 23 and 22, respectively, at the end of the reporting
period with changes in fair value to be recognised in the
profit or loss. The fair value adjustment of the unlisted
convertible bonds and derivative component would be
affected positively or negatively, amongst others, by the
changes in the discount rate and the credit spread of the

Company respectively.

Sensitivity analysis

During the year ended 31 March 2014, if the discount rate
of the unlisted convertible bond had been 15% higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the fair
value of the unlisted convertible bond will decrease/increase
and the Group’s post-tax loss would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$58,000/HK$65,000 as a result of changes
in fair value of the unlisted convertible bonds.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, credit spread had
been 10% higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the fair value of the derivative component will
increase/decrease and the Group's post-tax loss would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$43,221,000/
HK$14,651,000 as a result of changes in fair value of

derivative financial instrument.

The management of the Group considers that the sensitivity
analyses are unrepresentative of the inherent price risk as
the pricing model used in the valuation of derivative financial
instrument involves other assumptions and variables.

36. BIIF TR (&)
B EREENEERBER(E)

TS E ()

FIE R ()

RN 2T
ATHREDFRIBIETETA
FEREBRETE o 247 8 &H S H
AREEZMBETAREFARE
EoSOEEB(ZT — =% 501
HED) FASK TR OEBEHNES
EE N ) g S

=>
n N
SH

HEMEHERTE  AEER
=3 ZA=t+T—RHIEHF
Z BR800 R D #9 182,000
BT ZE—=F:BI/ B> L
2,393,000787T) °

Ngiaaiy

o X

AEEEER TR E BRFEEM 23
K22 Pt 2 0 BB IR N FERT A
BRI Eh A BRI E S RA(E
EFANEZITEED (AP E 22
75 7 18 28 B 57 ) T [ 45 HL 4 (B 4R
b o JE LA ES MOTA R
ZAVFEABRSH(ERERE) R
KRARBIEESEZEHMA L
HEAHEFE -

2
E«L‘II
X
D
=

BE_T-—MFE=A=+—H "
FELTAIRRES 2R E FH
TR 15% » M FTA A& ST
g QI EmAIRRESZ A FE
R A 30 - i AR R
BEBEELETARBES 2 AT
1B % &) M 18 hn, I8 # 58,000 7 7T
/65,000 T °
BE-—Z—=5=-A=+—08
EERE LT TE10% i
BHMES &R N2 BIDTAL S
DZRTERZM AR WA
EEoBREAEEBERTENS
TRAZRTEES ML LA
43,221,000 7T, 14,651,000/8 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BHE_Z-—NF=A=+—RHILFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 36. T E(E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’'d) BEREEREENBEERHE(E)

Credit risk =d:073

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group’'s maximum R-ZF—OEEK T —=F=H
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss =t+—H 25 AEERKERES
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by SFHF & FME YT EERE 2N
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of &EEZSEZEERKEIIKBELES T
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the JARSREFMIH 2 KX ERUMEEE
consolidated statement of financial position. ZEEMmE -

The Group has significant concentration of credit risk on AEF 7 EIWE S HIE - ElRE =
trade receivables and loan and interest receivables. At the REWFEEEZEAREFREZERRE -
end of the reporting period, 46% (2013: 30%) and 100% NREEH R KREBRTARTE K
(2013: nil) of the total trade receivables and loan and interest  —Z¥E7{E3 A9 B =1

or
o
o =
\
/
So
pd

receivables were due from the Group’s five largest customers B EWERRLEWKT B &% 2
and one independent borrower respectively. The Group’s five  46% (—ZT— =% :30%) & 100%
largest customers are sizable electronics corporations whereas (ZE—=% ) KEBRBZAK
the borrower is an individual. The directors of the Company XEAE—THEZEFOE M
consider these counterparties with good credit worthiness EBERAERBRATLT - NATEEDR
based on their past repayment history. The directors closely B BEHEBTERGE  ZZY
monitor the subsequent settlement of the customers. The FHIZEZERF BEZYERER
Group does not grant long credit period to the counterparties. P HIBERIEN o NE B (A
HFEARHRAEER -
In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the ERIEEERKR  ANEREEED
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of VEMRNEEEZEREZE
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures EMEREMEEITIRF - LA
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue REDREEE MK D@E 2 &
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount o kAN NEBRIRE HI KT
of each individual trade and loans and interest receivables PllElk B 5 3%1E - EIREZ &
at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate uyﬂ ZaKE 4% UERDE
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In T‘M&z@é—gg EX B ZREE
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the cFIME ARNAIEEFRAN

Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

BEERREAXRE -

The Group’s liquid funds (mainly bank balances) are placed in SR ES(TBABITE
various banks. The credit risk on these liquid funds is limited )T}jﬁzﬁA%F‘EﬁfEﬁ Hﬂﬁé%ﬁ?j‘j—i@
because the counterparties are banks with good reputation. ﬁﬁ}ééﬁz%{ M E R g

I 2 S Bt %ﬂﬁi‘?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ}%m

Hm =
N

E] )“}_LKMEI?E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2014

e B R

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Management monitors the utilisation of borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company have given due and careful
consideration to the future liquidity of the Group in light
of the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by approximately HK$34,806,000, recorded net liabilities
of HK$99,927,000 and it incurred loss of approximately
HK$546,811,000 for the year then ended. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as
the Group was granted a facility of HK$150,000,000 after
the end of the reporting period, which is repayable after 12
months from the date of the facility letter. The directors of
the Company believe that the Group has sufficient funds to
finance its current working capital requirements and financial
obligations in the next twelve months from the end of the

reporting period.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group is required to pay. Specifically, borrowings with
a repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest
time band regardless of the probability of the counterparties
choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed

repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest rate is at floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end

of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2014

e MR

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

36. BIIF TR (&)

BEREENERRBEK(E)

Liquidity risk (Cont’d) BEETE(E)
Liquidity risk tables FEE AR E
Weighted Within 1 year Total Carrying
average or repayable Between Between Over undiscounted ~ amount at
interest rate  on demand 1-2 years 2 to 5 years 5years cash flows  31.3.2014
RZE-mE
g+ 15/ AERBES =A=t-A
ME EEREE 122F 255F BRSE  REAE  <EREE
% HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THR TR THR TR
2014 “Z-ME
Non-derivative financial #{T4MEKEE
liabilities
Trade payables ERE55E N/A 5,647 - - - 5,647 5,647
Other payables and EtRATER
accrued charges EiER N/A 52,520 - - - 52,520 52,520
Borrowings (Note a) EEGET) (Note a) 7,628 7,562 2,293 80,055 117,538 96,337
Convertible bonds R ER
(Note b) (Bth) 2% 20,750 - - - 20,750 11,570
Convertible bonds (Il) MBRRES)
(Note ¢) (B3t c) 3% 60,455 - - - 60,455 54,509
Obligations under finance BEHREET
lease 4.37% 232 289 - - 521 495
147,232 7,851 22,293 80,055 257,431 221,078
Weighted  Within 1 year Total Carrying
average  or repayable Between Between Over undiscounted ~ amount at
interest rate  on demand 1-2 years 210 5 years Syears  cash flows EA31.3.201§
.
IETS3 [E:3RE ABRRE A=A
Mz EEXER 1828 1E5% wRsE  REME  (RER
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR T TET ThT T
2013 “-=f
Non-derivative financial ~ JEfTE1BIKEE
liabilities
Trade payables ERNEZHE N/A 6,434 - - - 6,434 6,434
Other payables and SipEf AR
accrued charges EER N/A 67,062 - - - 67,062 67,062
Borrowings (Note a) &8 (Mita) (Note a) 503,918 4,850 14,140 28,573 551,481 546,364
Convertible bonds TR ES
(Note b) (F3Eb) 22% 60,000 30,000 - - 90,000 77,075
Consideration bonds - KEEH
debt component - BHES
(Note ) (FzEc) 23.554% 22,125 110,625 331,875 995,625 1,460,250 773,174
659,539 145,475 36,015 1,024,198 2175227 1,470,109

Mascotte Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HEZZT—NF=A=1+—RHILFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) BT E(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’'d) BiRREKBEENEEZRKE(E)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd) TEELERE(E

Notes: sk

(a) Variable-rate borrowings carry interest at the prime rate in Hong Kong plus a spread or (a) BB REENRNE EZEEMFIRITH R

local bank interest rate in Taiwan plus a spread of 1.8% per annum (2013: 1.6% to 1.8% MEEZEF18%(—E—=F: 5F16% %
per annum) as set out in note 29. The respective market rate at the end of the reporting 1.8%):t B 7 F BEEHAMIFE29 « R4 HA
period is used in the maturity analysis. RKEBZTEMEERBEBLFHER -

(b) The amount of undiscounted cash flow represents the interest payment of the convertible (b) RERIE SR E LA BRIRESRED A

bonds before its maturity on the assumption that the outstanding principal amount will ZHELTH WIIBEREERAS BB
be settled by delivering shares of the Company and no conversion and early redemptions TR ZARA TR 2 5 A LR EIE A At
would take place before its maturity. The carrying amount represents the liability L}ﬁ&}mguﬁm@ EE@{E?ET}%HX@%QE%%
component carried at amortised cost with an effective interest rate of 22% (2013: 22%) AR BE - EﬂT?&yzz%( — =4
for convertible bonds per annum. 22%)&’]%1ij

(o) As at 31 March 2014, the amount of undiscounted cash flow represents the interest () R-ZE—NE=A=+—H8 ' RERELE=E
payment of the Convertible Bonds (ll) before its maturity on the assumption that the SEEVTHBERESFINI B z2AEXE I
outstanding principal amount will be settled by delivering shares of the Company and BEREERAESLSBEBUSNHNRNATRGD ZH
no conversion and early redemptions would take place before its maturity. The carrying HEN RAE A R EE i LIZFIEED o BR
amount represents the liability component carried at amortised cost with an effective HEETBERES()IREEK AT R - BB
interest rate of 33% for Convertible Bonds (II) per annum. FERNERE3I3% NEEED
As at 31 March 2013, the amount of undiscounted cash flow represents the redemption NR-E—=F=H=+—H - ;Rﬁgiﬁiﬁﬁmi
amount including the relevant principal amount and interest payment of the Consideration $EIEELNSE  BEARES - BEBE D 2
Bonds - debt component which is prepared with an assumption of exercising the HEAESBEEMNESTE - ﬁt)‘ﬂE“’Lﬁ@qui
extension option embedded in the Consideration Bonds — debt component as set out in 1FAEREELS - BESNH NS 2TEEEE
note 31. The carrying amount represents the liability component carried at amortised cost EMmEE - E-EE{E?E,&%%}&$§UEE - BRRE
with an effective interest rate of 23.554% per annum. FI& 523.554% H)E(EEZEH -

Borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included R EMBEAS R BEESRKER
in the “within 1 year or repayable on demand” time band in Bz %féf qu)\r—ip\qqﬁggx

the above maturity analysis. At 31 March 2013, the aggregate EE | ZHERN NR-_ZE—=F=FH

undiscounted principal amounts of these loans amounted to _—|— H ' %ZEFHKREFIRKS

HK$499,000,000. The followings represent agreed scheduled % B %8 45 499,000,000/ 70« E 1%

repayment dates set out in the loan agreements including ﬁﬁﬁZTgijEjﬁﬁﬁ,ﬁa,ﬁ (BF#Ex
both undiscounted principal and interest components: Eiﬁxfi}&ﬂ,um )R

2013

—E-=F

HK$'000

T

Within one year —F K 10,200

More than one year but not exceeding FEE—FETBIBME
two years 572,538
582,738

The amounts included above for variable interest rate {4 &FXRERIRERE RS
instruments are subject to change if changes in variable 7 F|&{fst Bl Ltz ¥ 8T
interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates  ZBRJge& BT EE) o

determined at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2014

e MR

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and financial

liabilities.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets at FVTPL that

are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

36. BIIF TR (&)
I EZ2 AV EFE

L s iR A B A K B A EE T
gﬂ%%%&aﬂ%%%z NFEZ

EEHATEHEZFEBRAT
B AR IR ELFE

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair RNEBFIZAFEEABSZEZBB
value at the end of each reporting period. The following table BEDENERER K AFEET
gives information about how the fair values of these financial 2 TEBHEEBMMEETHER
assets are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) BEEZ ANV E(CEEMER
and inputs used). BRERBARR) 2ER -
There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during both RABEEERN E—5% E-_HK%
years. ’%:i&?ﬂlﬁiﬁé
Significant
Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s) unobservable
Financial assets/financial liabilities ~ 31.3.2014 hierarchy and key input(s) input(s)
R-Z-IE EAELEE
HREE/HEEE ZA=t-HZAYE AVEER HEAEREERAYE BARE
(1) Investment in unlisted convertible — Assets - Level 3 Discounted cash flows Discount rate
bonds designated at FVTPL in the HK$15,100,000 are estimated based (Details of the
consolidated statement of financial on convertible bond sensitivity analysis
position agreement and discount were disclosed in
rate of 46.23% note 36 under other
price risk)
Stock price of the Issuer
multiplied by the number
of shares to be converted
(1) REESHBRARANERTE .#M BE - E=f ARSeRENRETAR HRX(GREANL
wlk FEEmAARES RE 15,100,000 ERpERIEAE46.23%  FEARE6ED
SilSEH ERERTRE)
BIACRERNETESR L
Kin® A
(2) Investment in listed equity Listed equity Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active N/A
securities classified as held-for- securities in Hong market
trading investments in consolidated Kong - HK$3,000
statement of financial position
(2) RERBBRREADE 7%? FEE BELMRAER - ZF-1& EEMSEARE TNER
RERZ EHRAEFRE 3,000 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

e B R

BHE_Z—NMF=A=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Cont’d)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that
are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis (but
fair value disclosures are required)

The management of the Group estimates the fair value of its
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost using the discounted cash flows analysis, with the most
significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the
credit risk of counterparties for financial assets and own
credit risk for financial liabilities.

The management of the Group considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their fair values, which is included in
level 3 category of fair value hierarchy.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of
financial assets

36. BIIF TR (&)
B TEZ AV EFE(E)
WHEEE LN FEFE(IEAEL A

FERE)ZHHFEERIFERS
AFlE

AEEEEELT  EMBEER
MBaEz ATENRAERRS
REASTRBERAGE M5 E
RABIE AR BEEL S >
EERRRABAEZ AT EER
FEEEEERA  REAMER
REP R R AR AR
T B 5 B (B 685 [ B B 2 A FEAR
2 DFIAAFEBRE=L -

EZRYBEELFETEBZEH K

Derivative Unlisted
financial convertible
instrument bonds Total
FEmH
PTEMBIA AR ES et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FETT
At 1 April 2012 R-E——F
mA—H 392,792 - 392,792
Change in fair value REZERZAFE
recognised in profit or loss & (Hi39)
(Note 9) (126,002) - (126,002)
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=%F
=A=+—H 266,790 — 266,790
Purchase i - 25,000 25,000
Change in fair value RIBEHER 2
recognised in profit or loss A {EE 25,032 (9,900) 15,132
Derecognition upon R-ZZE—=%+—-AH
alternation of terms of the +=HEXREE
Consideration Bonds on 13  FH{§HEEUHMER
December 2013 (291,822) - (291,822)
At 31 March 2014 RZET—MO4F
=A=+—H - 15,100 15,100
Of the fair value change of financial assets at FVTPL #HZz _-—_ZT—/UWE&E=H=+—H I &
included in profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2014, BE7EBZMBIEEAEES AEBZE
HK$9,900,000 relates to unlisted convertible bonds held at BB BEEZ A FEE & H
the end of the current reporting period. 9,900,000 /& 7T /5 B2 7R 2N ¥R 25 B R 45
BHIE LM AT MR ES AR o

EHMEEEERAA
£352014
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Cont’d)

Valuation processes

The chief financial officer of the Company is responsible to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The chief
financial officer works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the model. The chief financial officer reports to the
board of directors of the Company semi-annually to explain
the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair
value of certain types of financial instruments. Information
about the valuation techniques and inputs used in the
determination of the fair value of various assets are disclosed
above.
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37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company and Mega
Soar Holdings Limited (“Mega Soar”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a conditional
agreement on 19 December 2012 (the “Agreement”) with
Chung Nam Finance Limited (“Chung Nam”), an independent
third party. Pursuant to the Agreement, Mega Soar agreed
to sell and Chung Nam agreed to purchase the entire issued
share capital of Smart Style Investment Limited (“Smart
Style”) and Smart Direct Investments Limited (”Smart
Direct”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Smart Style (collectively

37. HEMB QT
BHE-_T—=F=-A=+—8ItF
B ARBAIERKEERERAD A
([KEZR] KRBz EWB
AR EFPEIEHETEER AR ([
Bl —Z2BYE=ZH)RN_T—=
F+ A+t NABIZEGGES
([ZpaEl) - RIEZHZE - KFAIE
BRELEATEREREE
d

N

D
o
Il
&

=
33
o Y L

Style Investment L
Stylel) R it B &

known as “Smart Style Group”) for a total consideration &1 Smart Stylex =& B A F])
of HK$65,000,000, which represented consideration of (HFE[Smart Style%E |) 2 2 E
HK$88,000,000 set out in the Agreement less mortgage 2% 77 j% &K » % £ (& /A65,000,000
loan outstanding at completion date amounting to I R RRIEHERE IR E
HK$23,000,000. The transaction of disposal of Smart Style 88,000,000 7T)5 A 5E Ak B Hi k(B
Group was completed on 8 January 2013 after the special BB E 23,000,000 HE
general meeting of the Company held on the same date. The Smart Style fB 2 RXRHGNR_FT—=
consideration payable to the Company was set off against F—-—ANBERBBETZ2ARAFE
the outstanding borrowings of HK$65,000,000 owed by the HERAKEBTK o [EN TN T
Company to Chung Nam on the date of completion. ZREBUARAT N BB /KB
M2 AEEEE 65,000,000 7% T K
3 °
HK$'000
T+ T
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which KREZEFIE 2 BERBEDIT
control was lost:
Property, plant and equipment M - BB MR 49,394
Investment properties WEYE 36,170
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments H M EWERIE - 7] ® MBI FRIA 211
Bank balances and cash WITHESBR LIRS 49
Other payables and accrued charges H A & FRI8 K2 fE 5+ B (49)
Bank borrowing RITIEE (23,000)
Net assets FEE 62,775
Gain on disposal of Smart Style Group: & Smart Style 528 2 W35
Total consideration BB \ 65,000
Transaction cost directly attributable to the HEEEREZR KA
disposal (1,200)
Carrying amounts of net assets of Smart Style R EH & E 2 FREE
the Smart Style Group (62,775)
Gain on disposal & W as 1,025
Net cash outflows from the disposal are HEZREMHFEAT -
as follows:
Total consideration BB 65,000
Set off against the outstanding borrowing owned AR B4R PR 2K
by the Company to Chung Nam EBEEE \ (65,000)
Payment for transaction cost directly attributable S{JH&EBEZEEL 2R SKA
to the disposal (1,200)
Bank balances of the Smart Style Group upon 1% Smart Style 55[@ 2
disposal RITEEER (49)
Net cash outflows from the disposal HE RS M F58 (1,249)
B EREARAT
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38. COMMITMENTS
Operating Lease Commitment
The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases during
the year:

38. HiE

REHERIE

KEEERAHEA
FARBREHEX Nz &HERE

A

2014 2013
—E-F —F-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F#ET
Office equipment FNE 37 83
Office premises /NS ES 4,489 5,013
Leasehold land ME T 8,859 7,197
Motor vehicles RE 962 465
14,347 12,758
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RIREE K KNEBERET A B
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-  &&HE 2 kKKK S B E 5
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: Han R -

2014 2013

—E-OF —_E—=
HK$'000 HK$'OO_O
FHET T
Within one year —F R 4,096 14,590
In the second to fifth year E_EZFERF 5,111 46,622
Over five year BiE A 1 74,756
9,218 135,968
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the &&HERBEIIANEE G EE T
Group for certain of its office premises, office equipment, AZEYW% - PWAEHE HE L
leasehold land and motor vehicles. Leases are negotiated for N/ABEENNZHEHE - KEEWH D
one to eight years with fixed monthly rentals over the lease M EAH —F/)\FE N E H
term, in which total commitment of HK$668,000 (2013: WEASZXNETHE - HmH - ®

HK$124,325,000) are related to Sun Mass operated in Taiwan 7 #668,000/8 T(=— & — = 4
which lease is secured by a bank deposit as disclosed in note 124,325,000 % 7_5 ) A B E A
21. Sun MassBRl - HMEmRTER

xR |$E’\f9ﬁ§ 214%5% -
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38. COMMITMENTS (Cont’d)
Operating Lease Commitment (Cont’d)
The Group as lessor

All of the properties held have a committed tenant for five
years from the commencement of the lease term.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with a tenant for the following future minimum lease
payments:

38. RIE(E)
KEHEREE)
KEFESHFEA

PRAMF MENHERRAR AT
HHAEGEEP -

Rk AEBRRASHT
Bk B IE TR E IR 4

2014 2013
—F-F —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET
Within one year —F R 1,122 1,095
In the second to fifth year inclusive F-_ZFRF(BFEEERF) 1,683 2,738
2,805 3,833
Capital Commitment BAEE
2014 2013
—E—F —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of R EE - BELERED
acquisition of property, plant and S BERRERE B EmEK
equipment contracted for but TER B EMNE AR
not provided in the consolidated
financial statements 7,368 10,763
39. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 39. ERIRBAIFHE
The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund ZAEER _ZZTF+ - AR5
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme") established under the Mandatory ~ FE & &% {E 8 # 17 —HBER T
Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000 for all qualifying M2 & 5 EHEHI AL 32 2 58 5 1
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are fE&stE([BES & |) - ZF
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the &t &2 & EBEAEE 2 & & 7
control of the trustees. B FRAHEEFEAFRIMERCZES -
EHEKEERAT

£352014

131



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BHE_Z-—NF=A=+—RHILFE

39. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (Cont’d) 39. RIKIEREHEI(Z)

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes RNEBGBEESFE 2K ERAE
5% of relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which SHEELEBEBEHFER AN Z5%H
contribution is matched by the employee. The Group G HEEZHZMER > - B - =
follows the minimum contribution requirement of 5% of ——ERXA—BE KEEKEAE
eligible employees’ relevant aggregated income with a cap MEEREEMHBEINASYS 7 &
of HK$1,250 per employee per month since 1 June 2012 BHEZEFT IREASAETRHES
(previously HK$1,000 per employee per month before 1 June 1250 (AR E —_E— —F <A
2012). “BREAEEIEER1,000/87T) -
The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of i E{E AT ZESHLHEF H K
a state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated by the fFE&#H 7 BHKX BB ENREFETZ o
PRC government. The relevant PRC subsidiaries are required EEbhEWB AR EBILIREAEEE A
to make contributions to the state retirement schemes in HZ2EFTEDLE  MPBEBEKENK
the PRC based on certain percentage of the monthly salaries =t ZI#t3 - EABHMNZE S - A&
of their current employees to fund the benefits. The only E¥:EAKREHEFE 2 —SEEE
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit HEFHIK o

scheme is to make the specific contributions.

The employees employed in the Taiwan are members of the REEZEZEEHZREEE T
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the g R EEERBEREZ - K
Taiwan government. The Group is required to contribute EHBEREEHFEZETFTAEDL -
certain percentage of the employees’ payroll to the retirement [ :R{KEFEHEE R - EAEHNZ
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of &% o K& EH % EKEFEE 2 M
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is —&HFE2/EHBEMH o

to make the required contributions under the scheme.

The employer’s contribution to the MPF Schemes and various [EX 7 ®ESEt2 UWERFEEE
benefits schemes in the PRC and Taiwan is disclosed in notes & ZEABAE B 2 A EE12
12 and 13. NA3HEEE -

The contributions made by the Group to the MPF Scheme REBRABESFE LFEEE E
and retirement benefits schemes in the PRC and Taiwan are RAKBFEEELEZEZ TN ESE
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and mMAEBRIREREHEESEREN
other comprehensive income when employees have rendered 2HEIARER G o

service to the Group.
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. BEALTXRS
The Group entered into the following transactions with REECHEBEEATHEITUTRS
related parties:
2014 2013
—E-—NE —ZT—=F
HK$’00_0 HK$'000
FTER FET
Rental expenses paid to the following ~ XN FUATEEALTZES
related parties 353
(a) Non-controlling shareholder of a (a) HNBRARIBEARTENZ
subsidiary with significant influence fi 8 A RIE AR AR 3R
over the subsidiary N
(i) Dongguan City Qiao Guang () REmBEALEXEEAR
Industrial Group Company A (FisE)
(Note) \ - 654
(b) Companies in which a key by AEEFZEBABEER
management personnel of the Group /NG
has controlling interest
(i) Techford Development Limited (i) Techford Development
Limited 40 120
(i) Mascotte Investments Limited (i) BHEXREERAA 456 491
496 1,265
Note: The rental arrangement ended on 31 August 2012 and was not extended afterwards. Mz - HELYHR -_ZE——FE N \A=+—H&F ' 2
At the end of the reporting period, included in note 38 are RPEHKR RBEEHAEFTES
non-cancellable operating leases entered with companies f@}\g\}gﬁﬁjc %lﬁgﬁéa’jﬁﬂﬂja’g
in which a key management personnel of the Group has TTW%@&%?@%\(% ATz 38) &
controlling interest which fall due as follows: AR
2014 2013
—E2-NF —ZF—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FAET
Within one year —FR - 576
In the second to fifth year F_EFRF - 133
- 709
Compensation of key management personnel TEEE A S HN
The remuneration of directors and other members of key FRACEELRHMWTIESTEAEE
management during the year was as follows: Ban T -
2014 2013
—E-ImF —ET—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FABT
Short-term benefits 72 H14@ A 12,136 17,031
Post-employment benefits BER 18 2 97 87
Share based payments [ EENES 2,403 21,901
14,636 39,019
The remuneration of directors and key executives is EENTFEITRAS ZHE TN
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to éé\@%ﬁﬁ{j\ﬁiﬁﬁmi@ﬁ A 1%
the performance of individuals and market trends. BT o
EFESEEARAT
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